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Financial Summary

MEHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+-ALFE

Results ¥E 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET FHT FHET TET
Revenue WA 203,892 325,445 368,857 371,725 379,715
Gross profit EH 42,480 95,589 94,079 92,819 94,087
(Loss)/Profit before income tax KA FL Al (62,178) (13,875) (17,768) 19,386 31,567
(E518) /%A
(Loss)/Profit attributable to RREHEB ARG
the owners of the Company (B#8) /&Fl (60,032) | (15,632  (18,769) 15,732 25,679
As at 31 December
RT=A=+-8
Financial position B AR R 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER TAT FET FET TET
Total assets BEE 427,616 525,762 397,884 203,344 210,034
Interest-bearing borrowings ATEEE 1,071 699 54,793 879 3,131
Total liabilities raf 45,198 79,431 133,732 67,587 87,265
Shareholders’ equity MR RER 382,418 446,331 264,152 135,757 122,769
Current ratio (note 1) mEntt & (MiEE1) 6.85 5.08 2.22 2.82 2.22
Quick ratio (note 2) REPLLE (HizE2) 6.65 4.96 2.10 2.44 1.98
Return on assets (note 3) BERHE (14.0%) (2.9%) (4.7%) 7.8% 12.2%
(F3E3)
Return on equity (note 4) PR [B] 7 26 (15.7%) (3.5%) (7.1%) 11.6% 20.9%
(Fftz4)
Gearing ratio (note 5) BEAELE 0.3% 0.2% 20.7% 0.6% 2.6%
(FftzE5)
Inventory turnover days FERBXE
(note 6) (FizE6) 20 days/ B |15days/H 22days/H 33days/H 26 days/H
Trade receivables turnover days & 5 B ZIAE
(note 7) BREY (ME7) 26 days/ B |48days/H 60days/H 63days/H 57 days/H
Trade payables turnover days & S ER FIER
(note 8) BREY (MzEs) 21 days/B |37 days/B 50days/H 47 days/H 67 days/H
Note: FI3E
1, Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities 1. RELE = REEE RHARK
2. Quick ratio = current assets less inventory/current liabilities 2. RELE = RBEERGTE REBEE
3. Return on assets = (Loss)/Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for 3 BEDBRR=AQBEEARBGEE (BR) %
the year/total assets BB E
4, Return on equity = (Loss)/Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for 4. BARBIHRE =AARHEEARLEE (BB &
the year/shareholders’ equity B R
5. Gearing ratio = Interest-bearing borrowings/shareholders’ equity 5 EEARLE=FEEBE IREER
6. Inventory turnover days = Inventory balance/cost of sales for the year x number 6. GFERERE=-GEEHR FEHEKNAXEEX
of days for the year 2
7. Trade receivables turnover days = Trade receivables/revenue for the year x 7. B ZRIERE RS =85 B KRIEFEIK
number of days for the year AXFERE
8. Trade payables turnover days = Trade payables/cost of sales for the year x 8. ESENFERES A -85 EMNFB,FEH
number of days for the year ENA X FERE
O Annual Report 2018 3k
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”
and each a “Director”) of CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment
Company Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT

Extending the growth in 2017, the global economy remained growing
strong in the first half of 2018. However, the robust growth cannot
sustained to the second half of 2018 and the global economy lost
momentum amid various threats.

Apart from decelerating growth, there have been many uncertainties
facing by the global economy. In 2018, the United States imposed
tariffs on US$250 billion of Chinese products and this resulted in the
rise of trade protectionism among countries. The China-US trade
tensions are still fraught with uncertainties.

2018 was a difficult year for the Group and we faced significant
challenges. One of the biggest challenges was the tough operating
environment. As mentioned before, the China-US trade disputes
escalated to a new extent and the United States imposed tariffs
on US$250 billion of Chinese products, which included apparel
products. During the year, the apparel industry was worried about the
development of trade disputes and was filled with uneasiness in the
shadow of trade barriers.

Trade conflicts among countries and other uncertainties also had
adverse impact on the Hong Kong economy as an open economy.
The Hong Kong economy achieved a healthy growth by 3.0% for
2018 as a whole and its growth remained strong in the first half
of the year. However, affected by increasing external threats and
uncertainties, the pace of economic growth in Hong Kong slowed
down sharply in the second half of the year.
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OUR PERFORMANCE

Apparel operation

The revenue from apparel operation for 2018 was approximately
HK$187,041,000 (2017: HK$309,068,000), declined by approximately
39.5%. Our apparel products are manufactured in China and most of
those apparel products are exported to the United States and so our
apparel operation was hard hit by the China-US trade disputes.

Apart from the threats that stem from trade protectionism,
technology has transformed unprecedentedly the landscape of
apparel industry. Over the past few years, the apparel industry has
experienced significant changes that can be characterized by a shift
from traditional brick-and-mortar retailing to e-commerce retailing.
Consequently, traditional brick-and-mortar retailers have started
facing decreasing foot traffic, increasing speed of fashion cycle and
rapid changes in consumer behavior. This continuous transformation
of the apparel industry has also posed adverse impact to our apparel
operation.

Money lending operation

Despite facing volatile economic environment and keen competition,
there was steady growth of approximately 2.9% of revenue from our
money lending operation, from approximately HK$16,377,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to HK$16,851,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The rise of trade protectionism among countries has weighed on
global economic sentiment since 2018. Looking ahead, the risks
to the global economy outlook remained skewed to the downside,
in particular, if the trade disputes drag on or deteriorate, this would
unavoidably cast a shadow on our apparel business. With challenges,
grave and complicated environment ahead, we will continue to steer
our apparel business with prudent operation strategy.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

For our money lending business, we are pleased with our strategic
positioning and we believe we would deliver satisfactory performance,
despite the complicated external environment and keen competition.
The outlook remains positive in the midst of any disruptive market
developments and we remain optimistic with its development.

Whilst the Group is dedicated to improving the performance of
its existing businesses amid the challenges and uncertainties
ahead, the Group will continue to cautiously explore and assess
potential business opportunities with a view to enhancing returns to
shareholders in the years to come.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank all our dedicated colleagues for their commitment to the Group,
particularly during this difficult time which is full of challenges and
uncertainties. | am also grateful to all shareholders for their continued
support.

Guo Lin
Chairman
28 March 2019
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBBERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GUO Lin, aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chairman of the Board on 5 June 2017. He provides leadership
for the Board. He is the chairman of the corporate governance
committee (the “Corporate Governance Committee”) of the
Company as he takes primary responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are in place. He
is also the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”).

Mr. Guo, who has over 22 years of experience in corporate
management and business investments, has held managerial
positions in business investment companies, large enterprises and
securities companies, and is responsible for the overall development,
growth strategies and supervision of key management matters.
Mr. Guo was previously the general manager of the Shanghai
Headquarter of China Minzu Securities Limited Company* (7 B & e
FEHEAMRETAT) from July 1997 to October 2008, the vice general
manager of Shanghai Lujiazui Development (Group) Co., Ltd.* (/&
BER U (£ E)BBRE A F) from November 2008 to March 2014, the
deputy general manager of Taiping Asset Management Co., Ltd*
(RFEEEEARAR]) from March 2014 to March 2016, and the
chairman of the board of CEFC Shanghai Securities Limited* (=82
ZEFEABREERT) from April 2016 to early January 2018. Mr. Guo
is the executive director and has been appointed as the chairman
of the board of New Seres Investment Co., Ltd* #4482 iKIEEH
fR/2 7)) since December 2016. Mr. Guo has respectively been the
director and a shareholder of Shanghai Chengyi Business Consulting
Company Limited* (_t/8# R 15557048 PR A 7)) and a limited partner
of Shanghai Chengyi Corporate Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)* (LBERBLEEREBIE(BRE)) since June
2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEEREFS

Mr. JIANG Mingsheng, aged 58, was appointed as an executive
Director on 5 June 2017. He has over 20 years of experience in the
finance and banking industry. Mr. Jiang has held managerial positions
at major banks in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
was responsible for strategic planning and business development.
Mr. Jiang was previously the vice president of the Guangzhou
branch of China Merchants Bank* (H&4R1T) from 1997 to 2000,
the general manager of the banking department at the headquarters
of China Merchants Bank from 2000 to 2002 and the president of
the Shanghai branch of China Merchants Bank from 2002 to 2007.
From 2007 to 2017, Mr. Jiang was the executive vice president and a
director of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank* (/&8s 2 $R17)
(stock code: 600000.SH), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, for the period from April 2016 to January 2017. Mr. Jiang
was the vice president of CEFC China Energy Company Limited* (4
Bl #E/=8ER AR A 7)) from February 2017 to September 2018.

Mr. JIANG Tianging, aged 34, was appointed as an executive
Director on 5 June 2017. Mr. Jiang is a member of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee. He has over 13 years of experience as a finance
professional in the accounting and investment field and has held
various managerial roles in international accounting firm and major
investment management companies in the PRC, in the area of control
and supervision of investment development. Mr. Jiang was previously
an auditor and manager at KPMG Advisory (China) Limited from
November 2005 to May 2011, the vice president of risk management
at Haitong Innovation Capital Management Co., Ltd* (@&l
BAREIEARAF) from May 2011 to September 2013, and the
investment director at ORIZA FOF Investment Management™ (&
THEREETARBBREREESEBEHROL(BRE)) who was
responsible for overseas investment from September 2013 to June
2016. Mr. Jiang was the general manager of CEFC Capital Co., Ltd*
(LBEEEAILEBRRAF) from July 2016 to December 2017. Mr.
Jiang has been appointed as a director of New Seres International
Asset Management (Cayman) Limited since January 2017 and as a
director of New Seres Investment Co., Ltd.* (#4482 IBIRE AR A
A]) since April 2017. Mr. Jiang has respectively been the supervisor
and a shareholder of Shanghai Chengyi Business Consulting
Company Limited* (_E/8# R #5704 PR A 7)) and a limited partner
of Shanghai Chengyi Corporate Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)* (EB&ERBLEEBEEHBEBRER) since June
2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBBERE

Mr. Hubert TIEN, aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director
on 19 June 2013. Mr. Tien is one of the founders of the Group. He
is responsible for overseeing the apparel operation of the Group in
design, manufacturing and trading business. Mr. Tien has about 20
years of experience in garment trading, manufacturing and marketing
in the United States, Australian and Canadian markets. Mr. Tien also
serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. LIU Chun Fai, aged 31, was appointed as an executive Director
on 24 November 2016. Mr. Liu received his education in Canada.
Mr. Liu has over seven years of working experience in both legal and
finance sectors. Mr. Liu is a member of the Racing Club of the Hong
Kong Jockey Club and Hong Kong United Youth Association Limited.
Mr. Liu also is a director of Jiangxi Overseas Friendship Association.
Mr. Liu has been appointed as an executive committee member of
Youth Council since June 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Hongbing, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 June 2017. He is the chairman of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and
Remuneration Committee. He is also a member of the Corporate
Governance Committee and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Lu has been a qualified lawyer in the PRC since 1991 and has
over 26 years of experience in the legal industry in the PRC. Mr,
Lu has been an attorney-at-law and partner at Grandall Law Firm
(Shanghai)* (BIV&EEREN(_E/E)ETEFAT) since July 1993 and has
become a partner and chief executive partner at the same firm since
June 1998. Currently, Mr. Lu is the vice chairman of the All-China
Lawyers Association and a committee member of The 13th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Mr. Lu is an independent non-executive director of Shimao Property
Holdings Limited (stock code: 813.HK), a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, since November 2004, and ZTE Corporation
(stock code: 763.HK and 000063.SZ), a company listed on both of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
since July 2015. Mr. Lu is also an independent director of Shandong
Airlines Co. Ltd. (ILERMZERDBR A A) (stock code: 200152.52),
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since March
2016, and Shanghai Shentong Metro Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600834.
SH), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, since May
2014,
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEEREFS

Mr. TANG Shu Pui Simon, aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 22 August 2016. He is
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee.

Mr. Tang is a practising solicitor and an accredited mediator with the
Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre. Mr. Tang is a partner
of P. C. Woo & Co., a firm of solicitors with over 70 years of service
in Hong Kong. Mr. Tang is a member of the Appeal Tribunal of the
Hong Kong Federation of Insurers, honorary legal advisor to the
General Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong, founding
member and vice president of the Hong Kong Institute Patent
Attorneys, honorary senior legal adviser of the Hong Kong Brands
Protection Alliance, founding member, board member and honorary
legal counsel of the Hong Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation
Foundation, member of the Standing Committee on Standards and
Development of the Law Society of Hong Kong, member of the
Sichuan Committee of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, honorary legal advisor of the Kitchee Foundation Limited,
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and board
member of Monte Jade Science and Technology Association of Hong
Kong.

Mr. Tang was first appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 November 2013. He retired on 3 December 2015
as an independent non-executive Director in order to devote more
time for his other personal pursuits during that period. He was re-
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 22 August
2016.

Mr. HON Ming Sang, aged 40, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 2 November 2016. He is a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee. Mr. Hon obtained an honor
degree of Professional Accountancy in the School of Accountancy
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Hon is a chartered
CFA. He is also a member of The Hong Kong Society of Financial
Analysts, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBBERE

Mr. Hon has previously worked in an international audit firm and has
over 10 years of working experience in listed companies and financial
institutions. He has extensive experience in corporate finance,
merger and acquisition, investment and financial management and
compliance services. Mr. Hon is an executive director and company
secretary of SFund International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1367.
HK), a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He was the company secretary of China Smarter Energy
Group Holdings Limited (“China Smarter Energy”, stock code: 1004.
HK), a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange from 31 December 2012 to 9 February 2017 and was an
executive director of China Smarter Energy from 31 December 2012
to 16 August 2017.

Professor WU Fei, aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 15 February 2018. He is currently a
professor at the Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance (“SAIF”),
Shanghai Jiao Tong University, China (BB A2 HEasH&rE
Br).

Before joining SAIF, Professor Wu was a professor for the period
from November 2010 to October 2013 and also an associate dean
between March 2012 and June 2013 at the International Institute
for Financial Studies (& @& 12 BIFR i 72hx), at the Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics (L# AL A E2), China. Prior to that, he
was a senior lecturer in Finance, at the Department of Economics
and Finance at the College of Business at Massey University, New
Zealand.

Professor Wu has become an independent director of Fujian Raynen
Technology Co., Ltd.* (BB RN AR AR (stock code:
603933.SH), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
since 30 December 2016.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBBERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Lung, Savio, aged 43, was appointed as the
deputy chief executive officer of the Company on 1 May 2017. Mr.
Cheung is primarily responsible for the daily management, business
operations and corporate transactions of the Group. He also serves
as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cheung
graduated with a Bachelor of Business Administration (Finance)
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is
a chartered CFA. He is also a member of The Hong Kong Society
of Financial Analysts and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors.

Mr. Cheung has over 20 years of working experience in the
banking and finance industry. He previously worked for a number of
investment banks and has extensive experience in handling various
corporate transactions such as initial public offerings, mergers and
acquisitions, reverse takeovers, restructuring, fund raising. During his
career, he also had worked in the field of private equity investment for
over 10 years including a senior position in the private equity arm of
Ichigo Inc. (formerly known as Asset Managers Co., Ltd.), a company
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange First Section (stock code: 2337.7)
in which he managed a portfolio with assets under management over
USD300 million in the Greater China region. Currently, he is a non-
executive director of Stemcell United Limited (stock code: ASX:SCU),
a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

Ms. TIN Yuen Sin Carol, aged 53, is the director of Delta Wealth
Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. She
joined the Group in November 2016. Ms. Tin is an entrepreneur
operating businesses including money lending business and fine
dining business. Ms. Tin also has extensive experience in trading
business in Hong Kong and PRC. Ms. Tin was an executive
director of Carnival Group International Holdings Limited (“Carnival”)
(formerly known as Oriental Ginza Holding Limited and CASH Retail
Management Group Limited) (stock code: 996.HK), a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, for the period from 2005 to
2011. Ms. Tin also served as the chairperson of Carnival from 2006
to 2011 and was responsible for the overall strategic planning and
policy making. Ms. Tin served as a director of Yan Oi Tong from 2017
to 2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBBERE

Mr. Farzad GOZASHTI, aged 53, is responsible for overseeing the
design, sales and marketing activities of the apparel operation of the
Group. He joined the Group in October 2001. Mr. Gozashti graduated
with a Bachelor of Science in business administration (marketing)
from San Francisco State University in California of the United
States of America in May 1989. Mr. Gozashti has about 20 years of
experience in design and product development.

Mr. CHAN Ka Yu, aged 39, is the chief financial officer of the
Company. He is also the company secretary of Runway Global
Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Chan joined the Group in June 2013. He is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting and assisting in handling company
secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Chan graduated with a Bachelor
of Commerce in Accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University
in October 2009. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Chan has over 10 years of professional accounting and financial
reporting experience. Prior to joining the Group, from September
2010 to April 2012, he worked at BDO Limited (which was formerly
known as JBPB & Company), initially as a senior accountant and
subsequently promoted as a senior associate. From May 2012 to
April 2013, he worked as an investor relations officer for Fantasia
Group (China) Company Limited, a subsidiary of Fantasia Holdings
Group Co., Limited (fEFIEREBEEFR AR (stock code:
1777 HK), a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

*For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group principally engages in (i) design, manufacture and trading
of apparels; and (i) provision of money lending business.

APPAREL OPERATION

Revenue from apparel operation is principally derived from the sales
of apparel products. The Group’s products can be classified into two
categories, namely, private label products and own brand products.
Private label products are those designed and manufactured under
the private labels owned or specified by the Group’s customers, while
own brand products are those designed and manufactured under the
Group’s proprietary labels.

There was intensified trade friction between China and the United
States in 2018. During the year, the United States imposed tariffs
on US$250 billion of Chinese products, which included apparel
products.

Our apparel products are manufactured in China and most of those
apparel products are exported to the United States. Our apparel
operation was thus adversely affected by the intensified trade friction
between China and the United States. During the year, the apparel
industry was worried about the development of trade disputes and
was filled with uneasiness in the shadow of trade barriers.

Apart from trade disputes between China and the United States, the
apparel industry was undergoing continuous transformation from
brick-and-mortar retails to e-commerce retails in 2018 and certain of
our customers were adversely affected.

Our apparel operation remained the largest contributor to the Group’s
business, accounting for 91.7% of total revenue. The revenue from
apparel operation for 2018 was approximately HK$187,041,000
(2017: HK$309,068,000), declined by approximately 39.5%, as
orders from our major customers, which have been adversely
affected by the shift of consumers’ buying habit to online shopping
and weak sentiment among our customers in the United States due
to intensified trade friction between China and the United States.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PRIVATE LABEL PRODUCTS

Revenue from certain major private label customers dropped in the
year, resulting in the revenue from private label products decreased
by approximately 31.2% to approximately HK$125,227,000 (2017:
HK$181,966,000). Private label products continued to be the
core business of the Group, contributing 67.0% (2017: 58.9%) of
the total revenue from apparel operation for the year. The gross
profit derived from private label products decreased by 73.8% to
approximately HK$9,149,000 (2017: HK$34,904,000) and the gross
profit margin declined to approximately 7.3% in 2018, compared with
approximately 19.2% in 2017.

OWN BRAND PRODUCTS

Own brand products accounted for 33.0% (2017: 41.1%) of the
total revenue from apparel operation for the year. For the year 2018,
revenue from own brand products decreased by approximately
51.4% to approximately HK$61,814,000 (2017: HK$127,102,000)
and gross profit decreased by 62.8% to approximately
HK$16,480,000 (2017: HK$44,308,000). The gross profit margin for
own brand products decreased from approximately 34.9% in 2017 to
approximately 26.7% in 2018.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

Our money lending business primarily offers loans to individual
consumers and small businesses in Hong Kong.

The Hong Kong economy grew by 3.0% for 2018 as a whole. Growth
remained strong at 4.1% on a year-on-year basis in the first half of
the year. However, affected by increasing external uncertainties,
particularly those stemming from the trade conflicts between China
and the United States and increase in the interest rate of the United
States, the pace of Hong Kong economic growth decelerated to 2.8%
in the third quarter and further to 1.3% in the fourth quarter.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

As we focus on individual consumers and small businesses in
Hong Kong, our money lending business is closely bound up
with the Hong Kong economy. Despite facing volatile economic
environment and keen competition, there was steady growth of
approximately 2.9% of revenue from our money lending operation,
from approximately HK$16,377,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 to HK$16,851,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018. Our
loans and interest receivables decreased by approximately 29.2%,
from HK$148,881,000 at 31 December 2017 to approximately
HK$105,339,000 at 31 December 2018.

COST OF SALES

As there was no direct cost incurred for money lending operation,
cost of sales was incurred entirely for our apparel operation only.
In light of the decline in revenue from apparel operation, the cost
of sales decreased by approximately 29.8%, from approximately
HK$229,856,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
approximately HK$161,412,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
HK$42,480,000 (2017: HK$95,589,000), representing a decrease
of approximately HK$53,109,000 or 55.6% as compared to the
corresponding period in 2017. The gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 29.4% for the year ended 31 December 2017
to 20.8% for the year ended 31 December 2018. During the year,
apparel operation contributed approximately HK$25,629,000 (2017:
HK$79,212,000) to the gross profit, and money lending operation
contributed approximately HK$16,851,000 (2017: HK$16,377,000)
to the gross profit.

The gross profit from apparel operation decreased by approximately
HK$53,583,000 or 67.6% to approximately HK$25,629,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018. The gross profit margin of apparel
operation decreased to 13.7% for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: 25.6%). Our procurement costs fell during the year,
but the decline was lower than the decline in sales. In addition, the
Group also recorded a raise in the wages for production workers. On
the other hand, because of the sales market was weak and so we
were unable to pass the rising costs on to customers, which led to a
narrowing of gross profit margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The gross profit from money lending operation increased by
approximately HK$474,000, from HK$16,377,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to HK$16,851,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018, as there was more revenue from money lending
operation in the year. The gross profit margin was 100% for money
lending operation for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
100%), as there was no direct cost incurred in generating revenue in
the money lending operation.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains increased by approximately HK$1,153,000 or
32.9%, from approximately HK$3,508,000 in 2017 to approximately
HK$4,661,000 in 2018. In 2018, there was subcontracting income of
approximately HK$2,264,000 (2017: nil).

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses mainly consist of (i) import duty and
transportation costs for delivery of the products; (i) staff costs for
our sales representatives; and (i) rental costs of our showroom. The
selling and distribution expenses incurred in the reporting period were
approximately HK$26,551,000 (2017: HK$39,245,000), decreased
by approximately HK$12,694,000 or 32.3% on a year to year basis.
The decrease in selling and distribution expenses was primarily
attributable to approximately 39.5% decline in revenue from apparel
operation. As a percentage of revenue, selling and distribution
expenses increased to 13.0% for the year ended 31 December 2018
from 12.1% for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) staff costs; (i) rental
expenses; (i) professional fees, (iv) forfeiture of deposit in relation
to the possible acquisition of companies; and (v) depreciation of
property, plant and equipment. The administrative expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2018 were approximately HK$82,729,000
(2017: HK$73,085,000), increased by approximately 13.2% or
HK$9,644,000. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly
attributable to (i) the increase in rental expenses and depreciation of
property, plant and equipment during the year following the change
in control of the Company in May 2017; and (ii) forfeiture of deposit
of HK$5,000,000 in relation to the possible acquisition of companies
(please refer to the paragraph headed “POSSIBLE ACQUISITION OF
PRIOR SECURITIES LIMITED AND PRIOR ASSET MANAGEMENT
LIMITED” for further details).

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs represent interest expenses on the Group’s obligations
under finance leases. The finance costs decreased by approximately
93.9% or HK$603,000 from approximately HK$642,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$39,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018, primarily due to there was only interest
expenses for obligations under finance leases in 2018.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$60,032,000 (2017:
HK$15,632,000), representing an increase in loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$44,400,000 or 284.0%.
The increase in loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was primarily attributable to decrease
in revenue of our apparel operation and increase in administrative
expenses in comparison to 2017 as previously discussed..
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENwR DN

TR

GOODWILL ]

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of our money lending operation in ~ FER T —F+— AREERRE X5
November 2016, which was the fair value of consideration exceeding FrE4 - REK A T EEBHUEE 77 80 AT 5
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the acquiree. Goodwill is ~ BIFEER A FE - EEEE ETRER

subject to impairment review periodically. af o
]
INVENTORY FE
The following table set out a summary of the Group’s inventory ~ TEREFIAEER T5& B #K0R B BHHF
balances as at respective financial position dates below: BRESRTE -
As at As at
31 December | 31 December
2018 2017
R=B—N\F | R=T—tF
+=A=+—H8 |+=—A=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Raw materials and consumables JRE R FEM 2,575 3,266
Work in progress & 742 765
Finished goods BURK fh 5,690 5,282
9,007 9,313
Inventory turnover day FEEEREY 20 15

The Group’s inventories decreased by approximately HK$306,000 or 7N & E &) 17 & /& 4> #9306,000/% 7T %
3.3%, from approximately HK$9,313,000 as at 31 December 2017to 3.3%* H=ZZE—tF+ZA=+—HHH
approximately HK$9,007,000 as at 31 December 2018. The inventory 9,313,000 L > E - \F+ A
turnover day increased from 15 days as at 31 December 2017 to 20 =-+—H#&J%Y9,007,000& 7T - 7 E X
days as at 31 December 2018. TR —+tF+=-A=1+—H/15K#%
MEZFT-N\F+ZA=+—HMH20XK -
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The following table set out a summary of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables balances as at respective financial position dates below:

BEZRBFERERER

TRFFIAEER NS F BB RN E
SIRYGIA N RN RIS E

As at As at

31 December | 31 December

2018 2017

R=B—N\F | R-Z—+F

+=A=t+—B |+—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

THT FHEIT

Trade receivables 2 5 EWFIE 14,854 42613
Bill receivables i E 3,694 10,176
18,548 52,789

Trade receivables turnover day Z 5 W ZUERE K H 26 48

The Group’s trade and bills receivables decreased by approximately
HK$34,241,000 or 64.9% from approximately HK$52,789,000 as
at 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$18,548,000 as at 31
December 2018, as well as trade receivables turnover day decreased
from 48 days as at 31 December 2017 to 26 days as at 31 December
2018.

LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The Group’s loans and interest receivables decreased by
approximately 29.2%, from HK$148,881,000 at 31 December 2017
to approximately HK$105,339,000 at 31 December 2018. The loans
receivables as at 31 December 2018 were mainly comprised of
mortgage loans receivables, secured loans receivables and personal
loans receivables.
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables increased
by approximately HK$2,636,000 or 15.3% from approximately
HK$17,260,000 as at 31 December 2017 to approximately
HK$19,896,000 as at 31 December 2018, primarily due to more
trade deposits were placed to our suppliers to purchase raw materials
and finished goods.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The following table set out a summary of the Group’s trade and bills
payables balances as at respective financial position dates below:

BEEERWR DT

%ﬁ - A RRE A B
Iz

REBERIZS - BRI E A EUEIFE N
#72,636,000/8 L8 15.3% ' H-T—+t4F
+=—A=1+—H/% 17,260,000 F L NZE
T N\F+=A=+—HH#% 19,896,000
B TEHRBMABERMA RENK MG
MREEEZNNE SIESIEN -

BEZRARERENRE

TREFIAEER THISF BN B RN E
HENFARENRBEHTE

As at As at

31 December | 31 December

2018 2017

R=B—N\F | RZZT—LF

+=A=+—R8 |t=A=1+—H

HK$’000 HIK$'000

THET FHET

Trade payables B ENFIR 9,227 23,044
Bills payables ANESE 11,046 14,351
20,273 37,395

Trade payables turnover day B RN FIRRERE 21 37

The Group’s trade and bills payables decreased by approximately
HK$17,122,000 or 45.8% from approximately HK$37,395,000 as
at 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$20,273,000 as at 31
December 2018. The trade payables turnover day decreased from 37
days as at 31 December 2017 to 21 days as at 31 December 2018.

AEENESEMNRERENERRDL
17,122,00078 7T 5 45.8% - T —+F
+=—A=1+—H&% 37,395,000 8T =
—E-N\F+ZA=+—HKI4 20,273,000
BT BZRNNEASREH _T—+F
+ - A=+—HBHITRKRIE T —)\F
+—-A=+—HmM21 XK

Annual Report 2018 %R @7



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank deposits and cash and
bank balances amounted to approximately HK$155,911,000
(2017: HK$171,332,000). Total interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$1,071,000
(2017: HK$699,000), of which approximately HK$218,000 (2017:
HK$325,000) would be repayable within one year and all the
remaining interest-bearing borrowings of approximately HK$853,000
(2017: HK$374,000) would be repayable after one year. The current
ratio of the Group was approximately 6.85 (2017: 5.08).

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total interest-bearing
borrowings over total equity, was approximately 0.3% as at 31
December 2018 (2017: 0.2%).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s time deposits of HK
$3,314,000 (2017: HK$4,522,000) and nil (2017: HK $2,074,000)
were pledged as securities for the Group’s bills payables and banking
facilities respectively. Buildings and land with net carrying value of
approximately HK$5,874,000 (2017: HK$6,653,000) were pledged
as securities for the Group’s bills payables.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2017: nil).
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TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers.
To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group derives the majority of its revenue in US$ while substantial
portion of our costs are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”).
Appreciation of RMB against US$ will therefore directly decrease
the profit margin of the Group if the Group is unable to increase
the selling prices of its products accordingly. If the Group increases
the selling prices of its products as a result of the appreciation of
RMB, it may in turn affect the Group’s competitiveness against its
other business competitors. To the extent that the Company needs
to convert future financing into RMB for the Group’s operations,
appreciation of the RMB against the relevant foreign currencies would
have an adverse effect on the purchasing power of the RMB amount
that the Company would receive from the conversion.

The exchange rates between RMB and US$ are subject to changes
in the PRC Government’s policies and global political and economic
conditions.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2018.

BEEERWR DT
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POSSIBLE ACQUISITION OF PRIOR SECURITIES
LIMITED AND PRIOR ASSET MANAGEMENT
LIMITED

On 25 January 2017, the Group entered into two sale and
purchase agreements (as supplemented and amended) thereof
(the “Agreements”) with a vendor in relation to the acquisition (the
“Acquisition”) of the entire share capital of Prior Securities Limited and
Prior Asset Management Limited.

The conditions precedent pursuant to the Agreements were not
fulfilled or satisfied by 31 July 2018, being the long stop date of the
Agreements, therefore the Acquisition was not completed and the
Agreements were automatically terminated.

The amount of HK$5,000,000 which represented payments of
non-refundable deposit for the Acquisition was forfeited after the
termination of the Agreements. The forfeiture of the non-refundable
deposit was reflected in this annual result for the year ended 31
December 2018.

THE SUBSCRIPTION AND THE USE OF PROCEEDS

As disclosed in the joint announcement issued by the Company
and New Seres CEFC Investment Fund LP (“New Seres”) dated 15
February 2017 (the “Joint Announcement”) and the circular of the
Company dated 10 April 2017 (the “Circular”), the Company entered
into an agreement with New Seres on 26 January 2017 in relation to
the subscription of 860,000,000 new shares in the Company by New
Seres (the “Subscription”). The Subscription was completed on 2
May 2017, raising net proceeds of approximately HK$195,720,000.
Set out below are the details of the utilisation of the net proceeds
from the Subscription during the financial year ended 31 December
2018:
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Intended use

of the net
proceeds as Actual
disclosed in use of the net Unutilised net
the Joint  proceeds up to proceeds as at
Announcement 31 December 31 December
and the Circular 2018 2018
Bentk HE-E-N\E R=B-NE
BXFIE +=-A=+t-B t=A=t-H
FSREFE PSR RS CBAME
ORI iR WERRZ NEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET AT
() for the development of the loan () BRASEEFHE
financing business of the Group %% BEATRR
including but not limited to:

— the provision of loans of larger - REREALRRBEN 103,432 117,600 Over-utilised of
principal amount (WRIBER) HK$14,168
and longer term (Note 1)
(e.g. mortgage loans) HEHH

14,168 7T
(i)

— the expansion of sales and — HEARPRBEKL 9,000 3,199 5,801
customer service team and BR RERREER (Note 1)
the overheads for the loan i0l53 (HisE1)
financing business

—  the marketing campaign for - ENBEEBREHEE 5,000 802 4,198
the loan financing business (Note 1)

(BFzE1)
(i) for the development of (i) AEENEFREETEES
the securities and asset MR BEETRA :
management business
of the Group including
but not limited to:

— the settlement of - WBEEAINRE 28,900 3,000 25,900
the outstanding e (Note 2 and 3)
consideration for (FzE2 % 3)
the Acquisition

— the business development — BUBHFHRANEE 11,388 - 11,388
of Prior Securities and MEBER (Note 3)
Prior Asset (F37E3)

— the grant of securities margin — BERFREEX 38,000 - 38,000
financing loans (Note 3)

(HI5E3)
195,720 124,601 71,119
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Notes:

s As the development of the financing business has exceeded expectation, no
significant additional expenses were expected to be incurred on expansion of
sales and customer service team and marketing campaign, and the unutilised
proceeds as at 31 December 2018 had accordingly been used principally
towards provision of loans to clients.

2. Up to 31 December 2018, the amount of HK$3,000,000 was utilised which
represented payment of the second non-refundable deposit for the Acquisition in
accordance with the terms of the Agreements.

3. As disclosed in the paragraph headed “POSSIBLE ACQUISITION OF PRIOR
SECURITIES LIMITED AND PRIOR ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED” above,
the Acquisition was not completed and the Agreements were automatically
terminated. The unutilised proceeds, amounting to HK$75,288,000, which was
originally allocated for the development of the securities and asset management
business (including the Acquisition), shall be retained by the Group for its future
acquisition(s) and business development and/or working capital purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitment (2017: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 332 employees
(2017: 339 employees). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) were approximately HK$76,044,000, as compared
to approximately HK$82,141,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017. Remuneration is determined with reference to market norms
as well as individual employees’ performance, qualification and
experience.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: nil).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend any payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There are no important subsequent events which would materially
affect the Company or the Group after 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the principles and applicable code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) throughout the year. The Board will keep reviewing
and updating such practices from time to time to ensure compliance
with legal and commercial standards. The terms of reference of the
Board committees have been posted on the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s websites.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies,
monitoring performance and managing risks of the Group. At the
same time, it also has the duty to enhance the effectiveness of the
corporate governance practices of the Group. Under the Board,
there are four committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist the
Board in supervising certain functions of the senior management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in the Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. The
Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry with each of
the Directors (except Mr. WANG Zhou who could not be contacted to
make the confirmation), that all the Directors have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

Promoting good corporate governance and managing enterprise-
wide risk is a priority of the Company. The Company is convinced that
corporate governance and Directors and Officers Liability Insurance
(the “D&O Insurance”) complement each other. The Company has
arranged appropriate D&O Insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and
senior management arising out from corporate activities. The D&O
Insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.

THE BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 9 Directors and
their respective roles are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GUO Lin (Chairman)

JIANG Mingsheng

JIANG Tianging

Hubert TIEN

LIU Chun Fai

Zhang Yu (resigned on 9 July 2018)
WANG Zhou (vacated on 8 March 2019)

Mr. Zhang resigned as a Director on 9 July 2018 due to his other
business commitments. He has no disagreement with the Board and
does not have any matter in relation to his resignation that should be
brought to the attention of the Company.

The office of Mr. Wang as an executive Director has been vacated
on 8 March 2019 by resolution of the Board. To the best of the
Directors’ (except Mr. Wang’s) knowledge, information and belief
and having made all reasonable enquiries, the Board is not aware of
any disagreement between Mr. Wang and the Board or any matters
that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LU Hongbing

TANG Shu Pui Simon

HON Ming Sang

WU Fei (appointed on 15 February 2018)
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS EEEERRREARE

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial ZEZg®FHERSHEN LI ERBRLE
and operating performance, and considering and approving the X3 @ WE & LI EDR D AR R KIS R IK
overall strategies and policies of the Company. Additional meetings % ° /A i Mo RE KN E k&= K E B

are held when significant events or important issues are required to  ERITREING % ©
be discussed and resolved.

The Company held nine Board meetings and one annual general E2FAAFERITNAESTEEE  — AR
meeting (“AGM”) and nil extraordinary general meetings (‘EGM”) RBEFARE ([REBFAL|) kW ERT
throughout the year. During the year, the chairman held two meetings ERIRRFRIAE ([BREFKFRAEZ]) - B
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of ANFE @ E/FHEBVFNTEFRITMAE
other Directors. w MEHEMESRLHRE o

The attendance records of individual Director are set out as follows: FEENHFERSEST

Number of Board Number of Number of
meetings attended/ AGM attended/ EGM attended/
eligible to attend  eligible to attend  eligible to attend
ESEeHLE/ RRAFAGER/ RRWAASHLRE/
RERLERE  AERHRERE AEBUERE/

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: BiTEs:
Mr. GUO Lin (Chairman) DREE (FE) 99 0/ 00
Mr. JIANG Mingsheng ERELE 719 0A 000
Mr. JIANG Tianging BREELE 8/9 0 000
Mr. Hubert TIEN BEHLE 59 0 000
Mr. LIU Chun Fai BERLE 99 1/1 00
Mr. ZHANG Yu (resigned on 9 July 2018) RFEE (RZE-\ELANBEHE) 212 1/1 00
Mr. WANG Zhou (vacated on 8 March 2019") INEE (RZE-NE=AN\BEHE*) 09 0/ 000
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:  BUFHTEE
Mr. LU Hongbing RAEEE 6/9 0/ 00
Mr. TANG Shu Pui, Simon 2y 99 1 00
Mr. HON Ming Sang BEARE 8/9 1/1 00
Mr. WU Fei (appointed on 15 February 2018) RREE (RZE-\E-ATRAEZRR) 6/8 0/ 00
2 pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 8 March 2019, Mr. WANG ~ * BEAAFARZZE-NFEF=ZANBZAE  TM
gg?; has been vacated from his office as an executive Director on 8 March g%ﬂﬁé:%ﬁfﬂiiﬂJ\EIE’EE%M‘T%%Z%%
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Duties of the Board and Management

Duties of the Board

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising the
management of the business affairs and the overall performance of
the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and standards and
ensures that the requisite financial and human resources support
are in place for the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions
performed by the Board include but not limited to formulating
the Group’s business strategies, reviewing the Group’s financial
performance and results, deciding all significant financial and
operational issues and monitoring, reviewing the Group’s internal
control system and corporate governance; and all other functions
reserved to the Board under the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles”).

Duties of the Management

In addition, the Board delegates to the Group’s management certain
functions including (i) the implementation of general daily operation
and strategies approved by the Board; (ii) the implementation of
internal control procedures; and (jii) ensuring compliance with relevant
requirements and other rules and regulations.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four independent non-executive Directors.
All of them have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. All the Directors
carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, making decisions objectively and acting in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers them independent.

Biographies of all Directors are listed in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” set out
on pages 9 to 15.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with a comprehensive
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his/her responsibilities under the relevant laws, rules and
regulations.

The development and training of Directors are an ongoing process
so that the Directors can perform their duties appropriately. The
Directors are provided with periodic updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, the Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
they continue to make contribution to the Board in an informed and
relevant manner.

The chart below summarises the participation of each of the Directors
in continuous professional development during the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this report is summarised as
follows:

Name of director
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Participated in
continuous professional
development*

Y BHEBESERER"
Executive Directors HITES

GUO Lin ZBAK v
JIANG Mingsheng =RE v
JIANG Tianging BEE v
Hubert TIEN FEEZ v
LIU Chun Fai BEE v
ZHANG Yu RF 4
WANG Zhou* M =
# Since Mr. Wang Zhou could not be contacted, the Company was not provided ~— * EERETMEEBME, RARRERMER

with a record of his continuous professional development.

BHEEBRNCHE -
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Participated in
continuous professional

Name of director development*
EEHA SHGEEEER"
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES
LU Hongbing BALE v
TANG Shu Pui Simon BB S v
HON Ming Sang FRERE v
WU Fei SR v
* Attend seminars/conferences/forums/briefings/workshops/programmes; and/or HEEER EERE  CEERASHEER
read materials relevant to the business, director’s duties, corporate governance EMHEZEEE®g wiE S mne TE
or regulatory updates, etc. W,/ 852, R/ SBEERBZTIY
N /= ma T =
CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EF > BRITEREER
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER HITE

Mr. GUO Lin, the chairman, has provided leadership for the Board EFHMELEBEEETGULRBRREEZSE
and ensures that the Board works effectively and that all important ~ BGE{ERFTE EE BRI ER IR ©
issues are discussed in a timely manner.

Mr. ZHANG Yu (resigned on 9 July 2018), and after the resignation {F LA (RZZE—N\FLANLHEHR) &
of Mr. ZHANG Yu, Mr. CHEUNG Ka Lung, Savio, each of whom RZEBESLE (RNRFIRERBE)  SAHLE
was/is in charge of the office of the chief executive officer, was/is &/IREEFTERATENRL  BEERE
responsible for managing the Company’s day-to-day businesses AR RIB B ESEREITARAREZHREERIK
and implementing major strategies and policies of the Company. The H ° £/F * BERHITE LB EERNTEHT
positions of the chairman, the chief executive officer and the deputy ~ RIATHEE - AR B BUEREED T -

chief executive officer are held by separate individuals so as to

maintain an effective segregation of duties.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment (as the case may be) with the Company for a period of
three years. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and are eligible for election in accordance
with the Articles. A new Director is subject to re-election by the
shareholders at the first general meeting after his or her appointment
in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Articles, one-third of the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall
retire from the office and being eligible offer themselves for re-election
provided that every Director shall be subject to the retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Remuneration Committee on 22
November 2013. The Remuneration Committee currently consists
of two executive Directors, namely Mr. GUO Lin and Mr. JIANG
Tianging; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
LU Hongbing, Mr. TANG Shu Pui Simon and Mr. HON Ming Sang. Mr.
LU is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among
others:

- formulating remuneration policy for approval by the Board,
which shall take into consideration factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment, employment
conditions, and responsibilities, and individual performance of
the Directors, senior management, and the general staff; and

- ensuring none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration.
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Throughout the year, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held to, amongst others, review and approve the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management of the Company.
The attendance records of individual committee members are as
follows:

Number of meeting
attended/eligible to attend

GUO Lin 1/1
JIANG Tianging 0/0
(appointed to the Remuneration Committee
on 9 July 2018)
LU Hongbing 1/1
TANG Shu Pui Simon 1/1
HON Ming Sang 1/1
ZHANG Yu 0/1

(resigned on 9 July 2018)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the
following work:

- provided the recommendation to the Board with respect to the
remuneration of Mr. WU Fei;

- reviewed the performance of the Directors and senior
management, and made recommendations as to their
discretionary bonus and remuneration package;

— reviewed the remuneration policy and annual bonus policy; and

- after due consideration, made recommendations in respect of
above reviews to the Board for approval.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Nomination Committee on 22 November
20183. The Nomination Committee currently consists of two executive
Directors, namely Mr. GUO Lin and Mr. JIANG Tianging and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. LU Hongbing, Mr.
TANG Shu Pui Simon and Mr. HON Ming Sang. Mr. GUO Lin is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include, among others:

- reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;

- making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors; and

- identifying suitable and qualified individuals to join the Board.

Throughout the year, one meeting of the nomination committee was
held and the attendance records of individual committee members
are as follows:

Number of Meetings
attended/eligible to attend

GUO Lin 1/1
JIANG Tianging 0/0
(appointed to the Nomination Committee
on 9 July 2018)

LU Hongbing 1/1
TANG Shu Pui Simon 1/1
HON Ming Sang 1/1
ZHANG Yu 1/1

(resigned on 9 July 2018)

During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the following
work:

= provided the recommendation to the Board with respect to the
appointment of Mr. Wu Fei;

= reviewed the confirmations of independence from the
independent non-executive Directors;

- reviewed the nomination policy and board diversity policy;

- reviewed the re-election of the retiring Directors at the AGM of
the Company held on 28 May 2018; and

- after due consideration, made recommendations in respect of
above reviews to the Board for approval.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has established a set of nomination policy setting out
the approach to nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to shareholders for election
as Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual
vacancies. The criteria of nomination have been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to, skills, experience,
qualifications and aspects as detailed in the board diversity policy.

During this year, the Company reviewed its nomination policy for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure to help identifying
and nomination of candidates for Directors. All valid nomination
of candidates, accompanied with biographical details, would be
presented to the Board for consideration. Consideration would be
given to factors such as the candidate’s integrity, experience and
qualifications relevant to the Group’s business. It is believed that
members of the Nomination Committee collectively would have
required relevant knowledge and skills to identify, invite and evaluate
qualifications of nominated candidates for directorship.

The process of our appointment and re-election of Directors are as
follows:

Potential new Directors are identified and considered for appointment
at any time by the Board upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee. Nomination Committee considers the candidates based
on merit having regard to the knowledge, experience, skills and
expertise as well as the overall board diversity which, in the opinion of
the Directors, will enable them to make positive contributions on the
performance of the Board and makes recommendations to the Board
as appropriate. Emoluments of new Directors will be considered by
the Remuneration Committee.

Newly appointed members by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board is subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment or as addition to the existing Board
is subject to re-election by Shareholders at the first AGM after their
appointment. All executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are subject to re-election by shareholders every three years.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has established a set of board diversity policy setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board with the aims of
enhancing Board’s effectiveness and corporate governance as well
as achieving our business objectives and sustainable development.
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, required expertise,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

The current Board consists of a diverse mix of Board members
appropriate to the business needs of the Company, which is briefly
set out below:
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Designation

Skills, knowledge
and professional
experience Mot

Executive Director
Independent non-executive Director

Corporate Management
Business Investment
Banking
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WITES
B IFATES

EREE
BERE
RTT

Accounting
Manufacturing & Trading
Legal

Finance

Financial Management
Compliance

Teaching Scholar

Academic
background

Bachelor’s degree
Master’s degree
Professor grade

Note: Directors may possess multiple skills, knowledge and professional experience.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Board established the Corporate Governance Committee
on 22 November 2013. The Corporate Governance Committee
currently consists of two executive Directors, namely Mr. GUO Lin
and Mr. JIANG Tianging, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. LU Hongbing, Mr. TANG Shu Pui Simon and
Mr. HON Ming Sang. Mr. GUO Lin is the chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee.

The main duties of the Corporate Governance Committee include,
among others:

= developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board;

= reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;

- reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors; and

- reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Throughout the year, one meeting of the Corporate Governance
Committee was held and the attendance records of individual
committee members are as follows:

Number of Meetings
attended/eligible to attend

GUO Lin 1/1
JIANG Tianging 0/0
(appointed to the Corporate Governance Committee
on 9 July 2018)

LU Hongbing 1/1
TANG Shu Pui Simon 1/1
HON Ming Sang 1/1
ZHANG Yu 1/1

(resigned on 9 July 2018)

During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee performed the
following work:

- reviewed and monitored the policies and practices of the Group
on corporate governance;

- approved the Corporate Governance Report and Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the year 2017; and

- after due consideration, made recommendations in respect of
above reviews to the Board for approval.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee on 22 November 2013.
The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. LU Hongbing, Mr. TANG Shu Pui
Simon and Mr. HON Ming Sang. Mr. LU Hongbing is the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The audited annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee members who have provided advice and comments
thereon.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include, among others:

- monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual and interim financial reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgments and accounting policies contained
therein;
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- satisfying themselves as to the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and as
to the adequacy of the external and internal audits;

- making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

= reporting the findings and making recommendations to the
Board on a regular basis.

Throughout the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held to
review and discuss with the management of the Company and the
external auditor the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, as well as internal audit functions, internal controls and
other financial reporting matters. The attendance records of individual
committee members are set out below:

Number of Meetings
attended/eligible to attend

LU Hongbing 2/2
TANG Shu Pui Simon 2/2
HON Ming Sang 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the following work:

- reviewed the appointment and remuneration of BDO Limited as
the Group’s auditor;

- reviewed the continuing connected transactions conducted by
the Group;

- reviewed the interim and annual financial statements, reports,
and results announcement of the Group for the year prior to
publication; and

— after due consideration, made recommendations in respect of
above reviews to the Board for approval.
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AUDITOR REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, remuneration payable to
the auditor of the Group is approximately HK$1,200,000 for audit
services.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group’s results and cash flows for the year then
ended and properly prepared on a going concern basis in accordance
with the applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties which may
affect the Company’s business or cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged and appointed Ms. WONG Ka Man, a
representative from an external secretarial service provider, as the
company secretary of the Company. The primary contact person with
the company secretary of the Company is the deputy chief executive
officer of the Company. Ms. Wong has duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In accordance with the Articles, shareholders holding not less than
10% of the paid up capital of the Company can convene an EGM
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company. In addition, shareholders can raise any questions relating
to published information and latest strategic plan of the Group with
the Directors. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and
on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings. Shareholders
can also submit enquiries to the management and send proposals
to be put forward at shareholders’ meeting to the Board or senior
management by sending e-mails to ir@cefcfi.com.hk.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group has adopted a dividend policy setting out the principle and
guidelines by the Group to apply declaration, payment or distribution
of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders. The distribution of
dividend will be considered and determined by the Board based on
the Group’s operating results, cash flow, financial position, business
prospects, and statutory and regulatory restrictions relating to
dividend distributions as well as other factors the Board considers
appropriate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a high level
of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. The Company
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and public investors.

The Company maintains various communication channels with
its shareholders and the investment public to ensure that they are
kept abreast of the Company’s latest news and development. The
Company updates its shareholders on its development, financial
results and major events through its annual and interim reports. Al
published information is promptly uploaded to the website of the
Company at www.cefcfi.com.hk.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there is no change to the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company, the latest
version of which is available on both the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group highly values the importance of internal control and risk
management for the smooth running of its business. The Board is
responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems in order to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and
records for the provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring
compliance with the relevant rules and regulations.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Corporate Governance Committee closely monitors the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and reports to the Board regularly. The Corporate
Governance Committee shall report to the Board immediately once
any non-compliance issues are noted.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
engaged an independent external assurance provider to perform the
internal audit function, who is responsible for carrying out the analysis
and independent apprasial of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The Board has conducted an annual review of its risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2018,
which covered relevant financial operational, compliance control and
risk management function by reviewing the reports issued by the
independent external assurance provider. The annual review also
considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the accounting as well as financial reporting function.

The Board is of the view that the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate. The Board
will continue to assess the effectiveness of its risk management
and internal control systems by considering reviews and
recommendations made by the Corporate Governance Committee
and senior management.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information
should be announced immediately when it is the subject of a
decision. The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information are as follows:

- the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong;
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i

=ERAWE

the Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information to ensure inside information remains confidential
until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved. Inside information is restricted to relevant parties on
a need-to-know basis so as to ensure confidentiality;

the Group strictly prohibits unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information;

the Group has also implemented procedures to guard against
possible mishandling of inside information within the Group
including notification of regular blackout period and securities
dealing restrictions to Directors and relevant employees; and

the Group keeps the Directors and employees appraised of the
latest regulatory updates on disclosure requirements of inside
information.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report issued
by CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited has set
forth the Group’s support to various sustainable development efforts
and ESG concepts, visions and policies during 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018 (“the Year”).

Scope of the Report

The ESG Report describes the environmental and social policies
of the core businesses of the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong,
including (i) design, manufacturing and trading of apparel products;
and (i) provision of loan financing business. During the Year, the
Group takes the environmental and social performance of the plant in
Jiaxing, China (“Jiaxing Plant”) and three offices in Hong Kong as the
disclosure focus of the key performance indicators'. For details about
corporate governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 29 to 46.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report is compiled on the basis of Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Main
Board Listing Rules issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited following the principles of materiality, quantitative, balance
and consistency.

Comment and Feedback

For details about environmental, social and corporate governance of
the Company, please refer to our official website (http://www.cefcfi.
com.hk) and annual report. We value your views on this report, and
please email any comment or suggestion on the report to: info@cefcfi.
com.hk.

U In the 2017 ESG Report, the scope of key performance indicators only includes
the performance of Jiaxing Plant.
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RIR - dERERHE

ESG RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT

Governance Framework of ESG

The Group is committed to the implementation of corporate goals
and visions as well as the active fulfillment of social responsibilities.
We have developed ESG management approach to benefit all
stakeholders, contribute to society and protect the environment
under the principle of sustainable development.

For the sake of effective top-down implementation of sustainable
development strategy, the Group has developed an independent
internal control and risk management framework with the Company’s
Board, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and senior management as
the core. Moreover, we will review and adjust relevant sustainable
development policies from time to time to meet the expectations and
needs of different stakeholders.

The ESG governance framework of the Group is as follows:

Board of Directors

° Developing and approving the development and business
strategies, policies, annual budget and business plan of the Group

° Reviewing, resolving and reporting all environmental and social
issues listed at the guideline level and scope.

g
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

° Executing the duties entrusted by the Board, including the overall
strategies and approach on operational, financial, environmental
and social issues and obligations.

o Analyzing and establishing key performance indicators

o Coordinating with the objectives, visions and policies of the Group
to carry out supervision and continual actions

Senior Management

° Leading and supervising the implementation of sustainable
development objectives and policies of the Group

v

Business Unit

o Coordinating and implementing ESG policies and measures at
different stages of business operations, such as environmental
protection policies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Stakeholders Engagement

The management and staff from various departments holding key
positions in the Group jointly prepare the ESG Report of the Year and
assist the Group in reviewing its operating conditions. The opinion
collection of the management and other staff enables the Group to
identify major issues at the environmental and social levels and make
relevant disclosure and response in the ESG Report.

In the meantime, the Group attaches great importance to the
opinions of different stakeholders, which are taken as the basis for
the development of our sustainable development policies. Therefore,
we are committed to communicating with stakeholders in a
diversified way, understanding and trying our best to respond to their
expectations and requirements, so as to improve our performance in
ESG.
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Stakeholder
&

Expectations and
Requirements

HIEEER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - HERERHRE

Ways of Communication and
Response

BREDELR

Government and

Regulatory Authorities
BT BB B

Shareholders

PR

Partners

BIERH

Customers

P
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Abiding by national policies,
laws and regulations

B TBERBRMERER

Promoting local employment

EENIH T B

Paying taxes on time

R

Returns

B4R

Compliant operation

BRES

Enhancing company value

RAARNEE

Improving information
transparency and implementing
effective communication

e EMERERERSER

Operational integrity

MERE

Fair competition

NS TE

Performing contract according to laws

HOEEH)

High quality products and services

B E E mn B AR S

Health and safety

EREZ S

Performing contract according to laws
HEBL

Operational integrity

HIERE

e Regular reporting of information
5E HARE 15 2
e Regular communication with
regulatory authorities
EHHEE ERIEER
e Inspection and supervision
REREE

e General meetings
RS
e Company announcements
AR
e E-mail, telephone communication
and company website
B - BrEWA LA M

e Reviews and evaluation meetings
BLHEFNGE

e Business communication
L3

e Engagement and cooperation
2ENAE

e Customer service center and hotline
B RRG R O FNEER

e Customer communication meetings
BRBEREE

e (Calling for feedback
=5}




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

Expectations and

Ways of Communication and

Stakeholder Requirements Response
BHE HZEER BEEEERN
Environment e Compliant emission e Communicating with local
R ETHE environmental authorities

Energy conservation and B2 M IRIFIBFI R

emission reduction e Submitting reports
B HE B HRE
e Ecological protection

REERE
Industry e |ndustrial standards development e Participating in industry forums
7% TTRZESE DEITRRIE

® |nvestigation and exchange visits
ERE

Staff e Rights and interests protection e Staff communication meetings
BT REmAEE BT ERS

Community and the Public
HERAR

e Occupational health
BEREE

e Remuneration and benefits
HrME A

e Career development

BRER

e |mproving community environment
HEMRIRIE
e Participating in public welfare
undertakings
DHENHEE
e [nformation disclosure and
transparency
B FFER

e Training and workshops
LRSI T Ve
e Employee activities

8 T)RE)

e Company website
NSIF A

e Company announcements
NGIVN-S

e Social media platforms
HREBTE
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RIR - dERERHE

GREEN OPERATION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group adheres to the environmental
approach of “observing environmental protection regulations,
raising environmental awareness, emphasizing pollution prevention,
optimizing resource utilization, striving to save energy and reducing
consumption, continually improving” during apparel manucturing to
shoulder the social responsibility of environmental protection. The
Group strictly abides by environmental laws and regulations enacted
by the country and local environmental department, including but
not limited to the Environmental Protection and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Atmospheric Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes and Cleaner Production
Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China, carries out close
monitoring on activities with potential impact on the environment,
grasps the emission status of pollutants and their impact on the
surrounding environment, and fulfills its responsibilities and obligations
of environmental protection.

During the Year, no violation of regulations on emission, wastewater,
waste and noise or other relevant environmental laws and regulations
was involved or discovered by the Group.

Environmental Management System

The Group has established a sound environmental management
system and developed relevant systems and procedures including
but not limited to environmental management, pollution control
management and solid waste management. The environmental
management system is composed of four parts of “planning,
implementation, inspection and correction, and review”. The
environmental management objectives, indicators and plans shall
be implemented within each department upon approval, and
managers shall be responsible for supervising and inspecting the
implementation of the plan. Meanwhile, regular environmental
management review meetings are held to ensure the effective
implementation of environmental approach, objectives, indicators
and plans to maintain the continuous applicability, adequacy and
effectiveness of the environmental management system, listen to
reports on environmental protection, investigate and solve major
environmental problems in a timely manner.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

The environmental management system of the Group is as follows:

Planning

&

Identifying, assessing
and confirming significant
environmental aspects
Bl FHE KRR
BRIEEAR

Identifying applicable laws,
regulations and other
requirements
BAIEREERE  ER R
HihZEK

Formulate environmental
objectives, indicators
and plans
FIERERR BEK

TE

Implementation
Bl

Practising environmental
objectives, indicators and
plans according to its
responsibilities by each unit
BEMURBEABEERR
FERF - BEMSR

Providing staff training on
relevant laws, regulations
and environmental approach
REBAERERLIRE
778 %R B TR

Implementing emergency
preparedness and
response measures
B e =LA
LRHHIR

Inspection and
Correction

mEHEMYIE

Monitoring and measuring
activities with potential
significant environmental
impacts
AR A A EARERE
BY)E B TESRIFD A=
Carrying out compliance
evaluation and internal
audit at least once a year
BFEETRS—REHRN
FHE RN E EZ

Investigating and dealing
with non-compliance
and taking measures to
reduce impact
AEMBEIENESRER -
RIS R 8

REENRFERBRWT

Review

TE

Holding at least
one environmental
management review
meeting every year.
BERRRL—IKREE
BEe®

Emissions Management By & 1

The Group has been committed to environmental protection to  AK&E@E— g H(REDIE « FBEAS 24
reduce emission and waste during production and operation by B GiREIEBEES - LUK EEMLL BIE
adopting clean energy and controlling resource consumption, and has i HEIRATR B - ZF 5k - AEE R IR EIR
spared no effort in environmental protection over the years. Jiaxing 5@ —m T E® S 2B =6 EE B
Plant has taken a series of appropriate measures and monitoring By 7 — Z 5@ = i 5 MES B 5% - BEINA
methods, as well as provided training on pollution prevention for 8 T2t G RATEN SMEY| - LABITERE
staff to fulfill its environmental protection responsibilities. The daily  (REpET - AEBAH F LB T B R
operations of the Group are mainly located in offices and plants, and A =REE > MAEBRE D BFEH - 4
the production process only includes cutting, sewing and apparel %)« BExXE T % At FfeEA KSFEI S
manufacturing processes, so no significant amount of exhaust gas or  H #h ¥4I 88 & A S LR S TISRY) - e
other air pollutants with significant impact on the environment will be BB =R BE B B Ak 5 BB RE S EE
generated. The greenhouse gas emission of the Group mainly comes  §\BEE /54 ERES =ik ©

from vehicle fuel consumption, purchased electricity consumption

and employees’ business travels.
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RIR - dERERHE

The greenhouse gas emission data of the Group are as follows:

AEEREREBHNEENT

Greenhouse Gas Emission Unit
AEREHER By 2018
Total greenhouse gas emission tCOe 593
mERBHNES WE—SEACIREE
Scope 1: Direct emissions tCOe 43
E—  BEHEN WE—SLIREE
Scope 2: Energy indirect emissions? tCOe 448
E— : R WE—SLIRE S
Scope 3: Other indirect emissions tCOe 102
HE= : HbEEHER WE—SLIRE 2
Greenhouse gas emission intensity t COe/employee 1.83

M-_StiREE &SR

BRERBIHNEE

Wastewater Management

The production process of the Group only includes cutting, sewing,
apparel manufacturing and other processes, so the Group does not
involve the discharge of production wastewater, i.e. we discharged
0 tonnes of production wastewater in the Year, while the discharged
wastewater is mainly domestic wastewater. We clean the sundry
filter screen at the canteen’s water outlet every day, and carry out
regularly cleansing of the sewage purification device to ensure that
the discharged domestic sewage meets the Integrated Wastewater
Discharge Standard (GB8978-96) before it is discharged to the
municipal pipelines equipped with filter facilities. Moreover, we have
entrusted local environmental monitoring authorities to regularly
monitor the quality of discharged domestic sewage so as to ensure
that the water quality meets the national discharge standards.

2 Energy indirect emissions are calculated by referring to the Average Carbon
Dioxide Emission Factors of Regional Power Grid in China in 2011 and 2012
issued by the National Development and Reform Commission.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Waste Management

The Group has developed policies with regard to solid waste
management, collected waste separately in various departments and
working unit and recycled where possible. In addition, the random
stacking of solid waste is strictly prohibited, while non-hazardous
and hazardous wastes that cannot be reused must be collected and
handled by qualified units. With effective waste disposal strategies
and policies, the Group has minimized the environmental risks and
impacts caused by waste. During the Year, the non-hazardous wastes
generated by the Group are mainly domestic wastes, paper, kitchen
wastes and production wastes, including waste cloth and waste
electric wires. 544 tonnes of non-hazardous wastes were generated
by the Group during the Year, with an average of 1.68 tonnes of non-
hazardous wastes per employee. Moreover, no significant amount
of hazardous waste was generated by the Group within its business
operations, and therefore no relevant disclosure was made.

Noise Management

The Group adopts noise reduction measures on equipment that
generates heavy noise to meet the emission standards of the
industry for noise, including the Emission Standard for Industrial
Enterprises Noise at Boundary (GB12348-90), and strives to reduce
the significant impact of noise on surrounding environment. The noise
reduction measures we have adopted to maintain the noise reduction
effects include sealing the glasses of production units, intensifying
maintenance of equipment and adjusting the shock-absorbing
function of equipment.
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RIR - dERERHE

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group adheres to the environmental protection approach of
optimizing resource utilization and striving for energy saving and
consumption reduction. Through formulation, implementation and
improvement of resources and energy management policies and
procedures, together with standardization and effective use of
resources, the Group aims at reducing wastage of resources and
environmental pollution, while enhancing efficiency. We actively
promote environmental education to employees, and enhance their
awareness of environmental protection through publicity on corporate
bulletin board and training, so as to practice the concept of energy
saving, consumption reduction, reduction of wastes at source,
effective use of resources and green office. We also monitor the use
of water, electricity, paper, packaging materials and other resources.
Because the water consumption and discharge of the Group’s
three offices in Hong Kong are solely controlled by the property
management company of the building, we have no access to the
water consumption data of these three offices. In the Year, the water
consumption in Jiaxing plant is 12,077 cubic meters in total and
46.27 cubic meters per employee on average.
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RIR - HERERHE

The data of use of resources of the Group are listed as below: AEEERERESENT

Use of Resources Unit

ERER B 2018

Total energy consumption MWh 822

BEREMEE JKEL I
Non-renewable fuel consumption MWh 170
NI BAEREES JKFLBF
Purchased electricity MWh 652
BEENE JK LB

Energy consumption intensity MWh/employee 2.53

EREERE JKEK,BE

Total paper packaging tonnes 37
materials consumption U

MEREMEHERE

Paper packaging materials kg/product quantity 0.05
consumption intensity Fr/EmHE

MEREMERATE

Total plastic packaging tonnes 5
materials consumption U

BREBBEMEERE

Plastic packaging materials kg/product quantity 0.01
consumption intensity Fr/Em#E

PREBREMERTE
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On top of actively expanding its business, the Group also keeps in
mind the concept of energy saving, consumption reduction, reduction
of wastes at source and green office. Therefore, the following
measures have been adopted for our commitment of practicing our
environmental protection concept in our daily operation:

Energy Saving and Consumption Reduction:

° Establish energy monitoring and evaluation system to avoid
energy wastage through monitoring main energy consuming
equipment and managing each department’s energy
consumption.

° Replace existing high energy consuming equipment with new
energy efficient equipment.

o Study and perfect technical standards and utilize new process,
new materials and new equipment to improve production
efficiency and reduce resource consumption.

° Turn off all power consuming equipment before leaving the
office.

° Set the air conditioner in any office to a temperature of no lower
than 26°C in summer and no higher than 23°C in winter.

° Decrease by half the light tubes in any office and use LED lights
to conserve electricity.

° Employ energy saving transformer to improve power switching
rate and reduce power and energy consumption.

Reduction of Wastes at Source:

° Adopt measures of source control, comprehensive utilization
and recycling to reduce the waste production as far as possible.

o Upgrade production equipment, utilize computerized typesetting
and provide employee training to control the fabric usage and
reduce scrap production.

° Resell surplus fabric to second-hand fabric recyclers to reduce
fabric disposal
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Effective Use of Resources:

° Post environmental protection information in office, kitchen and
washrooms to remind and encourage employees to save water
and further enhance their awareness of water saving.

° Maintain regularly valves and pipelines, replace and repair any
leaking pipe timely.

Green Office:

° Encourage employees to reuse paper and print on both sides.

° Promote paperless office and communicate internally with email
instead of paper documents

° Decrease the frequency of travelling for business by air, to
reduce the greenhouse gas emission caused by business travel.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group attaches importance to the impact of our business
operation on the environment and natural resources. In addition to
our compliance with applicable environmental laws and international
standards, we also have included the concept of environmental
protection and environmental management into our business
decision, daily operation and internal management. We are
committed to building ourselves into a comprehensive enterprise that
takes into account the benefits of economy, environment and society.

In order to reduce the significant impact as far as possible on
environment and natural resources, the Group identifies the
environment factors within our business scope to establish relevant
control measures and environment improvement targets. We
have also assigned specific department to follow up and handle
any problems caused by our business operation with respect to
the environment and natural resources utilization. We have kept
in file all the environmental protection works, monitoring records,
contamination accidents and other materials relating to pollution
prevention and controlling. Besides, overseas customers of the Group
visit our plants and review our environment management policies
regularly.
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RIR - dERERHE

PEOPLE-ORIENTED
Employment Standard

The Group adheres to the management approach of “people-
oriented”, places great importance to the rights and interests for
employees, and abides by the laws and regulations related to
employment, including but not limited to the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China and Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong. The
Group has gained a Gold Certificate awarded by the Worldwide
Responsible Accredited Production (WRAP), marking an affirmation
of our efforts to protect workers’ rights and interests. In order to
improve efficiency and standardize the procedure of recruitment, we
have established recruitment-related management and controlling
procedures according to the principles of fairness and impartiality,
avoiding misemployment of child labour or any discrimination during
the process of recruitment. We strive to creating a fair environment
for working, reflecting on treating all employees and applicants
equally in many aspects, including recruitment, transferring, training,
promotion, remuneration and benefits, ensuring that they enjoy equal
opportunities and are treated equally, regardless of race, gender,
age, religion, belief, marital or fertility status. For resigned employees,
we will terminate the contract in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations, and pay the remaining wages on time.

To prevent forced labour, the Group specifies the details of the
workplace, working hours and job responsibilities in the contract.
If employees have to work overtime due to business needs, the
Group will pay overtime wages according to regulations. We also
forbid taking any fees or belongings as “deposit” from employees
as well as forcing them to work or restricting their personal freedom
in any way, so as to ensure that they are employed voluntarily.
Apart from prevention of forced labour, the Group promises not to
employ child labour. The Group requires new employees to provide
true and accurate identification documents when commencing the
employment, aiming at identifying the true age of the employees
and avoiding misemployment of child labour. The Group will also
occasionally check whether child labour has been misemployed.
Once it is discovered, the Group will immediately return the child
labour to their original place of residence and bear the expenses
needed.

During the Year, no violation of laws and regulations relating to
employment and labour standard, avoiding child labour and forced
labour was involved or discovered by the Group.
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Salary and Benefits

The Group abides by the laws and regulations of China and Hong
Kong, including but not limited to the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and Minimum Wage Ordinance in Hong Kong, ensuring that the
employees’ working hours and wages meet local requirements
and providing social insurance and mandatory provident fund to
employees as required by local regulations. The Group’s salary
system is established according to several factors such as the
positions, work performance and abilities of the employees, and
would be adjusted with reference to market salary level. We will
comprehensively evaluate their knowledge and skills, their attitude
and enthusiasm to their positions. Their salaries will be adjusted base
on the evaluation results. The Group offers its employees discretionary
bonus based on the Group’s annual financial performance and the
individual performance of employees. Employees also enjoy paid
leaves, such as annual leave, marriage leave, maternity leave and
compassionate leave, apart from statutory holidays.

Employees are the important asset of the Group, whose sense of
belonging is closely related to the success of the Group. Aiming
to promote the idea of work-life balance, create an excellent
environment for work and enhance employees’ sense of belonging
to the Group, the Group hammers at improving its policies and
measures, and providing employees with the following benefits
(including but not limited to):

Distributing allowance and welfare gifts during festivals

° Providing reimbursement on transportation fee for employees
returning home during Chinese New Year

° Organising travelling trips for employees

° Providing medical health insurance for employees

° Under specified circumstances, employees can enjoy
allowances of meal and transportation for overtime work
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RIR - dERERHE

Development and Training

The Group has established a comprehensive evaluation system for
work, according to which the Group would evaluate employees’
working attitudes, abilities, performance and disciplines, thereby
enhancing employees’ understanding to their work and furnishing
an opportunity for supervisors to make a feedback about their work
performance. The evaluation results also act as the standard for their
position and salary adjustments and discretionary bonus, which will
greatly benefit employees’ individual development and productivity
enhancement.

Aiming to improve staff’s professional proficiency and follow the
development of the Group, we provide different types of training,
including internal training, external training, induction training and
on-the-job training, on the basis of the training needs of each
department. New recruits are required to attend induction training,
including job responsibilities and objectives, operational skills and
procedures, as well as regulations and policies. During the Year, the
Group’s employees have participated in different types of training,
such as management training, pollution prevention training, and
health and safety training. In addition, we encourage and support
employees to participate in personal and professional training to keep
abreast of the development of new technologies and equipment.
Eligible employees completing the training can apply for subsidies on
course fee and retrieve partial or entire cost of the training course.

Health and Safety

The Group prioritizes the health and safety of its employees, and
adheres to the production principle of “Safety First”. To avoid
accidents during work, the Group provides employees with a
safe and healthy working environment and complies with national
laws and regulations on safe production, including but not limited
to the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases and Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance in Hong Kong. Jiaxing Plant has established an
accountability system for different positions regarding production
safety, listing clearly the safety responsibilities of each unit and
unifying the standards for safety production.
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We provide safety protection equipment and supplies for our
employees, including user guide for these equipment and supplies,
to safeguard their health and safety as well as to prevent and reduce
accidents. For employees who may have access to hazardous
materials, we provide an annual health check to monitor the
negative impact of the production process on their health. Moreover,
employees are required to attend three-level safety training organised
by the Group regularly, including education at plant, working unit
and position levels. They can only operate the equipment individually
after passing the assessment. We have established plans for different
emergencies and performed drills regularly to improve employees’ risk
awareness and emergency capabilities. We attach great importance
to the bilateral communication with our employees, and encourage
them to provide advice on work safety and report on accidents and
other unsafe factors, so as to control risks of workplace and reduce
accidents. The Group also would investigate and eliminate potential
accidents to protect lives of employees and safety of properties.

To strengthen the safety management on hazardous chemicals,
Jiaxing Plant has set a safety management policy for hazardous
chemicals, which lists the safety regulations for storage, use,
transportation and disposal, so as to protect the Group’s assets,
health and safety of employees, as well as the surrounding
environment. In addition, Jiaxing Plant has implemented safety
management policy for special equipment, which requires the special
equipment operating personnel to obtain corresponding certificates
before working. Jiaxing Plant also inspects on special equipment
regularly and entrusts qualified units to carry out maintenance and
repair, ensuring the safe operation of the equipment.

During the Year, there was no significant event of accidents,
casualties or serious work accidents, whereas no violation of
laws and regulations relating to health and safety was involved or
discovered by the Group.
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RIR - dERERHE

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

The Group absorbs the idea of “green purchasing” into its
procurement process, while it implements strict procurement policies
and control procedures on all products provided by suppliers, and
establishes strict environmental stipulations. For example, we refuse
to purchase materials that are harmful to the environment or human
body according to the national restrictions.

Supply chain management is always considered as an important part
in controlling quality by the Group. The Group adheres to the quality-
oriented principle and establishes a supplier evaluation management
policy, standardizing the evaluation process and daily management
of suppliers. Referring to selecting suppliers, we strictly review the
supplier’s product quality, delivery capacity and service quality, and
require them to provide samples for reviews by our customers, so
as to ensure the quality is up to customers’ requirement. Beyond
that, we also track and monitor progress of entrusted processing
suppliers, ensuring that the quality of processed products is accord
with the requirements. The audited suppliers will be added to the
recognized supplier list, which will be inspected regularly.

The suppliers who do not meet the requirements of enterprise
development will be eliminated by the Group to strengthen
management of suppliers, and facilitate and improve the supplier
management system, thereby optimising the operation of supply
chain.

Management on Product Quality

The Group has established a comprehensive quality management
system, aiming to standardize inspection procedures and regulations,
safeguarding quality and safety of products. We review the system
regularly, ensuring that the system is still appropriate, comprehensive
and effective. According to customer’s specific requirements, the
Group is open to inspection and monitoring by the customers, and
assesses its production procedures every year, guaranteeing the
system can operate continuously and effectively, and meet with
customer requirements pragmatically.
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To ensure that equipment condition is able to achieve production
targets, relevant equipment operating personnel will check the
equipment condition daily prior to production. We also conduct
occasional inspection on production procedures and take corrective
measures as soon as failure is found. In addition, the quality of raw
materials, semi-finished products and finished products are inspected.
Only qualified products can enter the next production stage, aiming
that the products will meet the criteria of relevant standards. The
unqualified will be labelled clearly and stored separately, and then the
relevant department will analyze the cause and implement corrective
measures. The Group has established a policy on reporting incidents
to standardize quality reporting, ensure timely handling of product-
related issues and control potential risks effectively.

Customer First

The Group is committed to enhancing customer satisfaction,
since fulfilling customers’ needs is the ultimate goal of the Group’s
develpoment . We evaluate and improve the quality management
system by investigating customers’ satisfaction regularly and
collecting their opinions through questionnaires and other methods.
Meanwhile, we have established a set of policies on customer rights
and interests to regulate the handling of complaints from customers,
so that the Group’s reputation will be maintained and customer
satisfaction will be improved. Customers can complain through
letters, calls and emails, which is managed, analyzed and handled by
our specialists.

In addition, the Group attaches great importance to protecting
customer privacy due to its loan financing services. Employees
must abide by relevant industrial laws and regulations, such as
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong. They are
forbiddened to disclose customers’ information to third-party unit
without approval, adhering to professional ethics at all times. The
customers’ data is accessible to authorized personnel solely, while
staff from other departments can only retrieve and provide information
upon application to and approval by the Company.
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RIR - dERERHE

Safeguarding Intellectual Property

The Group is committed to strengthening the protection of intellectual
property. Therefore, we require employees to strictly abide by
the laws and regulations such as the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China
and Copyright Ordinance in Hong Kong. We have also made clear
requirements for the application, management, use and protection of
intellectual property for our customers and the Group, enhancing the
Group’s awareness of protecting intellectual property and corporate
interests.

During the Year, no violation of laws and regulations relating to
intellectual property was involved or discovered by the Group.

Anti-corruption

The Group advocates employees to consciously abide by the law, to
hold fast integrity, to be self-discipline and practice probity culture.
The Group abides by the laws and regulations on anti-corruption,
including but not limited to the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China and Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong. The
Group has formulated employee handbooks and systems to regulate
their behaviour, especially in loan financing business, encouraging
employees to keep honest and be self-discipline. Thus, the operating
risks will be reduced, and the interests of the company and
employees will be guaranteed. In addition, employees should not
seek personal or indirect benefits by their authority, and should avoid
situations that may involve or result in potential or actual conflicts of
interest. Once any violation is discovered, employees should report
it in written or verbal ways. Violators will be dismissed and bear legal
responsibility upon confirmation of violation after investigation.

During the Year, no violation of laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption was involved or discovered by the Group.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group attaches great importance to social responsibility, and
regards the prosperity and stability of society as the footstone of its
development. For this, the Group spares no effort to promote the
development of charities, and to support charitable projects and
activities. We also encourage employees to participate in volunteer
activities and charitable donations, enhancing their sense of social
responsibility.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - HERERHRE

ESG Index Summary Section Page
ESG 12 Bt B L
Operating Practice
(Continueq)
ZEEH (8)
Aspect BT: General Disclosure OPERATING PRACTICES
Anti-corruption — MR BB
EBEB7: RES Information on: Anti-corruption 66
(@  the policies; and R&E)S
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
REAM LA - 9% - BEFROERER -
@ B Rk
b)) ETHETARBEAZENEEERRA
HYER
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HE
Aspect B8: General Disclosure COMMUNITY INVESTMENT 66
Community —RBE HEEE
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EBHEBS : HEHRE needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
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The Board hereby present its report together with the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in design, manufacturing and
trading of apparels as well as provision of money lending services.
Details of the principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
areas and businesses is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
its state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2018 are set out in
the financial statements on pages 98 to 228.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five years is set out in the financial summary
on page 5 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements in this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 38(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of change in equity,
respectively in this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders, comprising share premium and
contributed surplus, amounted to approximately HK$364,012,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$38,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles nor the
laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2018.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the percentages of sales
and purchases attributable to the Group’s major customers and
suppliers, respectively are as follows:

Sales
— The largest customer 43.6%
— The total of the five largest customers 81.3%

Purchases
— The largest supplier 14.1%
— The total of the five largest suppliers 51.3%

None of the Director, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company, which owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, to the best knowledge of the Directors, had any interest in
the share capital of the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this annual report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GUO Lin (Chairman)

JIANG Mingsheng

JIANG Tianging

Hubert TIEN

LIU Chun Fai

ZHANG Yu (resigned on 9 July 2018)
WANG Zhou (vacated on 8 March 2019)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LU Hongbing

TANG Shu Pui Simon

HON Ming Sang

WU Fei (appointed on 15 February 2018)

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Hubert TIEN, Mr.
HON Ming Sang and Mr. WU Fei will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM has
entered into any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service contracts of the Directors, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or
existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under article 164 of the Articles, every Director, secretary, other
officers and auditor for the time being of the Company shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices
or trusts; provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter
in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said
persons.

Such permitted indemnity provisions have been in force throughout
the year. The Company has arranged appropriate D&O Insurance.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 9 to 15 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

No Director (except Mr. WANG Zhou who could not be contacted
to make the confirmation), had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party for the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to
be naotified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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RARBRBHER

Approximate
percentage of

Long positions in Shares of the Company

Capacity/nature Number of ordinary

Name of interest shares held interests
®H B RntE FsEBEREE BHOERE DL
Mr. Guo Lin Interest in controlled 860,120,000 50.89%
SO E corporation (Note 1)

R rE R (1)
Mr. Jiang Tianging Interest in controlled 860,120,000 50.89%
BEELE corporation (Note 2)

RiEEER (FF2)
Mr. Jiang Mingsheng Beneficial owner (Note 3) 25,857,000 1.53%
ZHRERE BEnEAA (FiFE3)
Mr. Hubert Tien Interest in controlled 9,000,000 0.53%
MRS AE corporation (Note 4)

REE R (MiE4)
Mr. Tang Shu Pui Simon Beneficial owner 5,000,000 0.30%
BRI IE e E=BEAA

Notes: MIE

1.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Guo Lin (“Mr. Guo”) is deemed to be interested in 1.

860,120,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately 50.89% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company, which are directly held by New
Seres CEFC Investment Fund LP, which in turn is owned as to 50% by its general
partner, New Seres International Asset Management (Cayman) Limited, and is in
turn owned as to 50% by New Seres Investment Co., Ltd.* 34482 BB EHR
P2 &]). New Seres Investment Co., Ltd.* (#4448 2 B8 & BRAF]) is owned
as to 40% by Mr. Guo and 60% by Shanghai Chengyi Corporate Management
Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (L& B PR ETEABRCE(ARAE)).
Shanghai Chengyi Corporate Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
(EBARCEEBABLE(ARAE))is 10% directly owned by Mr. Guo (as
its limited partner) and is 1% owned by Shanghai Chengyi Business Consulting
Company Limited* (1 /&& R 154G R A 7)) as its general partner, which is in
turn directly owned as to 80% by Mr. Guo.
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2. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Jiang Tianqging (“Mr. Jiang TQ”) is deemed to be
interested in 860,120,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
50.89% of the total number of issued shares of the Company, which are directly
held by New Seres CEFC Investment Fund LP, which in turn is owned as to 50%
by its general partner, New Seres International Asset Management (Cayman)
Limited, and is in turn owned as to 50% by New Seres Investment Co., Ltd.* (&
A2 BRITEBMR A T]). New Seres Investment Co., Ltd.* (Hi#a#ME 2 IBIREHR
[R727]) is owned as to 60% by its limited partner Shanghai Chengyi Corporate
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (F/B8EB P EEBAB DX
(BBRA&#)), which in turn is owned directly as to 33% by Mr. Jiang TQ (as its
limited partner) and is owned as to 1% by Shanghai Chengyi Business Consulting
Company Limited* (L /&& R #5E B R A7) as its general partner, which is in
turn directly owned as to 20% by Mr. Jiang TQ.

3. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Jiang Mingsheng (“Mr. Jiang MS”) is the indirect
beneficial owner of 25,857,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 1.53% of the total number of issued shares of the Company, which
are directly held by New Seres CEFC Investment Fund LP, which in turn is owned
as to 50% by its general partner, New Seres International Asset Management
(Cayman) Limited, and is in turn owned as to 50% by New Seres Investment
Co., Ltd.* (Hr#a 482 BB AR AF]). New Seres Investment Co., Ltd.* (#4443
ZRIRE AR AR is owned as to 60% by its limited partner Shanghai Chengyi
Corporate Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (E/8& R XSRS
BHE(BRAE)) which in turn is directly owned as to 20% by Mr. Jiang MS as
its limited partner.

4. These shares are held by All Divine Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr. Hubert
Tien. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hubert Tien is deemed to be interested in the
9,000,000 shares under the SFO

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company have or are deemed to
have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notifiable to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or recorded in the register required to be maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notifiable to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER TERRREMALRE
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN {7 - AHEAR 7 R RARE 91
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES & X &

As at 31 December 2018, so far as it was known by or otherwise RZZE—NF+_A=+—H ' BLAREE
notified to any directors or the chief executive of the Company, the fAIEHkEEITHABMASESH - A
particulars of the corporations or persons (other than the directors A Bk {0 RAARERR (D #E B 5% LA iz i
and the chief executive of the Company) which had 5% or more &R BIRIEE S REIEKHIZE 336 (KT E
interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded ~ HIELMAVEESIA T (KRB EEREE
in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were  TERA BERAM) FEIBANT -

as follows:
agm - — A
Long positions in Shares of the Company RARQBRDOTFE
Approximate
Capacity/nature Number of ordinary percentage of
Name of interest shares held interests
HE LB B1p g B REREA BT DL
New Seres CEFC Beneficial owner (Note 1) 860,120,000 50.89%
Investment Fund LP EnEa A (FiEE1)
New Seres International Interest in controlled 860,120,000 50.89%
Asset Management corporation (Note 2)
(Cayman) Limited Y EEEE (MiE2)
New Seres Investment Interest in controlled 860,120,000 50.89%
Co., Ltd.* corporation (Note 3)
(a2 BIREBRAA]) 2y EE R (FisE3)
Shanghai Chengyi Corporate Interest in controlled 860,120,000 50.89%
Management Partnership corporation (Note 4)
(Limited Partnership)* Ry rE R (MisE4)
(EEERBLHER
R E (BREX))
Shanghai Chengyi Business Interest in controlled 860,120,000 50.89%
ConsultingCompany Limited* corporation (Note 5)

(bEERABHERABRAR) Ry rEEs (H5E5)
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Name
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Capacity/nature
of interest

g4 fEtE
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Number of ordinary
shares held

s BEREE

ESHREE

Approximate
percentage of
interests

BOEZEIL

CEFC Shanghai Financial
Services Co., Ltd.*
(LBEESRREAERADR)

Shanghai CEFC Financial
Holding Co., Ltd.*

(EBETMEE R
BRATA])

CEFC China Energy
PR E(FREIRBIRAR]

CEFC China Energy
Investment Fund Co., Ltd*

(LEERESIRERRAT)

China CEFC International
Equity Investment Co., Ltd.*

(P EEEERRERE
BRAR])

Shanghai Zhong’an United
Investment Fund Co., Ltd.*

(LR ZHAaREES
BRI BRAR)

Wisely Inc Limited
KEMBRAA]

Shanghai Huaxin Group

(Hongkong) Limited

LEEEER (F8)
BRAA

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 6)
R rEEn (fiske)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 7)
YR EE R (MEE7)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 8)
R rEEn (FisEs)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 9)
Y EEEE (MFE9)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 10)
2y EE R (FisE10)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 11)
Y EE g (EE 1)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 12)
X EEER (MiiE12)

Interest in controlled
corporation (Note 13)
Y EE R (M1FE13)

860,120,000

860,120,000

860,120,000

860,120,000

860,120,000

860,120,000

860,120,000

860,120,000

50.89%

50.89%

50.89%

50.89%

50.89%

50.89%

50.89%

50.89%
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Capacity/nature

Number of ordinary

Approximate
percentage of

Name of interest shares held interests
HE LB B3, RERME g EREE BHAERB DL
Shanghai CEFC Interest in controlled 860,120,000 50.89%
International Group* corporation (Note 14)
(HEEEREREE) RiEEEER (MFE14)
BRAA]
Mr. Su Weizhong Interest in controlled 860,120,000 50.89%
BERLE corporation (Note 15)
Sk @ (F15)
Ms. Yi Qianru Deemed interest of spouse 860,120,000 50.89%
Yi Qianru Z =+ and interest in controlled
corporation (Note 16)
WARVE R B R KX
R rEER (HE16)
Ms. Han Wenjing Deemed interest of spouse 860,120,000 50.89%
BEFLLT and interest in controlled
corporation (Note 17)
WARVE R B R X
SEEEE (F3E17)
Mr. Li Yong Interest in controlled 860,120,000 50.89%
TELE corporation (Note 18)
RiELEER (fizE18)
Ms. Feng Qiuling Deemed interest of spouse 860,120,000 50.89%
S EZ and interest in controlled
corporation (Note 19)
WARVE R BRI R X
RiErE R (M 19)
Ms. Tin Yuen Sin Carol Beneficial owner and interest in 114,362,000 6.77%

AHmELL

controlled corporation
(Note 20)

BB AR T EEER
(F#3E20)
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owned as to 100% by China CEFC International Equity Investment Co., Ltd.* (+
B (= BRI E B IR A 7).

Approximate
Capacity/nature Number of ordinary percentage of
Name of interest shares held interests
HE LB B3, RERME s REREA BOEZE T
Favor Way Investments Beneficial owner (Note 20) 110,000,000 6.51%
Limited EnmEAA (KiFE20)
Hua Zhen Beneficial owner 87,000,000 5.15%
E30 EnEAA
Notes: 3T
New Seres CEFC Investment Fund LP is an exempted limited liability partnership 1. New Seres CEFC Investment Fund LP &—ZXNK =
registered in the Cayman Islands on 20 January 2017. T—+tF-AZ+HEREESIMNEREE
REMFEH -
New Seres International Asset Management (Cayman) Limited is the general 2. New Seres International Asset Management
partner of New Seres CEFC Investment Fund LP, and is owned as to 50% by (Cayman) Limited & New Seres CEFC Investment
New Seres Investment Co., Ltd* (#4482 B & BRAF]) and 50% by CEFC Fund LP MEBAERA - WO RIRFMAAZBIRE
Shanghai Financial Services Co. Ltd.* (/B (Z & BRIS AR AR). BRATR LEEESRRBER D ALES 50%
New Seres Investment Co., Ltd* FT444H > BIRE B2 F)) is owned as to 40% 3. #H#AHA 2 BKIREBR AR AFELEES40% #
by Mr. Guo and 60% by Shanghai Chengyi Corporate Management Partnership W BEERROCXERABLE (BRE%) #
(Limited Partnership)* (L BFE B HXBEEEBEE(BRERE)). B 60% s °
Shanghai Chengyi Corporate Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)® (£ 4. LBARGEXEREBLX (ERAK) i (AH
EBHERCEETEABLE(AMRAEE)) is owned, amongst others, as to 1% by BIE) LEEREBEAERAREE 1% Ex -
Shanghai Chengyi Business Consulting Company Limited* (/8& RS 4 MEPEAEREE10% - M LEREBI3% &
FRAR]), 10% by Mr. Guo, 33% by Mr. Jiang TQ and 20% by Mr. Jiang MS. 0 RAESERESR 20% o
Shanghai Chengyi Business Consulting Company Limited* (-/8#&Rm@#%%# 56 2 LHEARBBEARAERARSHHADBLERES
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Partnership)* (L/FRPEERGBEE(ERER)).
CEFC Shanghai Financial Services Co., Ltd* (F8EE¢RBKEERAR) s 6. EEELRMBERAFTHLETERESRE
owned as to 100% by Shanghai CEFC Financial Holdings Co., Ltd* (1-}8 (= AR AFHA 100% i -
SRMERBRAF]).
Shanghai CEFC Financial Holdings Co., Ltd* (LS ESBIERERAR)is 7. LETECERERARAFSETHEESERE
owned as to approximately 87.67% by CEFC China Energy Company Limited* (8 RARIEEHB7.67% i - AABEREERBLN
B (EALIRARAT]), approximately 6.17% by Mr. Su Weizhong, approximately 6.17% #Ezx + AEPIHEESCAE A £94.93% s
4.93% by Mr. Zheng Xiongbin and approximately 1.23% by Shanghai Zhong’an MHEGRLHERERESROBRARERL
United Investment Fund Co., Ltd.* (B8 ZE S IR EE SO BRA ). 1.23% #Eam ©
CEFC China Energy Company Limited* (1 BIZE{ZaE R AR F)) is owned as to 8.  HEFEELERERAFALEBERESKRERR
99.05% by CEFC China Energy Investment Fund Co., Ltd* (F/ 86 RESIREH REHEE 99.05% e o
FRAR]).
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China CEFC International Equity Investment Co., Ltd.* (F Bl (S EIRRAER B A
fR 2 7]) is owned as to 80% by Shanghai Zhong’an United Investment Fund Co.,
Ld (EEPRHEREESRHEBRAA).

The beneficial shareholders of Shanghai Zhong’an United Investment Fund Co.,
Ltd.* (BB RHEREES RN AR AT]) are Mr. Su Weizhong (owned as to
approximately 50%), Mr. Li Yong (owned as to approximately 49%) and Mr. Zheng
Xiongbin (owned as to approximately 1%).

Wisely Inc Limited GkZEFBRAF) is the limited partner of New Seres CEFC
Investment Fund LP and is owned as to 100% by Shanghai Huaxin Group
(Hongkong) Limited (/8 EE (B8)BRAA)).

Shanghai Huaxin Group (Hongkong) Limited /8% (5= E(EE) AR AR) is
owned as to 85.74% by Shanghai CEFC International Group Co. Ltd.* (L/8%ZE(F
HEEE AR A R]) and as to 14.26% by Gain Sun Ventures Limited.

Shanghai CEFC International Group Co. Ltd.* (E/&EEEEEEBRAR) is
owned as to 54.14% by CEFC China Energy Company Limited* (1 Bl {Z 857
AMRQA]), as to 32.41% by Shanghai CEFC Financial Holding Co., Ltd.* (/&
HZLITARAERAE]) and as to 13.45% by China CEFC International Equity
Investment Co., Ltd.* (F BIZE = BIBRIREIREBR A A]).

Mr. Su Weizhong holds 50% shares in Shanghai Zhong’an United Investment
Fund Co., Ltd.* (R8P LS REZSRHABRAF).

Ms. Yi Qianru is the spouse of Mr. Guo, the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director of the Company and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Mr. Guo.

Ms. Han Wenjing is the spouse of Mr. Jiang TQ and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Jiang TQ.

Mr. Li Yong holds 49% shares in Shanghai Zhong’an United Investment Fund Co.,
Ltd." (LB LA EESROBRAR).

Ms. Feng Qiuling is the spouse of Mr. Li Yong and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Li Yong.

Based on the disclosure of interests of Ms. Tin Yuen Sin Carol (“Ms. Tin”) filed on
28 November 2016, these 114,362,000 Shares are owned as to (i) 4,362,000
Shares beneficially by Ms. Tin; and (i) 110,000,000 Shares through Favor Way
Investments Limited, a company wholly-owned by Ms. Tin. Ms. Tin is the director
of Delta Wealth Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. By
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Tin is deemed to be interested in the 114,362,000 shares
under the SFO.

For identification purpose only

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons or entities (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its
Group members or associated corporations which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO; or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages of
the Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, the
time devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The
Directors may also receive options to be granted under a share
option scheme. The Company has conditionally adopted a share
option scheme. The details of the share option scheme are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme enables the Company to grant options to
any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any member
of the Group (the “Eligible Participant”) as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to the Group. The Company conditionally adopted
a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 22 November 2013
whereby the Board was authorised, at its absolute discretion and
subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to subscribe for
the shares of the Company to the Eligible Participant. The Scheme
remains effective following the Company’s transfer of listing from
GEM to the Main Board subject to certain immaterial amendments
to the Scheme and has been implemented in full compliance with
the requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The Scheme will
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from its
adoption date.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 60,000,000 shares, representing 3.55%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The maximum number
of shares that may be granted by the Company to any one Eligible
Participant shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.
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Upon acceptance of an option (the “Option”) to subscribe for shares
granted pursuant to the Scheme, the Eligible Participant shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company as consideration for the grant. The Option
will be offered for acceptance for a period of 21 days from the date
on which the Option is granted. The subscription price for the shares
subject to Options will be a price determined by the Board and
notified to the Eligible Participant and shall be the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the Option, which must be a
day on which trading of shares take place on the Stock Exchange (the
“Trading Day”); (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five Trading
Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the Options; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares
in issue from the date of listing of the shares on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. The Company may at any time refresh such
limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in
compliance with the Listing Rules, provided that the total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes
of the Company does not exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the
time. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to
the provisions of early termination thereof. Since the adoption of the
Scheme and during the year, no share option has been granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled, and as at 31 December 2018, no
share options under the Scheme were outstanding.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transaction which is subject to reporting and annual review
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Lease Agreement with Tactic Ally

On 13 December 2017, the Company entered into a lease
agreement with Tactic Ally Limited (“Tactic Ally”), pursuant to which
the Company agreed to lease the office unit situated at Suite
2101, 21st Floor, Convention Plaza Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong (the “Property’) from Tactic Ally for a term of
three years commencing on 13 December 2017 at a monthly rental
of HK$586,000 (inclusive of government rate but exclusive of air-
conditioning and management charges) (the “Lease Agreement”). The
Company shall pay the air-conditioning and management charges
directly to the management office of the Property.

Tactic Ally is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Huaxin Group
(Hongkong) Limited which in turn controls New Seres CEFC
Investment Fund LP, the controlling shareholder of the Company
holding 860,120,000 shares, representing approximately 50.9% of
the total issued share capital of the Company.

Summary of the transaction is as follows:
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The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in respect of the above connected transaction. The Company also
confirms that during the year under review it has followed its policies
and guidelines in determining the pricing and the terms of the
continuing connected transaction.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the Lease Agreement was entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Company and on normal
commercial terms which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole. The Directors also
confirm the auditor has confirmed the matters set out in rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules regarding the continuing connected transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements and include transaction that constitute continuing
connected transaction for which the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A under the Listing Rules have been
complied.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors (except Mr. WANG Zhou who could not be
contacted to make the confirmation), or their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) has engaged in any business that
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report. The Company has maintained a sufficient public float in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER

A report detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 29 AP EEAMEE N A FHE29E 468 o
to 46 in this annual report.

AUDITOR B EEm

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 HEZEZZE—\F+-A=1T—HIEFE 2L

December 2018 have been audited by BDO Limited, who shall AW BHREEABT B EERSTAIEHEA

retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AR AFEZ @ BHRENE T ERBBER

forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited ~ BNiGERITHIAR RBF A LB R E(F - BHE

as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. BB EERETMEBAERARALRA
AIZEAN A RE RSN RITHR R B S
AELERE -

By order of the Board EEEEMm
CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited EBEGCESRREBRAT
GUO Lin AR
Chairman FE
28 March 2019 —E-NAE=A=Z+N\ARH
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IBDO

EEE 1 +85222188288
{8H : +85228152239

Tel : +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
ERTHEPI1155E
KRHI2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CEFC HONG KONG FINANCIAL
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CEFC Hong
Kong Financial Investment Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 228, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of Inventories

Refer to notes 5(c), 9 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group has inventories of approximately HK$9.0 million as
at 31 December 2018. Inventories are carried at lower of cost
and net realisable value. The assessment of the net realisable
value of inventories is primarily based on significant management
estimates relating to the future market conditions, selling price and
assumptions. Accordingly, the valuation of inventories is considered
to be a key audit matter of our audit. Management concluded that
no impairment is necessary for the Group’s inventories for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Our response:

o Observing the Group’s inventory count to identify whether there
is any damaged or obsolete inventory;

° Testing the accuracy of the ageing profile of individual
inventory item on a sample basis by checking to the underlying
procurement correspondence;

o Assessing the subsequent usage and the net realiseable value
of inventory items on a sample basis using historic margins and
current market condition; and

° Assessing the basis for the inventory provisions, the consistency
of provisioning in line with policy and the rationale for the
recording of specific provisions.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recoverability of Trade and Bills Receivables and
Loans and Interest Receivables

Refer to notes 5(b), 9, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s trade and bills receivables and
loans and interest receivables amounted to approximately HK$18.5
million and HK$105.3 million respectively, representing significant
balances recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group.

Management performed credit evaluations for the Group’s customers
and assessed expected credit losses (“ECLs”) of trade and bills
receivables and loans and interest receivables. These assessments
were focused on the customers’ settlement history and their current
ability to pay, and took into account information specific to respective
customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customers operated. All of these assessments involved significant
judgements of management.

We identified this area as a key audit matter because management
made subjective judgements in assessing the credit standing of the
Group’s customers and the estimation of ECLs of trade and bills
receivables and loans and interest receivables.

Our response:

° Understanding, evaluating and validating the key controls over
credit risk management performed. Those key controls were
related to credit standing of each customer, identification of
events that triggered the provision for impairment of trade
and bills receivables and loans and interest receivables and
estimation of the ECLs;

° Obtaining management’s assessment of ECLs of trade and bills
receivables and loans and interest receivables and assessing
the reasonableness of the key underlying information referenced
by management. Where impairment provision was individually
made, we checked and assessed whether the impairment
provision was properly supported by considering available
forward-looking information, the debtors’ aging analysis,
settlement history and history of bad debt losses;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRELEE @)

Recoverability of Trade and Bills Receivables and EZRUREREBEREERIUR
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% @

Refer to notes 5(b), 9, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements S MRS MR ERMETSD) - 9 19% 20 (&)

(Continued)

Our response: (Continued) EE Ok : (&)

e Reviewing cash received subsequent to year end on a sample ¢  HERHNFEREDBERE RE=FER

basis to obtain evidence of the collectability on trade and bills ARG & Z) FE Y SR TE K FE U =48 DA K g
receivables and loans and interest receivables; WE TR & E WA B AT U Bl M )RR

e Testing on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile of o  FRZEHBEHERZEREL @ HE S
trade and bills receivables and loans and interest receivables by JE W R IR K2 FE L SR 4 DA B B B 5K % A
checking to the underlying sales invoices and agreements; and BIRER BN A ERIBETHERR - &

e Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures regarding ® &t EREEHEE HRKGIEREK

trade and bills receivables and loans and interest receivables, ER A RERER M EWFE - LA
the related risks such as credit risk. ARk (EERR) BENFTOME -
Impairment Assessment of Non-current Assets FER BV E &R E LA
Refer to notes 5(d), 5(f), 14, 15, 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial SRR E M EHmRMEES() - 5(f) - 14 - 15
statements 16 &2 17

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s non-current assets principally RZ-ZZ—\F+_HA=+—H E&£EHK
comprised property, plant and equipment, payments for leasehold JEMBIEE X ZBREME - HE LK&E - R
land held for own use under operating lease, goodwill and intangible  &ZMHE N FHEERNEE LR - 98
asset. REREE -

Impairment losses for non-current assets for the year ended &HZEZZT—N\F+ZA=+—HILFE " ¥
31 December 2018 are significant in the context of the Group’s MEEEREEEHN BEEENEGEE B
consolidated financial statements. BEMEBEZM -

& Annual Report 2018 44§ @—



Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment Assessment of Non-current Assets
(Continued)

Refer to notes 5(d), 5(f), 14, 15, 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Management assessed whether there was any impairment of the
carrying values of goodwill and intangible asset with indefinite useful
life and other non-current assets as at 31 December 2018 using
value-in-use (“VIU”) calculation and fair value less cost of disposal
(“FVLCOD”) respectively for each smallest identifiable group of assets
that generate independent cash flows (a cash-generating unit).
Preparing the VIU and FVLCOD calculations require management
to exercise significant judgement and critical accounting estimate,
particularly in relation to the determination of valuation techniques
and the selection of inputs like growth rates and discount rates. The
Group also worked closely with an independent external valuer to
establish and determine the appropriate techniques and inputs.

We identified impairment of non-current assets as a key audit matter
because the carrying values of these assets are material to the
consolidated financial statements and also because of the significant
management judgement and estimation required in assessing
potential impairment which could be subject to error or potential
management bias.

The recoverable amount of goodwill and intangible asset and other
non-current assets are determined by management based on VIU
and FVLCOD calculations, and concluded that no provision for
impairment was necessary for these non-current assets as at 31
December 2018.

Our response:

° Understanding and assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies used by the management and key
assumptions adopted for valuations based on our knowledge of
the businesses and industries;

o Assessing the objectivity, capability, and competence of
independent external valuer by considering its qualifications,
relevant experience and relationship with the Group;

4@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuea)

Impairment Assessment of Non-current Assets
(Continued)

Refer to notes 5(d), 5(f), 14, 15, 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Our response: (Continued)

Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the
input data used and the reasonableness of the key assumptions
used in the valuations;

Engaging a valuation expert to assist us in assessing the VIU
and FVLCOD calculations, including whether the discount rate
applied in the VIU calculation were within the range adopted by
other companies in the same industry;

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions in the cash
flow projection;

Comparing the actual results for the current year with
management’s estimates in their VIU calculation in the
previous year in order to assess the historical accuracy of the
management’s forecasting process;

Performing sensitivity analysis on the discount rate applied and
other key assumptions adopted by management to assess
what changes thereto, either individually or collectively, would
result in a different conclusion being reached and assessing
whether there were any indicators of management bias in the
selection of key assumptions; and

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures on the impairment
assessment in the consolidated financial statements.

B R BENRE

FAREEXEE »)
FREBEEREE 2

ZHEE M IERERMEESM) ~ 5() 14 15
16 %17 (&)

FEzOE: (8)
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T
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT RN B E M IEHRR
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MYE1E (&)

(Continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the o MBEEEHAURFELCEBERNES

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit ERERE  URBREERNEZER
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related B BERLEY BESERERLENR
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the BENBRERRENEHHIEAZTEKX
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude THEEAR - MEFLERBTFEEKXN
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw TEEAZ  BEEFNZEETREFRR
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the BERMREUBMRANEBEER T
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are = SR AEEETR  AERIESE
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based HER - BENERUEBEZEE RS
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s B BT ST RE AEMR - HARK
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the EMEAEER ESETHAS
Group to cease to continue as a going concern. RBECEREES -

RERBHmR (BRENEE) 0
FI3R - REBRAT - UREE T
ERCTARBBER S RFA -

rE

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the &
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, =g
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the EES
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the o 3t BESEASERIERZHNTE

financial information of the entities or business activities within BREBSRENEZRE UGS
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial HHKRERER - BEEEATESE &
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision BERRTEENEZIE BE5ERT
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely EMBEZERAE2IEE -

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other & &5t (KR E81E) BEZ TIEMNTEIEE &
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant LB NREREZEIR - BEEEREZ
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control B 58 Bl Hi 70 & &5 128 69 1 {a] & K iR PE B B 4%
that we identify during our audit. ZEEREM -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Kwok Wai

Practising Certificate Number PO6047

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SmEEZHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #EZ—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BaE FET FHETT
Revenue 'ON 7 203,892 325,445
Cost of sales SHERKAR (161,412) (229,856)
Gross profit EF| 42,480 95,589
Other income and gains E AU A R Wz 7 4,661 3,508
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (26,551) (39,245)
Administrative expenses THFAX (82,729) (73,085)
Finance costs BhE KA 8 (39) (642)
Loss before income tax BRATS B AT E B 9 (62,178) (13,875)
Income tax credit/(expense) FTisEiEe, (FAX%) 11 2,146 (1,757)
Loss for the year attributable to owners ZA2QTHEA A
of the Company BiEFEERE (60,032) (15,632)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax, 22 T#EHE AEL
attributable to owners of the Company  HftZ2EIKZE (BRFLE)
Item that may be reclassified TMREZEHFIESR
subsequently to profit or loss: BRNER
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of RMEBINEB I B
financial statements of foreign operations RE N (B518) e (1,388) 1,652
Total comprehensive income EATEBEANELFE
for the year attributable to 2HEHKEHELE
owners of the Company (61,420) (13,980)
Loss per share attributable to owners AATEE AEM
of the Company BREE 13
Basic and diluted loss per share (HK cents) SRR EA K #EEE (B10) (3.55) (1.11)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

As at 31 December 2018 R =T — \F+_-_A=1+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FERT FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN YN 14 23,465 27,198
Payments for leasehold land held for own REERETHEER
use under operating lease R E AR 15 1,661 1,806
Deposits Ee 21 - 5,000
Goodwil Bl 16 87,656 87,656
Intangible asset mpEE 17 800 800
Loans and interest receivables FEWE N EUF 8, 20 4,901 =
Deferred tax assets BRI E E 28 5,333 1,511
123,816 123,971
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 9,007 9,313
Trade and bills receivables B 5 MEWGRIE Kk IR 19 18,548 52,789
Loans and interest receivables FEUWE N FEU T 8, 20 100,438 148,881
Deposits, prepayments and Ze - ERERK
other receivables H fth B W R IE 21 19,896 17,260
Tax recoverable B EEE - 2,216
Pledged bank deposits BEIPRITER 22 3,314 6,596
Cash and bank balances e RIRITET 23 152,597 164,736
303,800 401,791
Current liabilities nREEE
Trade and bills payables B RNRIBERENEE 24 20,273 37,395
Accruals, other payables and receipts TEIREA - HMEN IR
in advance KIaWsRIa 25 18,893 39,469
Contract liabilities BHaE 26 2,031 -
Interest-bearing borrowings FREBE 27 218 325
Provision for taxation TRIE B 2,930 1,868
44,345 79,057
Net current assets RBEEEE 259,455 322,734
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 383,271 446,705
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e BRI LR

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZE— N\F+-_A=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ihE=a THET FET
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE 27 853 374
Net assets BEEFE 382,418 446,331
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners EATRERA
of the Company LR
Share capital &N 29 16,900 16,900
Reserves e 30 365,518 429,431
Total equity AT 382,418 446,331
On behalf of the Board
REEFE
Guo Lin Hubert Tien
By HEZ
Director Director
S EE
—@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7) O




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

Retained
earnings/
Share Share Merger  Statutory  Translation (Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
REEA/
kx  RORE  AfRE  iTRE  RERE  (RHER) 2
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr T Thr Thr Thr Thr T
(note 30@)  (ote 30(b)  (ote 30(c)  (note 30(d)
(Wz30E)  (Miraon)  (MEE30()  (MEE30)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-F-A 8,300 188,404 2,988 2,982 419 61,059 264,152
Loss for the year FEER - - - = = (1563 (1563
Other comprehensive income A2 EnE
- Exchange gain on translation of fnancil - &GN A
statements of foreign operations BROEN s - - - - 1652 - 1662
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EE2HUEHAE - - - - 1652 (15632)  (13,980)
Proftt appropriation to reserve B ENRR - - - 198 - (198) -
Issuance of shares <o) 8600 187559 - - = - 196159
At 31 December 2017 and R-B-t&
1 January 2018 TZA=t-AR
ZE-\£-5-H 16,900 375,963 2,988 3,180 2,07 45,229 446,331
Adjustment on adoption of BE RN RS
HKFRS 9 (note 2.1) RAZ N EL AR
(Hzk2.1) - - - - - (2,499) (2,49)
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 R-F-\5-A-H
MESIRE 16,900 375,963 2,988 3,180 201 42,736 443,838
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (60,032 (60,032
Other comprehensive income 2 EhE
- Exchange loss on translation of financial - AEESNEBEIBRR
statements of foreign operations HELER - - - - (1,388) - (1,388)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EE2EUEAE - - - - (1,388 (60,032  (61,420)
Proft appropriation to reserve B RRNET - - - 164 - (164) -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE
+-A=t+-R 16900 375963 208 334 68 (17460 382418
O Annual Report 2018 3k @—




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F B 2
Note HK$000 HK$'000
(i TR FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REREZBNHERE
Loss before income tax BRETE R AIE B (62,178) (13,875)
Adjustments for: SR AR -
Bank interest income RITRISMA 7 (295) (121)
Interest expenses FIBHY 8 39 642
Amortisation of payments for leasehold land REEHE T HERR
held for own use under operating lease MR E L s 9 54 54
Depreciation of property, Mm% - BERRENE
plant and equipment 9 4,980 2,955
Gain on disposals of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment FiERE 9 (20) @
Net gain on financial assets at fair value WAV EEEZEFAEH
through profit or loss BRI E B 7 - (2,320)
Provision for impairment on inventories FERERE 9 = 1,519
Written off of trade receivables B S NG 9 464 —
Reversal of expected credit loss on B HRNGIERAEE
trade receivables EERE 9 (232) =
Reversal of expected credit loss on FEMRE TR I MR S T T
loans and interest receivables FEBBRED 9 (55) =
Impairment on loans and interest receivables R ER R WA SRE 9 - 165
Forfeiture of deposit related to the possible RN BB E LR
acquisition of companies g7 9 5,000 =
Operating loss before working capital changes LEECEYRNINCEEE (52,243) (10,985)
Decrease in inventories RERD 14 6,545
Decrease in trade and bills receivables B RWFIERERERA D 32,769 11,318
Decrease/(increase) in loans and interest receivables FEME S KRR SR/ (3E) 41,743 (68,581)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, prepayments e BNRKEMERFE
and other receivables (gm /md (3,638) 7,805
Decrease in financial assets NATEHEAZEFAEY
at fair value through profit or loss BahRBEERD - 22,208
Decrease in trade and bills payables BIORNFERENZRASD (15,875) (14,218)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, other payables BRER  HthEMFIER
and receipts in advance TBUGE ORD) /1m (20,350) 12,541
Increase in contract liabilities BREEEN 2,031 =
Cash used in operations SEMARE (15,549) (33,367)
Income tax refunded/(paid) BRE,/ (BA) FiEH 1,624 (3,810)
Net cash used in operating activities LETHRARETE (13,925) (37,177)
o)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

2018 2017
“E-N\F “TtF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Bzt TR FAL

Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNHEERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BELLE (1,105) (16,565)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HENE  BEX

plant and equipment FERTEFE - 47
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EHEMBTEIRD 3,076 1,426
Interest received B8 295 121
Deposits paid for acquisitions of subsidiaries WEEH B AR RS - (5,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEHEL/ (FiA)

investing activities ReFH 2,266 (19,971)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETHNRERE
Interest paid BRFIE (39) (642)
Proceeds of interest-bearing borrowings STEEEMEHE - 44,247
Repayments of interest-bearing borrowings BE RS (292) (44,501)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BITROM PGSR - 204,680
Share issue expenses BRAETRS - (8,521)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BETE (FTA) /BE

activities B&RE (331) 195,263
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HeRBREEEER

and cash equivalents (R2) /EhEeE (11,990) 138,115
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FOReRBEZEEA

of the year 164,736 27,144
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net R 25 (149) (523)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ERBERBEEZEER 152,597 164,736
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents RERBELEEIFR 2EBI
Cash and bank balances as stated in the NS S K A

consolidated statement of financial position ReRBITET 23 152,597 164,736
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

1.

GENERAL

CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 19 June 2013. The
address of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company is disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” in the annual report. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The parent of the Company is New Seres CEFC Investment
Fund LP (“New Seres”), an exempted limited liability partnership
registered in Cayman Islands, and the ultimate controlling party
of the Company is Shanghai Zhong’an United Investment Fund
Co., Ltd.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of apparels and provision of money
lending services.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 28 March
2019.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied the new/revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are first effective and
relevant for the Group’s financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

BB BB EER
(TR BHREER )

2.1 BREFEETREFTER

MBHREER -R=-F
—N\E—A—B4&X

RAFE  AEECERBES
gitiag ((BEEMAE]))
BOAER—_F—N\F—A—BF
Ll R R R NG P EERNS
B S MRARR IR IERT
FEWHRELER o

BEMBRE TRIA
ERHIFE 95

BEMBRE REEFFAH
£RIE 1557 ilGa

BEMBRE REEFF AN
ERIE 1557 Wit (HEEME

MIBETA RELRAFE 155
HEE)
5 (BBEMB  IMNERSRERRE
BEREZES)
REBE2R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ?%P&l?i%ﬁﬂ%i&%ﬁﬁﬂ
(BRI EREZED )
2.1 BHE] RIETER B
BB ELER -R=-F
—NFE—A—B&EX @

BRMBREEAFIR-SMTA

()  Classification and measurement of financial () ZERTLARSEKRIZ
instruments
BEARMBEREERIE IR
HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: —E-NF-HA—Hz#’
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods FEMFEEIRIRR T &S
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing T EAEIIREHMITE :
together all three aspects of the accounting mRALETE  GHERITHE
for financial instruments: (1) classification and SHEENFE=@EIE :
measurement; (2) impairment; and (3) hedge MDD ERFTE: QBE:
accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9 from EQ@QEHastRE - B
1 January 2018 has resulted in changes in - N\F—H—BEBRENE
accounting policies of the Group and the amounts BEEHREERFEIRE B
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. BARE ST RELRNES
MIEmARMERN R EES
The following tables summarised the impact, net of TREMREZ BBV ER
tax, of transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening balance HREANFIFREN T —N
of retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 as follows: F-A—BRE RV
T E (MRHIE) 40
S 8
HK$'000
FAT
Retained earnings REEF
Retained earnings as RZZE—+F+=-A=+—H
at 31 December 2017 HREE &R 45,229
Increase in expected credit losses B S REWEIE R EWRE SR K&
(“ECLs”) in trade receivables and loans FERFI BRI FBEHEEEE
and interest receivables (TTEFHMEEEE]) 1N (2,493)
Restated retained earnings as R=-EB—N\E—HF—H®
at 1 January 2018 BHREER 42,736
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), where the amount of change in
fair value attributable to change in credit risk of
the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains
the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. However,
it eliminates the previous HKAS 39 categories for
financial assets of held to maturity financial assets,
loans and interest receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no
material impact on the Group’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities. The impact of HKFRS
9 on the Group’s classification and measurement of
financial assets is set out below.

BRANE B I R R 5 22 A
(IEBMBREER D@

2.1 BHE] RIET BB
MR ELER -R=-F
—NFE—-—HA—B&EX @
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(%)

BEMHRELENLIRE
BEE G ERFRE
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@m]) R BRI %
BEEEAREDRIENA
FEEZBHEENEBEER
SR RIFEFHEEKX
SETEAEAC WO - BB
BELENEIORREETER
TR FE 3957 B B AR LT
RUBEERMERENR
E o AT - EBUB T ATBLES
BEEHMMBEE  BFK
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ENMEEENBTBRE
RIS 395 RB Al - RAF A
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W e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade receivables
(that the trade receivables do not contain a significant
financing component in accordance with HKFRS
15), an entity shall, at initial recognition, measure a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs.
A financial asset is classified as: (i) financial asset
at amortised cost; (ii) financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”);
or (iii) FVTPL. The classification of financial assets
under HKFRS 9 is generally based on two criteria:
(i) the business model under which the financial
asset is managed; and (ji) its contractual cash flow
characteristics (the “solely payments of principal and
interest” criterion, also known as “SPPI criterion”).
Under HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives is no longer
required to be separated from a host financial asset.
Instead, the hybrid financial instrument is assessed
as a whole for the classification.

4® CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions are met and it
has not been designated as at FVTPL:

- It is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
meet the SPPI criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and it has not been
designated as at FVTPL:

- It is held within a business model whose
objective is to achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
meet the SPPI criterion.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. All other financial assets not
classified at amortised cost or FVOCI as described
above are classified as FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. On initial recognition,
the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

The Group has no financial asset classified as FVOCI
or FVTPL during the year. The Group’s financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (Continued)

The following table summarises the original

2. ZRMWEBMBREER
(TERMBHREER )

2.1 BHE] RIET BB

measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the
new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for

each class of the Group’s financial assets as at 1

January 2018:

R EER - R
—N\F—A—B%¥ #®)

BEUBRERNES - SWMIA (B)

() TEILANSBERE
(%)

TERBAREER=F—N\
F-A-HBEMBEER
BEEBGERIFE IR
Bt BRI RREBEE B/
WREEAFE SRR B
Al

Carrying amount Carrying amount
as at as at

Original classification New classification 1 January 2018 1 January 2018

Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9

BEFBETER REFEHBRERN

REEEGEN REBEUBHREEA HVFR-T-NF  FIFR-B-NF

BHEE EXE A F] FIHMHER —-B-BERAE -B-RNEEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

i TAL

Deposits and other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 19,559 19,559
7S REMEWGE ERRENE SN

Trade and bills receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 52,789 52,150
BIRUGTERENRE ERRERTE BHRA

Loans and interest receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 148,881 147,027
RUEFRFE ERREYTE B

Pledged bank deposits Loans and receivables Amortised cost 6,596 6,596
BEMRTER ERRENE Sl

Cash and cash equivalents Loans and receivables Amortised cost 164,736 164,736
ReRkReFERR ERREYE BHRA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing the HKAS
39 “incurred loss model” to the “expected credit
losses model”. HKFRS 9 requires the Group to
recognised ECL for trade receivables, financial
assets at amortised costs, contract assets and debt
investment at FVOCI earlier than HKAS 39. Cash
and cash equivalents are subject to ECL model but
the impairment is immaterial for the current year.

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are
measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continueq)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade and bills receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the
ECLs are based on the 12-month ECLs. The
12-month ECLs is the portion of the lifetime ECLs
that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs.

Financial assets for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 1:

Financial assets for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 2:

Stage 3:  Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs.

—® CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due. Unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECL is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at

amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model

@)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

As mentioned above, the Group applies the
HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECLs which adopts a lifetime ECLs for all trade
and bills receivables. To measure the ECLs,
trade and bills receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. Management has closely
monitored the credit qualities and collectability
of the trade and bills receivables.

The increase in loss allowance for trade and
bills receivables upon the transition to HKFRS
9 as of 1 January 2018 were HK$639,000. The
loss allowance for trade and bills receivables
decreased by HK$232,000 during year ended
31 December 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of loans and interest receivables

The Group’s loans and interest receivables
are considered not having significant increase
in credit risk, and the impairment loss
recognised at 1 January 2018 and during the
year ended 31 December 2018 was therefore
limited to 12-month ECLs. When there have
been a significant increase in credit risk, the
impairment loss will be based on lifetime ECLs.

The increase in impairment loss for loans
and interest receivables upon the transition
to HKFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018 were
HK$1,854,000. The impairment loss for
loans and interest receivables decreased by
HK$55,000 during year ended 31 December
2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

(c) Impairment of other financial assets

Other financial assets at amortised cost of the
Group includes other receivables and deposits.

Management has closely monitored the credit
qualities and collectability of other financial
assets at amortised cost and considers the
ECL is immaterial impairment on 1 January
2018 and for year ended 31 December 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision
in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally
adopted without restating comparative information.
The adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules
are therefore not reflected in the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, but are
recognised in the statement of financial position on
1 January 2018. This mean that differences in the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9
are recognised in retained earnings and reserves
as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, the information
presented for 2017 does not reflect the requirements
of HKFRS 9 but rather those of HKAS 39.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ZKMBFBMBREZER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued) (BRI EREED ) =

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 2.1 BRANERE] RIEET BB

1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts”, HKAS 18 “Revenue” and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a five-steps
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at
the amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method without practical expedients. The Group
has recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying
HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at the date of initial application (that
is, 1 January 2018). As a result, the financial information
presented for 2017 has not been restated.

The transition to HKFRS 15 had no impact on the opening
balances of retained profits.

The following tables summarised the impact of adopting
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018 and its
consolidated statement of cash flows for the current
year for each of the line items affected. There was no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated statement
of statement of comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)
(Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position
as of 31 December 2018 (increase/(decrease)):

2. ZRMWEBMBREER
(TERMBHREER )

2.1

ﬁ%%ﬂ/@%ﬂ?%
S EER -NR=F
—N\FE—A—B&EM®)
BB RS TR E 158 R E

EEEHANYE ([HBHBRE
HERIE155% ) (&)

R-E—N\EFE+-_A=+—HH
BRATBARRROTE (m,/

OBd)) -
Amount without
application of
As reported Adjustment HKFRS 15
KT ERES
BBREER
ul:2k:} RE F15H2eH
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THT TR THER
Current liabilities TEBEE
Accruals, other payables and BIRER - EtENZUR
receipts in advance RiadEIE 18,893 2,031 20,924
Contract liabilities BNAE 2,031 (2,031) -

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (increase/ (decrease)):

HE-_Z—-)/\#+=-_HA=+—8”
HIZARERERNTE (N

S CRA)) -
Amount without
application of
As reported Adjustment HKFRS 15
KT ERES
PRREER
paf:2k:} #E 5% EE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TR TiEx
Operating activities KeEs
Decrease in accruals, other payables T1R B « Efth R FUE
and receipts in advance KM EER D (20,350) 2,031 (18,319)
Increase in contract liabilities AHa’EEmn 2,031 (2,031) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

BRANE BB R R 22 A
(BB EHREZER )@
2.1 RAFE] RG] BB

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

(Continued)

Details of the new significant accounting policies and the
nature of the changes to previous accounting policies in
relation to the Group are set out below:

Nature of the goods, satisfaction
of performance obligations and
payment terms

HmRENE - BARBHET
RAT IR

MR EEL -R=F
—NE—HA—H&ER ()
BB RIS IR S RIS 15 R B B
EEANNKE (EBHBRE
ZERE1558 ) ()

BEAAEE M EASHEER

%5@?%@%&%@@5’9%%%5'J (8

Nature of change in accounting policy
and impact on 1 January 2018

R-ZE-N\F-A-HNEFBRREBUERTE

Customers obtain control when the
goods are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised
upon when the customers accepted
the products. There is generally only
one performance obligation. Invoices
are usually payable from 10 to 180
days.

Right of return

Some of the Group’s contracts with
customers from the sale of goods
provides customers a right of return (a
right to be refunded in cash).

ERRERN KB E RS ZES
W o EIt - WARBZ P B INE S ER
R —MRABE—ERNER -BERE
M10E180 B XA »

RERE

AEERTFEHEEERNE TAK
REEFPARERE (BRERSEN

o

~

4@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)

Right of return

Under HKAS 18, revenue for these contracts was recognised when a
reasonable estimate of the returns could be made, provide that all other
revenue recognition criteria are met. If a reasonable estimate could not be
made, such revenue would be deferred until the return period lapsed or a
reasonable estimate could be made.

Under HKFRS 15, right of return gives rise to variable consideration. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until the associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The application
of the constraint on variable consideration increases the amount of
revenue that will be deferred. In addition, a refund liability and a right to
recover returned goods assets are recognised.

Impact:

Accumulated experience is used to estimate such returns at the time of
sale. Because of the large size and low value of each individual product,
the amount of products return were immaterial. It is highly probable that
a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
Therefore, no refund liability for goods return was recognised. The validity
of this assumption and the estimated amount of returns are reassessed at
each reporting date. As a result, no accounting impact arose for refunds
while applying HKFRS 15.

RERE

REFEGTELFE 185 - WFEA K ZWARAIEL S IBIRIE HETIFHE
R AT A AWK AERIZE o MEAELAEMA  RIABK
NEEERERRA AL BB EFT AL -

BEEEVHEREERFE155  REBRELAERE - JEREREL
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMEEYEREER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continueq) ([ BB EHRELER )@

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 2.1 BRANERE] RIEET BB

1 January 2018 (Continued) MR EER -R_F

—N\F—-A—BEN @

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) BEAMKREERE155REHE

(Continued) EFEHNN KR ([BEMBHRE
ERIE155% 1) (&)

Nature of the goods, satisfaction

of performance obligations and Nature of change in accounting policy
payment terms and impact on 1 January 2018

BAmERENE  BIRBNET

RIS R-E-—N\F—A—BNSHBRSEHERYE

Advances received from customers Advances received from customers

Generally, the Group receives short- Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group presented these advances
term advances from its customers. as receipts in advance in the consolidated statement of financial position.
EREFBR Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, reclassifications have been made from

deposits received to contract liabilities for the outstanding balance of
—MME  AEERHEFUWEGEEZ  advances from customers.

Impact:

As of 1 January 2018, no contract liabilities had been recognised since

the amount was immaterial.

BWEF B

REFANEBUBRELRFE 152 - ARENGEMBEARRARKZF
B2 SRR

REMNTBUBRELRE 165K - RFPBER AR ERGHRUC YR
SEFNBEEANAE -

F-N\E—A—HB UEERENAE RASBEMTRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (continued)

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property;
and transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group had not previously
adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the clarifications in this,
its first year.

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates

and Joint Ventures*

—@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited &5 ZE (= & gt & B R A 7
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BRANE B I R R 5 22 A
(IEBMBREER D@

2.2 B BB R E R HYHT
PG SCHE LR S

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

S8 )

H ==
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKFRS 3, BANMBREER BAMBREEL
2015-2017 Cycle Business Combinations' “T-1FE F3% 0 KHA
“E+F
BN FEELE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKFRS 11, BAMBREER BAMBRELEL
2015-2017 Cycle Joint Arrangements’ “E-RFE EURMEBITA
B 3 HEZHE
BHMFERESE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKAS 12, ERUMBREEL FEGIER
2015-2017 Cycle Income Taxes' “E-REFZE E125%  FEH
S a3
BHNFELE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKAS 23, ERMBRELRN BEGIER
2015-2017 Cycle Borrowing Costs' “T-1FE F23% -
T4 EERA
BHNEELCE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BAMBREER REAH°
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets F17%
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its BANBREER REREE
Associate or Joint Venture? F10HK N
BR YR RELEHE
FBRMETR MBEELER
XE
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of material? BAGEA BANER?
HKAS 8 F1HRRES
SEHERIE 8
EHEN
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of business? BAYER EBHER?
EIRMETA
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 L RZE—NF—A—Hxkz&F%B
K S BRI AR K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 2 R-ZT-_ZTF— BB z2&MAK
HFE MR -
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 2 RZT=Z—F—A—Hzz2&FAK
HFEHMEM -
g The amendments were originally intended to be effective for Q ZEEIARRIIN T —tF—H

—HRZ BN FEHREER -
BRAEMBEBRREITE, MR - &
BAFIRAEABREIA -

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective
date has now been deferred / removed. Early application of the
amendments of the amendments continue to be permitted.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ZKMBFBMBREZER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued) ([ BB EHREEL )@

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet 2.2 EEME R REBVE

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “ Leases ” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee
to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more 12 months, unless the underlying asset is
of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into
a principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on
a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments
to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or not to
exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently.
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2.2 B BB R E R HYHT

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

The total operating lease commitment of the Group in
respect of rented premises as at 31 December 2018
amounted to HK$9,398,000. The directors anticipate that
the adoption of HKFRS 16 would not result in significant
impact on the Group’s result but expect that the above
operating lease commitments will be recognised as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities in the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI if specified conditions are met
—instead of at FVTPL.

ﬂ/@%%é%%%ﬁ
S8 )

BB R s RS 165 - AE
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REEREEYENLERE R
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ZKMBFBMBREZER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued) ([ BB EHREEL )@

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet 2.2 EEME R REBVE

effective (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12,
“Income Taxes”, by providing guidance over how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether
to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together based on which approach better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume
the tax authority will examine amounts that it has a
right to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the entity
determines it is probable that the tax authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should measure
current and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the
entity determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty
in the determination of tax is reflected using either the
“most likely amount” or the “expected value” approach,
whichever better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Save as discussed above, other than HKFRS 16 and
HK(FRIC) — Int 23, all new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations issued but not effective
are not likely to have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosure required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The financial statements have been prepared under historical
cost convention.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in the preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
All values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the financial statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERSTHEHRBE »)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.1 Business combination and basis of 41 ¥ EHRGEREE

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. WWhere necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERSTHHERBE »)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.1 Business combination and basis of 41 ¥ EHRGEEE

consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

4.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may
be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss,
if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERSTHHERBE »)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.3 Goodwill 4.3 BE

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (“CGU”) that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount
(see note 4.15), and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to
each asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount
to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable)
or its value-in-use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in
profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

WA B EERBENAFER
R RENRTFE  REKE
77 R FEIE AR 2R Y BRI K
W BB 73 J AT MU 05 15 8 RO X
AEDWEBRBATFENE
B ABHEBoREBRREE
R RER -

B TY IR AR AN R S RUE B B AT
2o pRENRNS  WEEL
MBS K THEHEXENKE
BRRENSHERSELEN
((ReELEBEM]) REeELE
NREEAMNRSRAZEANLE
VREMEEXKEEMANNERS
MARRNEHBIEEMAS - &
PEFMEBNREELBENEEF
FRFARAERELTKE SRR
(RFIFE4.15) fELLEMAETTRIE
A R B BF R BB UR % BE L A BE
R BERETRENR -

AR BEEANETRERESL
MEEmMS  BoERENESE
B B & PO R B R T 4 SR AT
ETRENR ERTELEN
BRI B & 7R D 0 % AL BRI (B
- REERE & LD EEMR
B B I EEARRE
B #MERZELASEEN
REERLAIDEEZEMNE
MWEE - AW PEESHEE
MEEB T & <IBLEERR
T E R KR E AP ER S
A (arlEtE) EFERER (1
AEE) (ABSESE) - BEN
EDREEERNBRER - M
eRERARED -

Annual Report 2018 %R @7
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERSTHEHRBE »)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.4 Foreign currencies 4.4 &

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
it operates) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange
differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the translation reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their
estimated residual value over their estimated useful life,
using straight-line method as follows:

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

20 years

4 to 5 years, or over
the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Machinery 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

The assets’ estimated residual values, estimated useful
lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting date.

4.4

4.5
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.5

4.6

4.7

Property, plant and equipment (continuea)

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Payments for leasehold land held for own
use under operating lease

Payments for leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease represent up-front payments to acquire
long-term interests in lessee-occupied properties. These
payments are stated at cost and are amortised over the
period of the lease on straight-line method as an expense.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7

4.8

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
lease commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments
are analysed between capital and interest. The interest
element is charged to profit or loss over the period of the
lease and is calculated so that it represents a constant
proportion of the lease liability. The capital element
reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the
term of the lease.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the CGU
level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The
useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9A Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9A Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL
on trade and bills receivables, and financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade and bills rreceivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9A Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (continuea)

(i)  Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
()  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9A Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9A Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (continuea)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and i)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9A Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) continued)

(i)  Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collateral held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9A Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (continuea)

(i)  Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9A Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continuead)

(i)  Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade and bills receivables from sales of
apparels, when the amounts are over one/
two year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9A Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (continuea)

(i)  Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade and bills receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income
is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9A Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) continued)

(i)

(iv)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group’s financial liabilities at amortised cost
include trade and bills payable, accruals and other
payables and interest-bearing borrowings.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

4. ERETTHERME »

1A TEITHE (B=ZF—N
F—HA—HEANE:
BUR) ()

(i)

(iv)

MBAE

AEBERRELREZAN
REMBERED R - RHH
RASIERE R ETRE
B EHRMEENER
FERTRCANGTE - BERIRE
A AR A E BN BOAR
£ - AN SR NEBERT
R o

ZER [ 2 B G P AR 51 B ) B
BREBREZENFEAR
ENREE  FRIRERKEM
FENTRIBLARGt BEE -

BRERIEERAREBE
HZFR - WSk EEER
R

BBRARE

ERNZETFEMEEE
K EA S B (R OB SH AR AN SR
B REARE 2 B A S AR
BRXETE - BENETY
R BEEXBBENENA
MEHL (MER) BEH
AR ERERR IR A R KR 2
WA REVF K o

Annual Report 2018 %R @7



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9A Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contact at
the higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance,
being the ECL provision measured in accordance
with principles of the the accounting policy set out
in 4.9A(ii); and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9B Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)

The group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
Accordingly, the comparative financial information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with the
group’s previous accounting policy.

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9B Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (continueq)

()  Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are
met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which is managed and its performance
evaluated on a fair value basis according to a
documented management strategy; or (iii) the
financial asset contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9B Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (continueq)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, including cash and
bank balances, comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash
flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9B Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (continueq)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and that event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; and

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

An impairment loss on loans and interest receivables
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of financial asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9B Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (continueq)

(i)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.

The Group’s financial liabilities at amortised cost
include trade and bills payables, accruals and other
payables and interest-bearing borrowings.

@

®)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Interest-bearing borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the loans using the effective interest method.

Interest-bearing borrowings are classified
as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of
each reporting period.

Other financial liabilities

All other financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value, net of directly
attributable transaction costs incurred and
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9B Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (continueq)

(iv)

v)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS
18 Revenue.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9B Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017) (continueq)

(vi) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments are
accounted for as financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value are taken directly to
profit or loss for the year.

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

4.10 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERSTHEHRBE »)

POLICIES (Continued)
4.11 Share capital 411 JRA

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares
are deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.

4.12ARevenue recognition (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERSTHHERBE »)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.12A Revenue recognition (accounting policies NMARATER (B=ZF—N

applied from 1 January 2018) (continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

Customers obtain control of the apparel products when
the goods are delivered to and have regarded been
as accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon when
the customers received the apparel products. There is
generally only one performance obligation. The Group
does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised goods to
the customer and payment by the customer exceeds
one year. Sales are made with a credit term from 10 to
180 days, which is consistent with market practice. As
a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money as no
significant financing component is deemed present and
the sales are made with the credit term.

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers from the
sale of apparel products provides customers a right of
return. These rights of return allow the returned goods to
be refund in cash. The right of return gives rise to variable
consideration. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until the associated
uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The application
of the constraint on variable consideration increases
the amount of revenue that will be deferred. In addition,
a refund liability and a right to recover returned goods
assets are recognised. Since the amount of return of
goods is immaterial, no adjustments have been made to
opening balances at 1 January 2018 in regard to change
in accounting policy.

Interest income is accrued on a time-proportion basis on
the principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERSTHEHRBE »)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.12ARevenue recognition (accounting policies MAW AR (B=F—N

applied from 1 January 2018) (continuea)

Sample income is recognised upon the samples are
delivered and the customer has accepted and obtained
control the samples.

Subcontracting income is recognised upon the
subcontracting goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted and obtained control the goods.

Contract liabilities are obligations to transfer goods or
services to customer for which the Company has received
consideration, or for which an amount of consideration is
due from the customer.

Contract assets are rights to consideration in exchange
for goods or services that the Company has transferred to
a customer when that right is conditional on something in
additional to the passage of time.

4128 Revenue recognition (accounting policies

applied until 31 December 2017)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of return, discounts, rebate and sales related
taxes.

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customers, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold.
Normally, risk is transferred upon dispatch of goods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERSTHHERBE »)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.12B Revenue recognition (accounting policies MBYRAER (BE=F

applied until 31 December 2017) (continueq)

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the
effective interest method.

Sample income is recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This is
usually taken at the time when the samples are delivered
and the customer has accepted the samples.

4.13 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. ERETHRBE @
POLICIES (Continued)
413 Income taxes (Continued) 413 FRS# ()
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary BEEBBEBEINIRENB AT
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except EE A R R B I = R AR
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the Al AN B [ B S b E s (= RR
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary WEE B ZEREEEEER
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 15 3R 8 A~ 7] e 1Bl 2 RIBR A o
Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when FRSHN B ER - MHEMmESER
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive HEfhrmElaERNIER A -
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in Bl 52 35 15 18 IR 0 HL th 2 TED L 2 T
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items R Bl i L E B R A R R Y
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are BEAM  AIZEMETEER
also recognised directly in equity. LR FERR ©
414 Employee benefit 414 REEF
()  Defined contribution retirement plan () REBEFEAKGE
The Group’s entities incorporated in Hong Kong RESEMKINEEE
manages a defined contribution Mandatory Provident B IR — I8 R E KR
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined MAESFE ([RESE
contribution scheme managed by an independent g)) ZAEENREFEBRE
trustee for those employees who are eligible to VEFRARGERSHRIE
participate in the MPF scheme. The Group makes EEENEBETER - K
contributions based on a percentage of the eligible EEReEREEFENA
employees’ salaries funded by the Group and are DHAR EAR & ERIEL 4t
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in 7 BBHRRENERE
accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme. RIERETEIRBEE =
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.14 Employee benefit (continuead)

(i)

(ii)

Defined contribution retirement plan (Continued)

The Group’s entities established in the People’s
Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong and Macau
(the “PRC”) make monthly contributions to a state-
sponsored defined contribution scheme for the
local staff. The contributions are made at a specific
percentage on the standard salary pursuant to laws
of the PRC and relevant regulation issued by local
social security authorities.

In addition, the Group’s entities incorporated in the
United States of America (the “USA”) make monthly
contributions to a defined contribution scheme under
the relevant federal program for the local staff. The
Group makes contributions based on a percentage
of the local staff’s funded by the Group and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
the rules of the scheme.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERSTHEHRBE »)

POLICIES (Continued)
414 EERF @

4.14 Employee benefit (continued)

(i)  Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

4.15 Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
payments for leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease, intangible assets and interests in
subsidiaries to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERSTHHERBE »)

POLICIES (continued)
415 HvBEERIE @)

4.15 Impairment of other assets (Continueq)

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or CGU (see note
4.3), discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
or cash generating unit.

4.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

4.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.
POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Related parties (continueq)

(b)  (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(viy  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vil A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except bank interest income, unallocated finance costs,
and unallocated corporate expenses, which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment, are not included in arriving at the
operating results of the operating segment.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes,
timing of payment of related taxes and interpretation
of relevant tax regulations. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

In addition, deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. This requires significant
judgement on the tax treatments of certain transactions
and also assessment on the probability that adequate
future taxable profits will be available for the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.

Impairment of receivables

The impairment allowances for trade and bills receivables
and other receivables are based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected credit loss rates. The Group
adopts judgement in making these assumption and
selecting inputs for computing such impairment loss,
broadly based on the available customers’ historical data,
existing market conditions including forward-looking
estimates at end of reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories at each
reporting date, and makes provision for impairment of
obsolete, slow-moving and impaired items. Management
estimates the net realisable value for such inventories
based primarily on the expected future market conditions
and the estimated selling price. The Group makes
provision for impairment if the net realisable value is below
the carrying amount.

Impairment of non-financial assets
(excluding goodwill)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset or the
CGU. This requires an estimation of the value-in-use of
the CGU to which the asset is allocated. Estimating the
value-in-use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. A change in the
estimated future cash flows and/or the discount rate
applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life is tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired in accordance with
the relevant accounting policies. The recoverable amount
of the Group’s intangible asset has been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. This calculation
requires the use of judgment and estimates on future
operating cash flows and discount rates adopted. Where
the actual cash flows are different from the original
estimates, a material change in the amount of impairment
may arise. At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
intangible asset was approximately HK$800,000 (2017:
HK$800,000). No impairment loss has been recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

(e) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and

(f)

equipment

In determining the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider various factors,
such as expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is made based
on the experience of the Group with similar assets that
are used in a similar way. Depreciation charge is revised
if the estimated useful lives of items of property, plant
and equipment are different from the previous estimation.
Estimated useful lives are reviewed, at the end of each
reporting period, based on changes in circumstances.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the CGUs to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount
rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may earn
revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of the
internal management reporting information that is provided to
and regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision
maker in order to allocate resources and assess performance
of the segment. During the year, the Company has identified
design, manufacture and trading of apparels and provision for
money lending services as the reportable operating segments.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as
each of them requires different business strategies.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than certain cash and bank balances and cash and
other corporate assets not attributable to the reportable
segments;

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
certain interest-bearing borrowings and other corporate
liabilities not attributable to the reportable segments; and

- segment results represent the profit or loss incurred or
earned by each segment without allocation of certain
other income, certain administrative expenses, such as
the Group’s headquarter rental expenses and forfeiture of
deposits, and certain finance costs.
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N D N =
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7HER @
The segment information provided to the executive directors for FARMPTESRENAHRES 29
the reportable segments during the year is as follows: EERAT -
Design,
manufacture Money
and trading lending
of apparels services Total
BREERET - g
HERES FR# wam
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TEx TET
Year ended 31 December 2018 Bz_Z-\&
TZA=+-HLEE
Revenue from external customers REIMPEFHIBA 187,041 16,851 203,892
Segment (loss)/profit i (B8) /&5 (31,616) 8,706 (22,910)
Reconciliation #HE
Bank interest income RITRIEHA 295
Unallocated corporate expenses AOECELH (39,524)
Finance costs REMRA (39)
Loss before tax PR ATE B (62,178)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+=ZHA=1+—-H
Segment assets DEEE 103,300 219,724 323,024
Other corporate assets HiDRIBE 104,592
Total assets BEE 427,616
Segment liabilities NEEE 40,119 2,930 43,049
Other corporate liabilities HinaaE 2,149
Total liabilities paE 45,198
Other segment information Hitn BER
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE_Z-\&
+=-BA=1+-HILEFE
Depreciation and amortisation EREH (1,723) (1,099) (2,822)
Written off of trade receivables B S EWG IR (464) - (464)
Reversal of ECL B O RWERAEE
on trade receivables BEED 232 - 232
Reversal of ECL ERERRERFSEHEE
on loans and interest receivables E5iR A E - 55 55
Capital expenditure BARY 1,719 - 1,719
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A\ ] e
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZEER @
Design,
manufacture Money
and trading lending
of apparels services Total
PR AT - EXmEA
BERES R BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT TET
Year ended 31 December 2017 BHE-Z—+F
TZA=+—HILEFE
Revenue from external customers REMBEPHIBA 309,068 16,377 325,445
Segment (loss)/profit 28 (B1B) /&H (4,356) 10,368 6,012
Reconciliation #K
Bank interest income HITHEHA 121
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBLELTH (19,366)
Finance costs BEMA (642)
Loss before tax BREiRIER (13,879)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+ZA=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 163,565 252,920 416,485
Other corporate assets HivRNRIEE 109,277
Total assets BEE 525,762
Segment liabilities AHAE 69,651 2,323 71,974
Other corporate liabilities Hp A rlaE 7,457
Total liabilities pafk 79,431
Other segment information HivHEpER
Year ended 31 December 2017 2T —tF
TZA=t—HLEFE
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (1,881) (916) (2,797)
Fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL M AF{E:tE B2 & A&
BRNIBEE A THERS - 2,320 2,320
Provision for impairment on inventories FERERE (1,519) = (1,519)
Impairment on loans and EREFR RIS RE
interest receivables - (165) (165)
Capital expenditure BARRY 832 5,496 6,328
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal places of the Group’s operations are in the PRC
(including Hong Kong). Management determines the Group
is domiciled in Hong Kong, the PRC, which is the Group’s
principal operating location.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is divided into the
following geographical areas:

6.

DEEE 2

ARRR—AREZEERAR > MASK
BEENERMBURTE (BREE
)  ERERTETEERLAEERE
AN BANMAARENEERS
HoEh

RERER B IMBE P R AIZ A T i

g

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHEIT

The USA EE 162,309 252,852
Canada JEDN - 30,259
Hong Kong BB 37,207 36,398
Others Hithh & 4,376 5,936
203,892 325,445

Geographical location of external customers is based on the
location at which the customers are domiciled.

The principal non-current assets held by the Group are located
in the PRC (including Hong Kong).

Revenue from each of the major customers which accounted
for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the year is set out
below:

SNERER P RHIR (L B RAR B R PR

gl o

AEERBAENERIERBEEDUNF
(BREEE)

REFAEREEIKA10%A L
EEXBEFPHOBAFIIMT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Customer A EFEH 88,819 106,915
Customer B ®FRZ 28,316 N/A 7N A *
Customer C =2EA 25,534 N/A i@ A *

*

Accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s revenue

As at 31 December 2018, 7% (2017: 2%) of the Group’s trade
receivables was due from these customers.

- FHETRAEERA10%

R-Z2—)\F+-_A=+—8 %%
FRERBEAEERE S EWFTIER
7% (ZZF—FF 1 2%) o
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7. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. WA - Hitlr AR W&
Revenue represents the interest income from loans receivables, I A T8 B WS 3k X e MR B ) Bk
sales of apparels, net of returns, discounts and sales related A REHEE  YERERE TR
taxes. Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities HIHEBMTIE - BAASEEEXE
are disclosed in note 6. BHE— PR ERMEG -

The Group’s sale of goods revenue from contracts with AEBRHERPEX —REHERNEL
customers recognised at a point in time, interest income from WHEERHEEREBA - BIERD
loans receivables and other income and gains are as follows: FEWAREMBA RS -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT
Revenue WA
Sale of goods HEEm 187,041 309,068
Interest income from loans receivables — FEUN & 3k &2 JE YR B 89 R B U A 16,851 16,377
203,892 325,445
Other income and gains = PN 6
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE - BEMEENRE
plant and equipment 20 4
Bank interest income RITHRLEHA 295 121
Subcontracting income DT UA 2,264 =
Net gain on financial assets at fair WA E 22T A HiER
value through profit or loss M & EF s - 2,320
Sundry income HMIAWES 2,082 1,063
4,661 3,508
The performance obligation of sale of goods is satisfied upon HEEMWBARTR D EREEME
dispatch of the apparels products and payment is generally 1T - B—MRARXM1&#10-180 B
due within 10-180 days from delivery. Some contracts provide WEEEHN R - BoEHREFIRM
customers with a right of return which give rise to variable REE EXORBUHETEETER

consideration subject to constraint. =%
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7. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS continuesy 7. WA - HABUA K s

(&)
With the adoption of HKFRS 15 from 1 January 2018, the B2 \F— A —HRABEVHE®R
disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with HEAFEI5HE  AEEKRBEETF
customers are as follows: BRI DRI
Design,
Manufacturing
and trading
of apparels
BR#E &t -
HNERES
HK$’000
FAT
Geographical markets HhEH 5
The USA EH 162,309
Hong Kong B 20,356
Others HAtb 4,376
Total revenue from contracts with REHEEPEHH
customers Was 4858 187,041
The following table provides information about trade and TRE/REEEZTFSANE S RIK
bills receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with BREREBEREHNBENER
customers.
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
—E-N\FE —T—+4F
+=B=+-8 —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Trade and bills receivables (note 19) B SRR R EWER (Fi3E19) 18,548 52,150
Contract liabilities (note 26) B EE (MiE26) 2,031 —
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7. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continuea) 1.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to its sales
contracts of apparels products and therefore no information are
disclosed for revenue that the Group will be entitled to when
it satisfies the remaining performance obligations under the
contracts for apparels production that had an original expected
duration of one year or less.

WA - HWA R W s

(%)

REBUERREEMNHEES ORMAE
HZE - AW EEERAELR - (M
AREBEKARREHMR R —FHAT
RERENG KB THORIERELR -

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BIERZA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Interest on borrowings EEFE - 565
Interest on margin loan payable ENAFRERMNE - 51

Interest on obligations under BEREAERNF S
finance leases 39 26
39 642
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LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

9. BRFIEHAIEE

BRETISTATE IR EMB, GTA) T

B IREER -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT

Amortisation of payments for leasehold RELHE N H{EEBY

land held for own use under T E L b SRk 8

operating lease 54 54
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR N & 1,200 780
Cost of inventories recognised ERERARZMFERA

as expense 161,412 229,856
Depreciation of property, V% - BEMREITE

plant and equipment 4,980 2,955
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses, net N (W) BiaFsE (506) 502
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - HE REFEAKE

plant and equipment (20) 4)
Impairment on loans and B SR I FE LRI 2R E

interest receivables - 165
Provision for impairment on inventories 717 & s B # & - 1,519
Written off of trade receivables (note 19) & 5 FEUEIBHIS (M5 19) 464 _
Reversal of ECL B S W IRTEHE B R IE R E

on trade receivables (note 19) (FfzE19) (232) =
Reversal of ECL on loans W E R R YT S T8 TE

and interest receivables (note 20) BEEED (FiiE20) (55) =
Forfeiture of deposit related to SRUR AT B UR BB A RIFERE A IR &

the possible acquisition of companies 5,000 -
Operating lease charges in respect T REFREREER

of land and buildings 14,839 7,464
Employee benefit expense EERAMZ

(including directors’ emoluments (BRESME (FisE10))

(note 10))
— Wages and salaries -TE&EKF® 69,962 76,513
— Pension scheme contribution — RIRET I

— defined contribution plans - REMRNKETE 3,037 2,608
— Other benefits - B fhiE A 3,045 3,020

76,044 82,141
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST

10, ESHERABRBESHFA
PAID INDIVIDUALS T

(a) EEME

R FEBREZTOME N

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of each of the directors for the years

presented are set out below: ™
Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
benefits in scheme
Fees kind Contributions Total
#4 BER
e ENEA  RAGHEER @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TET TAT
Year ended 31 December 2018 B2-E-NET-A=T-HLEE
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Guo Lin Eyit - 1,200 17 1,217
Mr. Zhang Yu s
(appointed on 23 November (W=E—tE+-A=1=H
2017 and resigned on BZERR-T-\ELANAEHE)
9.July 2018) = 1,623 11 1,634
Mr. Jiang Mingsheng ZHERE - 600 - 600
Mr. Wang Zhou TMsEE
(vacated on 8 March 2019) (RZZ-NE=R\B#f) - 600 - 600
Mr. Jiang Tianging BiEEEE - 600 - 600
Mr. Hubert Tien mEHRE - 2,303 18 2,321
Mr. Liu Chun Fai BERLE - 600 18 618
- 1,526 64 7,590
Independlent non-executive directors: BUFRNTES:
Mr. Lu Hongbing BASEE 240 - - 240
Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon it 240 - - 240
Mr. Hon Ming Sang BHETE 240 - - 240
M. W Fei RRRE
(appointed on 15 February 2018) (RZEB-\F-A+LREZE) 210 - - 210
930 - - 930
Total emoluments MWees 930 7,526 64 8,520
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 10. ESMlERAEBESHA
PAID INDIVIDUALS (continueq) T

(a) EEB<E &
REFFIEESRESHME M

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of each of the directors for the years

presented are set out below: (Continued) S &
Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
bengfits in scheme
Fees kind Contributions Total
it BER
i EMER  RMRGEIES o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL TAL i
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E-tET-A=1-HLEE
Executive directors: HTEE -
Mr. Guo Lin vt
(appointed on 5 June 2017) (W=Z—tEXARREEM) = 687 = 687
Mr. Zhang Yu FFAE
(appointed on 23 November 2017) (W=F—tE+-A-1=REZf) - 746 = 746
Mr. Jiang Mingsheng AL
(appointed on 5 June 2017) (RZE—tF ARREZT) - 343 - 343
Mr. Wang Zhou TEs
(appointed on 5 June 2017) (W=E—tEXARREE) = 343 = 343
Mr. Jiang Tianging BEEEE
(appointed on 5 June 2017) (R=Z—+F-ARREZE) - 343 - 343
Mr. Hubert Tien mEDRE - 2,015 18 2,033
Mr. Liu Chun Fai BEELE 497 18 515
Mr. Chen Gang FRi%
(retired on 26 May 2017) (RZF—tFRAZT~BER) - 199 6 205
Mr. Qu Chengbiao EERE
(retired on 26 May 2017) (W=F—+FRA-+BEMR) - 97 = 97
Mr. Yeung Kok Leung BERLE
(appointed on 7 September 2016 (RZE-~ENALREZRE
and resigned on 5 June 2017) RRZZ—tF ARARME) - 328 9 337
Mr. Cheng Tze Kit Larry g
(appointed on 24 November 2016 (RZF-R"ET-A-THREZf
and resigned on 5 June 2017) RRZZ—tF ARARME) - 430 9 439
- 6,028 60 6,088
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTEE
Mr. Lu Hongbing BARRE
(appointed on 5 June 2017) (W=F—+EXARRERM) 137 = = 187
Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon ey
(appointed on 22 August 2016) (W=Z-"ENA-T-REZf) 161 = = 161
Mr. Hon Ming Sang BHELE
(appointed on 2 November 2016) (W=F—F+-A-REZ() 161 = = 161
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming HERLE
(appointed on 2 November 2016 (R=F-RE+-A-REZf
and resigned on 5 June 2017) RRZE—-tE ARAEE) 52 - - 52
511 - - 511
Total emoluments Weas 511 6,028 60 6,599
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1&%%%@&5%%%%A
(%)

(b) SREERHNME
EREREREEERAER

TERABE - aRERE (T81F
HEDRMPAMHE10E@) HESE)

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (continueq)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments

Senior management includes directors and other senior
executives. The analysis of the emoluments for senior
management excluding the directors, whose details have

been reflected in Note 10(a) for the year is set out below: BB T -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FAET
Salaries, allowances and benefits ~ #& « FEB N EWEF
in kind 6,136 6,500

The emoluments of the senior management excluding the SREBAENTMER T
directors fell within following bands: :

Number of employees

EEAH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 % T & 1,000,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &7t 1,500,000 77T 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 #&JTZE 2,000,000 77T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 &7t E 3,000,000 77T 1 =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 &7t & 3,500,000 77T = 1
—@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited &5 ZE (= & gt & B R A 7 O
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1&§$M§&£%m%ﬁk
(%)

(c) ERZEEHFAL

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (continueq)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

(d)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included 2
(2017: 1) directors for the year whose emoluments are
reflected in note 10(a). The analysis of the emoluments of
the remaining 3 (2017: 4) highest paid individuals for the
year is set out below:

AEEAEENAERSHFAL
BREMEZ(ZE—CEF: —4)
EE mMEE REENZ
0@ EH =R (ZT—+tF:
ME) &= #H A TRAEE A B
EAWNAT :

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits ~ #& « FEE M EWEF
in kind 7,074 12,514

Number of non-director highest paid employees whose
emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows:

MemrATBENIFEZERS
FREREABLT

Number of employees

BEAH
2018 2017
—2-NE| —=+F
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 /7T Z 2,500,000 7 7T 1 =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T % 3,000,000 % 7T 2 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 /87T % 3,500,000 78 7T = 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 /& 7T % 4,000,000 7 7T = 1
3 4

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,

no director or any of the highest paid individuals waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments and there were no
emoluments paid by the Group to the directors or any of
the highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

(d) REE-_Z-N\FR-_Z—+F

TZA=+—RHILFE  HESE
FREMEREFALIRERLRE
BEEAME  BEXASEHER
B EMERHALMER
M - fERIMAREESE AR
RERE - SBERE o
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11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

1. FiBH (E&) BIx

2018 2017
—E-N\F —FT—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Current income tax AEERHAFREHR
(credited)/charged for the year: (&) BxX:
Hong Kong profits tax BEABEN 953 1,845
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) PR ERGR ([EMER]) 725 1,754
Over-provision in respect of prior year VAR [E B EB R & 2 -
1,676 3,599
Deferred tax (note 28) EERTE (Fi7E28) (3,822) (1,842)
(2,146) 1,757

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and the Cayman lIslands, the Group is not
subject to any taxation under these jurisdictions.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong, except for the first HK$2,000,000 of qualified
entity’s assessable profit is calculated at 8.25%, which is
in accordance with the new two-tiered profits tax rates
regime with effect from the year of assessment 2018/19.

PRC EIT is provided at 25% (2017: 25%) on the estimated
assessable profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiary for the
year.

Under the law of the PRC on EIT, corporate withholding
income tax is levied on the foreign investor for the
dividends distributed out of the profits generated by the
foreign investment enterprises. The Group’s applicable
withholding income tax rate is 5% (2017: 5%).

The USA corporate income tax comprises federal income
tax calculated at 15% and state and local income tax
calculated at various rates on the estimated assessable
profits of the Group’s subsidiary in the USA.

4@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)

(i)

(iv)

REZBEBRES ((REER
REE] MRASEHEMRAIE
Bl NEEBBBERNZS BDAE
(& B (AT TR o

ERFSHRATHEESESE
fH ERBRFIN 16.5% (=%
—£fF 1 16.5%) HH - BIREES
T\~ ARBEE RN
MFMBHFEBE - AERE
P840 2,000,0003% 7T 78 3% Bt i
F128.25% 515 -

PRCEMSHRIIEAEEFEH
B8 A RIAFE MG ERBS
FE25% (Z T —+ 45 : 25%) &t
IR -

RIFPBEEEMAEHE - HINES
BREENIELEMELEZ S
M2k 2z REBBEERANRAE
Mo NEEBER 2 BIABHRBR
KR5%(ZT—+%F : 5%) °

XBECEMBHREREARER
KB B 2 B A (5T SR T4
IR 15% 5T H B FD PTG BIA K
AR R EHMN R TT P
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1. 8% (E&) B @

BORTE B R HIBR PSR AT B 1RE
MPTSHRAX - EIRERRRE TN

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continueq)

A reconciliation of income tax (credit)/expense applicable to loss
before income tax at the statutory tax rate to the income tax

(credit)/expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: FRAZHEERAT ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Loss before income tax B PSS 18 (62,178) (13,875)
Tax calculated at the rates applicable  LAEAR A BT e AE R H A
to profits in the tax jurisdictions B R G EHTIE
concerned (10,176) 3,944
Tax effect of non-deductible TeeNBiFAS  (BERBIRA)
expenses/(non-taxable income) RIS & 4,891 (2,542)
Over-provision in respect of prior year VAR [E 5B (2 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised A HERMRISE B SE 2,836 ==
Others Hih 305 355
Income tax (credit)/expense FTiSHi (&%) /Fx (2,146) 1,757

12. K2

AERIEERFTHRE (ZF—t
F8) AARRESTETEZIRN
HE_Z-N\F+-A=1+—RHILFE
MARPRE (ZF—1F: ®) -

12. DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was declared during the year (2017: Nil) and
the board of directors of the Company does not recommend the
payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. EREE

ERENBEIRIBEANARES AEN
FEEE4760,032,000/87C (ZFE—+
F :15,632,000/87T) RFANBEITR
19 H9 HnAE S 15 £11,690,000,000 A% (—
T—+4F :1,404,904,1100%) 575 -

The calculations of basic loss per share are based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$60,032,000 (2017: HK$15,632,000) and
the weighted average of 1,690,000,000 (2017: 1,404,904,110)
shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share are the same as the basic loss per share R E A AR B P S TR
as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence R WEREEEBRSERERELRE
during the years. Be.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BEREE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
Buildings  improvements Machinery  equipment vehicles Total
il %EBR
BF HENXEE BE  BAZRG AE it

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL

At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-A-H

Cost BA 15,596 5411 3,609 0411 1410 35,437
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (6,405 (5,384) (2.216) [7.737) (1,104) (22,840)
Net carmying amount SEYE 9,191 2 1303 1674 306 12501

Year ended 31 December 2017 HBE-F—+F+-A=+—-HIL5E

Opening net camying amount ~~~ FAIREFE 9,191 2 1,393 1674 306 12,591
Additions e - 11,036 162 4,847 836 16,881
Disposals ih& - - ) () (20) #3)
Depreciation nE (725) (1,014) (295) (765) (156) (2,955)
Exchange diferences EiZE 592 - o1 19 2 724
Closing net carrying amount EREEHE 9,058 10,049 1,330 5773 988 27198

At 31 December 2017 and R-E—+&+-f=1-H
B

1 January 2018 RZF-NE-A-

Cost 7 16,639 16,744 38% 14,437 2122 53,841
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (7.581) (6,695) (2.569) (8,664) (1,134) (26,643)
Net carmying amount SEYE 9,058 10,049 1330 5773 988 27,198
Year ended 31 December 2018 BZ-F-NE+ZA=+-HILEE

Opening net camyingamount IR 9,058 10,049 1,330 5,713 988 27,198
Additions WNE - 714 - 1,261 - 1,975
Disposals ih& - - ) (186) - (187)
Deprecifion i %) (2.290) (204) (1,516) (240) (4,980)
Exchange diferences EXES (445) - (63) (19) (14) (541)
Closing net carrying amount ~ ERKEFE 7,883 8,473 1,062 5,313 734 23,465
At 31 December 2018 R=B8-NF+Zf=1-A

Cost FiR 15,785 17,215 3,696 14,297 2,065 53,058
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (7,902) (8,742) (2,634) (8,984) (1,331) (29,593)
Net carrying amount RAFE 7,883 8,473 1,062 5313 734 23,465

—@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited &= 4 g% E BB A & O
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continueq)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s buildings with net
carrying amounts of approximately HK$4,159,000 (2017:
HK$4,793,000) were pledged to secure the Group’s bills
payable (note 24).

As at 31 December 2018, the net carrying amounts of the
Group’s assets under finance leases included in the total
amounts of furniture, fixtures and office equipment amounted to
HK$1,060,000 (2017: HK$662,000).

14.

M - BERKE @

RZZE—-NE+-A=+—H8  FHE
SFEX4,159,0008 0 (ZF—+F
4,793,000 7T) MAKBMEFE W
TR AERAEBNEAER (K
24) o

RZZE—N\F+_A=+—8 ' BiftA
Rfh - HERPAESRBERBHLAE
ERmEHEE TEENREFEAL
1,060,000/ 7T (ZZ—+4F : 662,000
BIL) °

PAYMENTS FOR LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR  15. RS & E MNgFBE A
OWN USE UNDER OPERATING LEASE AELHTR

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FHEIT

Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BERm#E 1,860 1,792
Amortisation B 5H (54) (54)
Exchange differences PEH ZTR (91) 122
Net carrying amount at 31 December W+ - A=+—HEmEFE 1,715 1,860
Less: Current portion (note 21) B BIHAEE S (M95E21) (54) (54)
Non-current portion JEBNERER > 1,661 1,806

The lease prepayments of the Group represent the Group’s
land use right in respect of a land located in the PRC which is
held under a medium-term lease. Land use right is pledged to
secure the Group’s bills payable as at the reporting date (note
24).

REBHAEBNFIEREE R IR
AR BILA R AR 4035 Y T 1 A 3
- RREAH - THFEREDH
HH - UBERASEREMEE (M
24) o
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16. GOODWILL 16. &
2018 2017
—E-N\F T F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHEIT
Cost at 1 January and 31 December R—A—BETZA=+—HZKAK 99,109 99,109
Accumulated impairment loss RETREE R (11,453) (11,453)
Carrying amount as at 31 December RT+-A=+—RBZEmEE 87,656 87,656

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
the CGU in relation to the Group’s provision of money lending
services (the “Money Lending CGU”) in Hong Kong.

The recoverable amount of the Money Lending CGU has been
determined from value in use calculation based on cash flow
projections from formally approved budgets covering a five-year
period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
18.4% (2017: 16.3%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth
rate of 3% (2017: 3%), which does not exceed the long-term
growth rate for market in Hong Kong. The discount rate used is
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the Money Lending
CGU. The growth rate within the five-year period have been
based on past experience.

If the discount rate increased to 1%, the recoverable amount
of the Money Lending CGU would be approximately equal to
its carrying amount. Except for this, any reasonable possible
change in the key assumptions used in the value-in-use
assessment would not affect the management’s view on
impairment as at 31 December 2018.

SUREREME  BEOEEEAKE
REBRBEEFBERTBEBNRE
EEEU ((EXRERBREELE
fir]) e

EXmMERSHEeELEMNMAIKDEE
REIRBORE A FHIE A ER A TEE Fra)
ReReBAITENFERHEBRET -
HARBEeREEANMREF13.4%
(ZZ—+%F :16.3%) - BBEAFHHN
WEMEIRMET IIEFIIEREI% (=
T—+F:3%) HE ZEERTE
BEEENmHERAERE - AR
KAEBATBIRE - R EEEEREE
RS EELAEMNEBNFTERR - £
FHR KRBT LRMERT

IRBAIRHEINEA% - BIEHKEE MR
BIREEA BN IKRESEHHER
HARME(E © Rtz dh - REREERE
RERA YRR AR M ET B 2R R B
B TSR EEREHURN _T—/\F
TZR=1T—HBREMNEE -
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSET 17. BEEE
Money
lending
license
EXmERR
HK$°000
FExT
Cost and carrying value PR KR BRENE

As at 31 December 2017, RZZE—+F+ZHA=+—8"

1 January and 31 December 2018 2 )\F—A—AEKt+tZA=+—H 800
The license has a legal life of 1 year but is renewable every MR ZAEFI AT - Br] UARERK
year at minimal cost. The directors of the Company are of the REFEH - NAREERANEEE
opinion that the Group would renew the license continuously SRHBERIERBER  WHEBLEED - K
and has the ability to do so. Various studies including product SEEEECETLZEMNR  BEEMD
life cycle studies, market, competitive and environmental trends, FHMR - 5 R LIRRHE - A
and brand extension opportunities have been performed by R fEEA S - REMRIFERE
management of the Group, which supports that the license has HERNP TR EAPR ) - iR AR RRR Sl
no foreseeable limit to the period over which the provision of RGN FHEE AR KB RIRE
services restricted by license are expected to generate net cash TMEVEER ©
flows for the Group.

As a result, the license is considered by the management of the EHit - AEEEEERAZERARE
Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected REEAFEE - AAEEZERAERRE
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The license will HIMEMAFRE o BRAG TS -
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. BEZXHGTAFTHRETCRAER - NG
Instead, it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever F & E BN H ] g R B ORI AR
there is an indication that it may be impaired. 1B °

For the key assumptions applied in determination of value- EHEANETESERIERRER
in-use calculation of the Money Lending CGU containing the CESBMERABENE CHERRERR
license and the respective sensitivity analysis, please refer to BEZHBRELNZFE - F2HME
note 16 for details. 16 °
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A

18. INVENTORIES 18. &
2018 2017
—2-nf| —T-+#
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAETT
Raw materials and consumables R FEM 2,575 3,266
Work in progress Pl 742 765
Finished goods 2K 5,690 5,282
9,007 9,313

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

19. EZEWFREREREE

2018 2017

—F-NF| ZTLEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FET

Trade receivables B S REWFIE 15,725 42,613
Less: written off of trade receivables R BB EBGRIEM IS (464) -
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (407) -
14,854 42,613

Bills receivables i E 3,694 10,176
18,548 52,789

CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7) O




19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continueq)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

Trade receivables are recognised at their original invoice
amounts which represented their fair values at initial recognition.
The Group’s trade receivables are attributable to a number of
independent customers with credit terms. Bills receivables are
received from independent customers under the ordinary course
of business. The Group normally allows a credit period ranging
from 10 to 180 days (2017: 10 to 180 days) to its customers.
Trade and bills receivables are non-interest bearing.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date and

net of loss allowance is as follows:

(%)

B PR FIRE REZERR

19. EZEWFREREREE

Bz

B2 BB AR RS ATE
REEE HRYGIRER Z @A EE
EMNBYEP RREBEANBEEE

B5EREH B TP UWER

AEEBEE

EHFEEPNTF10E180K (ZZE—+
F:102180K) NEEH - EFEIK

FIANMEREETAR -

RIBHZEMNE Z IR (FNERE

) RO T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

0 to 30 days 0&30H 3,215 6,646

31 to 60 days 31E60H 5,895 10,560

61 to 90 days 61£290H 717 10,024

91 to 180 days 912180 H 2,120 13,623

Over 180 days Hi®180 H 2,907 1,760

14,854 42,613

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment on trade B 5 RYFIERERBNES B NN
receivables are as follows: ™

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

At beginning of year REH] - 777

Impact on initial application of IR ERB BB IRE 4R

HKFRS 9 (note 2.1()) F OB E (MIFE2.1() 639 -

Impairment losses, net (note 9) REEEFRE (M9 (232) =

Amount written off as uncollectible AR E B B i SE IR - (777)

At end of year RER 407 =
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. ESERREBEBREREE

The Group provided for impairment loss on individual
assessment based on the accounting policy stated in note
4.9A (ji) and 4.9B (i) under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively. The Group
did not hold any collateral as security over the trade receivables.
However, in order to minimise the credit risk of not receiving
payments from its customers, the Group has entered into
arrangements with a financial institution in the USA and a bank
in Hong Kong (which in turn entered into certain arrangement
with an insurance company in this connection), and Hong Kong
Export Credit Insurance Corporation (“ECIC”) (provides Hong
Kong exporters with insurance protection against non-payment
risks arising from commercial and political events), which
offered trade receivable credit protection arrangement against
the Group’s trade receivables for certain major customers.
As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables of approximately
HK$9,439,000 (2017: HK$16,383,000) were under such
arrangements of which if the Group ultimately becomes unable
to collect the trade receivables, the Group will be entitled to
receive compensation for the trade receivables from the financial
institution or the bank.

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended
31 December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECL. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customers
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

4@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)

(%)

REBEZE-—N\FR=_F—tF+=A
=+—HLFE  AEEDRIREES
B S R F G FE4.9A () kB
B EHAERISE 39 5T 5E 4.9B (i) AT Y
BETECR - RERIFHE S AR EEE
EH B - AEEWEHE 5 EKRFIE
BEEAERR - Al - AREREE
FEREPYEIFIENERARR - A5E
BHEER-—REmMEERES KR
EkEBLOEARRERR (HOEAR
2R (% RBUA B HEKRER
E R AES L O ERERBRARRE) - 5]
SR (TS R K ERTTRIBE L 22
RBRAREINETZH)  ETEE
BEMEAASENE S EWNGRIAERE
BORUWRBERREREE - RZF
—N\F+=ZA=+—8 " %9,439,000
BT (ZF—+%F :16,383,000/%8 7T)
MBS EUGREZ | FBLTHHRE - &
It - AN ARE B ERAR R AU E B 5 UK
I8 ANEBSEREEZS BB SIRTT
HEBEE S RIS TERE -

BE2-ZE-N\F+=H
=t+—HLEFERESBH
%ﬁ%ﬁ%%Q%ETWH

REwE B HRABERRETRED
7 ETEEHBEEER - BEXDHE
REFRUBBRANZEERF 5 54
RIHBEI A BETE - 2t ERRSIAR
MEER  EERREERNRE RS
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continueq)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended
31 December 2018 (continueq)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

For trade receivables under credit protection arrangement:

19. EZEWFREREREE

(%)

BEz=ZE2—-N\F+=AH

=T+—HLEFEEREEY

Eﬁ%ﬁ%%Q%ETmﬁ
(%

AR B ERESSERAREE S
JEUIRM EERER AR :

BERRELZEHE 5 RIGIAR

Past due
s

Less than 3to6 6to12 Over

Current 3 month months months 1 year Total
TEB

B 388 3Z6fA 6Z12F BE1F #E

ECL rate B EEBEX 0.5% 1% 1.5% 3.5% 5%

Gross carryingamount  BREZ 2% (T L)

(HK$'000) 6,364 2,888 166 - 20 9,438
ECLs (HK$'000) BEEEBE (TAT) 32 29 2 - 1 64
For trade receivables without credit protection arrangement: EERRELHNE ZRIGKIE

Past due
s

Less than 3to6 6to 12 Over

Current 3 month months months 1 year Total
TEA

k] 3f8A 3Z6f8 6Z12EF BEIF L

ECL rate it EERRX 1% 2% 3% 7% 10%

Gross carryingamount ~ BREZEE (T

(HK$'000) 2,294 291 21 252 2,965 5,823

ECLs (HK$'000) HEHEEER (FAT) 28 6 1 17 296 343
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B 75 3 2% B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. ESERREBEBREREE

(#)
Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended BE-ZE—+tH5+=A
31 December 2017 =E+—HLFEERERE
=1 ¥ =~ N=
2RI 5 39 3R AR E
Ageing analysis of trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 RZZB—tF+-A=+—HREEH
that were not impaired under HKAS 39 and based on due dates 2 EH 4RI 28 39 5% I £ R (E R AR IR B ER
is as follows: BEE ZEWKIBRE DT T -
2017
—E—+F
HK$’'000
FAT
Neither past due nor impaired AR AT R E 26,210
Not more than 90 days past due B H R 90 B 7,242
91 days to not more than 180 days wWHI91 HET AR 180 H
past due 5,890
181 days to not more than 1 year #HI181 HETNHBIBR—F
past due 2,675
More than 1 year past due WHAR R —F 596
42,613
Trade receivables which were neither past due nor impaired BEARBEA MR EN B S RBGRIE S K&
related to customers for whom there was no recent history of MEP - B AT AR N REREER o
default.
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to BB RRERE 5 W IBATS KA
a number of customers that had a good track record of credit BURP  EASEHAEARFERT
with the Group. Based on past credit history, the directors of the 8 - RIBERES - XAARESRAED
Company believe that no impairment allowance under HKAS AR EEHRERRERE RERARE
39 was necessary in respect of these balances as there had BEERWEHIREANES - MABER
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances TR R 28UE o

were still considered to be fully recoverable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

20. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

20. IR & R BRI 2

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHEIT

Non-current JEENER
Loans receivables EUE R 4,901 =

Current BN HA

Loans receivables EUE R 100,190 147,906
Interest receivables FEUWFI B 2,047 975
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (1,799) -
100,438 148,881
105,339 148,881

The Group’s loans and interest receivables, which arise from
the money lending business of providing corporate loans,
personal loans and property mortgage loans in Hong Kong, are
denominated in HK$.

As at 31 December 2018, loans and interest receivables of
HK$60,578,000 (2017: HK$39,716,000) were unsecured while
remaining loans and interest receivables of HK$44,761,000
(2017: HK$109,165,000) were secured by charges over certain
properties in Hong Kong and personal properties such as
diamonds and jewelries, and guaranteed by certain independent
third parties. The interest rates on all loans receivables are
from 2.3% to 36% (2017: 2.3% to 36%) per annum and
loans receivables is due within 12 to 60 months and contains
repayment on demand clause. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at each of the reporting date is the carrying value of the
loans and interests receivables mentioned above.

5 [ B B MR B R e B IR B DA T AT
B ELAREBRHEEEN  BAA
EREMEREIBEFNERRERT -

R—ZZE—NF+_A=+—8"
60,578,000 7 7T & F& U & 7 K FE W I
B (ZZT—+t% :39,716,00087T) A
| M & T 44,761,000 7T A
EREREERFE (ZF—5F:
109,165,000/ 7T) HERE TEED
ENMEAME (WELRKE) FIK
# WEHETEILE=FER -2
HEKEFNFEREE  NTEF
23% &3/ ( ZF — £ F :23%=
36%) REWERN12E60EAKE
H - WEBBIRERKEEKRR - RSk
EHHNSEAEERRE L ERRE
WF B RBRE(E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

20. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continues) 20. B E R K EWFIE &)

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group uses an internal MSNEBA TR E KA - AEBEEAA
credit assessment process to assess the potential borrower’s BEETEREF O EEERANEE
credit quality and defines credit limits granted to borrowers. Bx TETHRTERANSERE -
Limits attributed to borrowers are reviewed by the management BTEFIANERRESHEEETH
regularly. Rad o

As at the reporting date, the Group reviewed its loans and RiE A AEBERERMEBELE
interest receivables for evidence of impairment on both individual EREWEREFE  LERARSEE
and collective basis. The Group recognised impairment loss on ARENRE REBEE_T—N\FEZ
individual assessment based on the accounting policy stated T—+tFF+ZA=T—RHILEFE F&
in note 4.9A (i) and 4.9B (i) respectively under HKFRS 9 and Rl BEBEEBVEREERE IR
HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 NEBGTERE 3957 - M aE 4.9Ai)
respectively. K% 4.9B(ii) AT it &) & 51 ER 28 1 RR 8 B 5T

EERERE -

The movements for impairment on loans and interest EWE R R ERENZBIAT
receivables are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
At beginning of year REA) - -
Impact on initial application of VT ERAB B HRE LR
HKFRS 9 (note 2.1(i)) F9meT e (FiE2.1() 1,854 -
Impairment losses, net (note 9) BEEEFE (i) (55) -
At end of year RER 1,799 =
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended BE-ZE—N\E+=A
31 December 2018 =Et+—HLEFEREARHR
MR EEREISRIE AR
B
Since adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group has measured loss BB BT BHREERFEIFTLAK -
allowances for loans and interest receivables based on AEBER12E ABHEEEBE
12-month ECLs unless there have been a significant increase in W EF A B EEREE - BRIEBRE
credit risk since origination, then the allowance will be based on ERBEEBZRERAR LA - Higi
lifetime ECLs. The Group has assessed the ECLs on loans and ERGERBHEESBELRE - K
interest receivables based on the Group’s historical credit loss SEERAEENBEEEEBLRT
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the HEKEF R ENEHRERESE - I
debtors and the economic environment. REBARENAEEER KBRS

it -
4@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7) O
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

20. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continueq)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended
31 December 2017

As at 31 December 2017, the loans and interest receivables
of HK$165,000 were fully impaired. The individually impaired
loans and interest receivables as at 31 December 2017 relate to
customer that was in financial difficulties. Based on past credit
history, management believes that no impairment allowance
under HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of remaining loans
and interest receivables as there was no significant change
in credit quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable.

Ageing analysis of loans and interest receivables as at 31
December 2017 that were not impaired under HKAS 39 and
based on due dates is as follows:

20. EWERKEWRE )

BZz-Z2—t+tH+=H
=T+—HLEFEREES
S B39 % E T HRE

R—_E—+FE+=-_A=+—8"
165,000 7% 7T B FE N & 3k & 7 B 2 B K
BE R —tF+=ZA=+—8"
1B Rk (B 9 FE U S 3R R ) B B3 B B 755
RBNEFL AR - AN BAEERSE -
ERERE BN EEERIEEAY
B) MBI BB KD - RIS
BEREREF B ARG TERKE
RERF)BEITRERE -

R-ZE—+F+-_A=1+—"HBREES
5T % RIS 39 57 I £ R (B AR 1R B R
B &9 FE U E 2R U FI) B BR ik 0 AT 4N
T~

2017
—FT—+F
HK$’000
FHET

BEAR I8 A TR Rk (B
BT EE=EA

Neither past due nor impaired
Not more than 3 months past due

147,081
1,800

148,881
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

21. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21. &€ - AR R EAER

=+
RECEIVABLES MIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Non-current ERE
Deposits i - 5,000
Current IERE
Prepayments and other receivables, TARTRR R B Ath FENERIE - 45
gross 11,096 12,053
Less: impairment losses A OREEE (1,918) (1,918)
Prepayments and other receivables, net FBf 3k & Efth fEURFRIA - JF%58 9,178 10,135
Deposits e 10,664 7,071
Payments for leasehold land held for REHE THREE R/
own use under operating lease ME LR (HFE15)
(note 15) 54 54
19,896 17,260
19,896 22,260

During the year ended 31 December 2017, deposits of
HK$5,000,000 were paid by the Group under a series of sale
and purchase agreements dated on 25 January 2017 and
supplement agreements dated 22 December 2017 (collectively
“S&P Agreements”) between the Group and an independent
third party in relation to the acquisitions of entire share capitals
of Prior Securities Limited (“Prior Securities”) and Prior Asset
Management Limited (“Prior Asset”). The considerations for
the acquisitions of Prior Securities and Prior Asset will be
determined by respective net assets values plus HK$6,200,000
and HK$7,000,000 respectively and should not be exceeding
a total consideration of HK$30,900,000. The condition
precedent pursuant to the S&P Agreements were not fulfilled or
satisfied by 31 July 2018, being the long stop date of the S&P
Agreements, therefore, the acquisitions were not completed and
the S&P Agreements were automatically terminated. Deposits
of HK$5,000,000 represented payments of non-refundable
deposit for the acquisitions were forfeited after the termination
of the S&P Agreements.

4@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)
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FE AEBREBEEHE-_ZT—+tF
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ahR (ABIEEHZ]) XT&Re
5,000,000 - EEWHZEIIBAASE
B— 2B E= A REBR IR ESFER
AR ([BiER]) RAHEEERER
RAF ([FREE] 92 FRAMET
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continuea)

Other deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers. As at 31 December
2018, deposits and other receivables of the Group have no
comparable companies with credit ratings can be identified,
expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the
Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.
The loss rate applied for where there are no comparable
companies as at 31 December 2018 was 1-2%.

As at 31 December 2017, other receivables that were neither
past due nor impaired related to counterparties for whom there
was no recent history of default. The directors of the Company
consider that other receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired at the reporting date under review are of good credit
quality under HKAS 39.

There was no movement in the provision for impairment of
prepayments and other receivables during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2018 respectively.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s time deposits
of HK$3,314,000 (2017: HK$4,522,000) and nil (2017:
HK$2,074,000) were pledged as securities for the Group’s
bills payables (note 24) and banking facilities respectively.
These banking facilities amounting to HK$12,500,000 as at
31 December 2017, which are also secured by the corporate
guarantee of the Company, were expired on 22 March 2018
and have not been utilised before the expiry date. No new
banking facilities have been obtained as at the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank deposits carried
interest at average market rates 1.55% (2017: 0.14% to 1.55%)
per annum. The carrying amount of the Group’s pledged bank
deposits are denominated in HK$ and Renminbi (‘RMB”).

21.

22.

Be - AARREAmER

FRIE (#)

Hibize REMBUGREF ZEHER
S REHEREIIVHNES - RZT—N
F+—A=+—H8 AEENKEERE
i FE MR TE I 4 °] 38 B {5 BT AR LLBR
nNAE > BRHEEEBEEABEAEEX
% RBEAREENBEEIBLEG
BT o FAEBALL RIER RRIE A RLE
AR R AR SRAEEARRTE R o BN =T
—N\F+_A=+—BELRAF
AEARTEERB R LR R 1-2% o

R-_ZE—tF+-_A=+—H0 " XA
HIME R AR B BRI MR 5
T HIET R AR - &
NAEERR - ZFRARBHIERE
EE A FEUTRIR - PRV #RE B HA
HEBEEETERIFIRE TR
IEEEER -

HE-Z—LFER-F—/\F+=A
=t+—BIEFE - ENRREMELR
B R R .

EEFRITER

R_E—N\F+=—A=+—H £5H
B E HATF 33,314,000/ T (—Z T —+
F:4,522,00087m) REBT(ZF
—+ 4 2,074,000/ ) B FIERA
SRMERAEBMNENTZE (HiE24)
RIRTTREER - RZT—tF+=
A=+—H " #%%12,500,000& T2
IRITRE (PR FIREAQ RIER
B ERZE—N\F=A=+=H
FER - WRBIHAB AT AREN A - BER
SR MARESHARITRE -

R-ZZBE—N\E+-A=+—0 B3
FRITFRAT S FIFERETF1.55%
(ZB—+%F : 0.14%F1.55%) 5t 8 o
AEBE S HEMIRITFRERAEENET
AR ([ARE]) FHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 23. RERBITER

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THT FHEIT

Cash and cash equivalents B NIBEHEER 152,597 164,736

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
deposits rates.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and bank
balances and pledged bank deposits denominated in
RMB amounting to approximately HK$6,794,000 (2017:
HK$6,235,000) which were placed with certain banks in the
PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government. Under the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through the banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business. The bank balances and
pledged deposits with creditworthy banks with no recent history
default.

FARITRREIRE A 7R RIAF B
RGBS

R_ZE—N\F+=_A=1+—8  £A%£H
MRS MIBITEEARAARENE
72 IR RI1TIF 5K A 4 6,794,000 4 7T
(ZZ—+4% :6,235000/87T) * 75
REEARE TIRIT - ARBTEEEH
HMHMER - R BERIPEINIF
B A BB RO INE B IS AR R o ARIR
B CHMNE B IRIRB)) R CKEE - &
[ERMEEERE) AEEBESER
BREBETTINEZEBRITARK Hi%
ABEHMEE - RITHEBREIERIEZSY
EEEERENRITET THWLEE
HE/R D8R

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 24, ESRENFERENERE
2018 2017

—E—N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FAT

Trade payables BB ENFIR 9,227 23,044

Bills payable A3 11,046 14,351
20,273 37,395

Credit periods of trade payables normally granted by its
suppliers were ranging from 15 to 120 days (2017: from 15 to
120 days).

4@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)

HERGTAEEEZE SEMNZKENEE
H—MNF155120K (ZZ—+4F :
15%120K) o




24,

25.

26.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

Ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period based on invoice date is as follows:

24. ESENFEREMNERE
(%&)

R EHRARRBEERAHNE HEN
FORRRE DOITIAT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

0 to 30 days 0&30H 4,728 11,216
31 to 60 days 31E60H 1,929 2,239
61 to 90 days 612 90H 881 3,075
91 to 180 days 912180 H 981 2,950
Over 180 days B 180 H 708 3,564
9,227 23,044

Bills payable are normally settled on 180-day (2017: 180-day)
credit terms.

B ZHEBEIRISOKR (ZE—+HF
180K) HEEHA&E AT o

ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND RECEIPTS 25. FE1EE A - HitE =18
IN ADVANCE RFEWFRIE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHEIT
Accruals TEIREH 6,405 17,918
Other payables H AR RIR 12,462 12,653
Receipts in advance AW ERIE 26 8,898
18,893 39,469
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. EHNEE
2018
—2-N\F
HK$’000
FExT
Short-term advances from customers: B/ EFE L -
Sale of goods HEEM 2,031

Note: Under the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts in relation to advances from
customers for sale of goods, previously included as “Receipts in advance”,
have been reclassified to “Contract liabilities” as at 31 December 2018.

i RIBBRMIERELRF165R - ARH
ERMNTAKE P RIBLAIZIER [TEU
P BEEMORER-_T-NEF+A
=t—BMIamnasEl -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 27. ;T EBE
2018 2017
—EB—N\F —ET—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
PiEE FEx FAT
Current portion: BERER o
Obligations under finance BEMEEAE - BETR
leases, secured 32(a) 218 325
Non-current portion: FERNHAER 2 -
Obligations under finance BEMEEAE - FHER
leases, secured 32(a) 853 374
1,071 699

BN FATEE
ZEREEE

- '_H/%\Féltg

Interests borne at rates per annum
in the range of:
— Fixed-rate borrowings

4.5% to £5%

4.5% to £ 5%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest bearing borrowings
are denominated in HK$. Total interest-bearing borrowings due

A

AEBEFREE 2REEABITHE
EENEHNEREEFTSEER

for repayment based on the scheduled repayment dates are as BT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FET
Within one year —FA 218 325
More than one year, but not —F L FETHBIBRF
exceeding two years 229 176
More than two years, but not FFLA LB BB R F
exceeding five years 624 198
1,071 699
—@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7) O
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IEAEHIIR
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FRELEHIEEEMBBEZESHNAT ¢

year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EEHBEE

Impairment of
trade receivables

and loans
receivables Tax losses Total
EZERRER
EWERAHE BEEE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FAL FAL
At 1 January 2017 = 742 742
Credited to profit or loss for the year - 769 769
As at 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018 - 1,511 1,511
Credited to profit or loss for the year 430 3,392 3,822
As at 31 December 2018 430 4,903 5,333
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried B IBEE R BER BRI EEER
forwards to the extent that realisation of the related tax RO FE R F) B IR B AR R B TR I e e
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. As at HERIBEIBAEMER - R_T—\F
31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of +TZA=+—8  AEEHRBAIE
approximately HK$46,907,000 (2017: HK$9,158,000) available B 18 49 5 46,907,000 7T (=2 —+
to offset against future taxable profits of the companies that #F :9,158,000/& 7T) * Al BEHEE £
incurred these losses, in which tax losses approximately of ZEEIB 2 RRIARRERTR A IE -
HK$17,191,000 (2017: Nil) were not recognised as deferred tax H A IAE184917,191,0007%8 7T (2017
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position as the F T ARGEEUBARRRER
management believes it is not likely that such tax losses would REETIBEE BABERERRZE
be realised. MIAEIE T KRB #IR -
These tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation. BEERREE  ZEHIBEHEYEE
i °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

28. DEFERRED TAX (continueq)

Deferred tax liabilities

Withholding
taxes on
undistributed
profits of PRC
subsidiaries
HEIKE AR

R EORF AN
HK$'000

FET

As at 1 January 2017
Charged to profit or loss for the year

As at 31 December 2017,
1 January 2018
and 31 December 2018

R-F—tF—A—H
a4 PRz

R-E—+HF+-_A=+—H80"
—E-NF—H—H
rE=E—-—N\Ft+=-A=+—H

1,073
(1,073)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding income tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiary from 1 January 2008 onwards. A lower
withholding income tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The applicable rate for the Group is 5% (2017: 5%). In
estimating the withholding income taxes on dividends expected
to be distributed by those subsidiaries established in the PRC
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the
directors have made an assessment based on the factors which
included the dividend policy and the level of capital and working
capital required for the Group’s operations in the foreseeable
future. As at 31 December 2018, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised amounted to
approximately HK$4,626,000 (2017: HK$2,148,000).

4@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
Number of Nominal
ordinary value
shares at of ordinary
HK$0.01 each shares
BREEO0.01E T
EERHE EEREE
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 WZE—tF—H—H8"
and 31 December 2018 —T—+F+-A=+—H
k=Z-N\F+=-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAE
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—H—H 830,000,000 8,300
Issue of ordinary shares by BB ETEAR ()
placement (Note) 860,000,000 8,600
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 RZZ—+F+=ZA=1+—H
RZT—)\F 1,690,000,000 16,900
Note: On 26 January 2017, the Company entered into a subscription agreement iz RZT—+tF—A=Z+H AAFH
(the “Subscription Agreement”) with New Seres, pursuant to which New Seres ] R ([REWHHE])
New Seres has agreed to subscribe for and the Company has agreed J& Ik New Seres 2 [F] & 12 & 1% 0.238 78 7T
to allot and issue an aggregate of 860,000,000 new shares at a total NEXRRBRERARAEREEE RET
consideration of HK$204,680,000 at the price of HK$0.238 per share. & 860,000,000 #T %10 + RIELALRE A
The placement under Subscription Agreement was completed on 2 May 204,680,000 7T ° RIBREHZEITH
2017. REER-_ZT—tFRA-HZK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

30. RESERVES

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share premium

The share premium account represents the excess of
the proceeds received over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued, net of share issue costs.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to certain
reorganisation of the Group and the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant PRC laws, the subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer at least
10% of its net profit after tax, as determined under the
PRC accounting regulation, to a statutory reserve until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the subsidiary’s
registered capital. The transfer of this reserve must be
made before the distribution of dividend to the subsidiary’s
equity owners. The statutory reserve is non-distributable
other than upon the liquidation of the subsidiary.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 4.4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

31. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 3. MEBEESHRERMEE
CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (a) MEETHELENEESY
financing activities iR

Margin Obligations  Other interest-
loan  under finance bearing bank

payable leases borrowings
ERFR MERS Hittzt 2
B i RITEE
(Note 32(a))
(KiEE 32(a))
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FHL FAT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 22,112 637 =
Changes from cash flows: Rene#
Proceeds from interest-bearing 5t B A& EFT1S A
borrowings - - 44 247
Repayments of interest-bearing {EE:tEEE
borrowings - (254) (44,247)
Interest paid BERFIE (51) (26) (565)
Other changes HAoh %
Interest expenses FEFXZ 51 26 565
Additions of property, RNEME - BE K&
plant and equipment - 316 -
Settlement of financial assets at AR (B2 BZE A
fair value through profit or loss & HEEMNTBEELE 22,112) = =
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=-HA=1+—8 - 699 -
Changes from cash flows: Rene2y:
Repayments of interest-bearing [E&:T BEE
borrowings - (292) -
Interest paid ERFE - (39) =
Other changes Hith#
Interest expenses F B - 39 —
Additions of property, NEWE - BERZE
plant and equipment = 870 =
Cancellation of the obligation ~ BUHREHERE
under finance lease - (206) -
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\F+_A=+—H - 1,071 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

31. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 3. REBRERERMTE @

CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) EXFBEERS

(b) Major non-cash transaction

During the year, the Group entered into a new finance
lease arrangements in respect of property, plant and
equipment with a total capital value at the inception of
the lease of HK$848,000. This new lease arrangement
has replaced the previous one in which the fixtures,
furniture and office equipment with net carrying amount of
HK$186,000 were returned to the lessor and the related
obligations of HK$206,000 were cancelled by the lessor.
The cancellation of previous lease arrangement has been
regarded by the Group as disposals of property, plant and
equipment.

32. LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a) Finance lease commitments

The Group leased its office equipment under a finance
lease with an average lease term of 5 years. The Group’s
obligation under finance lease is secured by the lessor’s
title to the leased asset.

Interest rate underlying all obligations under finance lease
is fixed at respective contract date at 4.5% - 5.0% (2017:
4.5% - 5.0%) per annum.

4@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)

RAFE  AEERFAHEER
A T 8 48 %8 %% 848,000 78 7L ¥
X BELARBILFHMERE
L WWHEE R IR
LZHF - B P ERE I 1E /186,000
BITOERM RERPRAER
BEREEHHEA BRBEEB
206,000/ 7T i i T A GESH © 5B
AEELHEHEAREEER
HEME - BB R&E -

32. FHEKIE

(a)

BEHERE

AEEREREMEE (FHEE
FHALF) HEERLAER
e ARERREHEERTIZE
THHEAHHEHEEE 2 HHE
TEYELR

MEMEBTIHMARBEL
FEENRNSBEEHBHETE A
4.5%-5.0% (ZF— 1 F : 4.5%-
5.0%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

32. LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a) Finance lease commitments (Continueq)

Future minimum rental payables are as follows:

32. HEHIE @)

mMEHERE @
KR EN R ERS BT :

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

Within one year —FNA 266 351
In the second to fifth years FE_ERTF 931 400
1,197 751
Less: Future finance charges B RRBE T (126) (52)

Present value of minimum lease ~ &IEMAERFIRE

payments 1,071 699

Present value of minimum lease payments included in

SABEMEIRARNZERE

consolidated statement of financial position is as follows: NFIBRERAT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE - AEES
— Current portion 218 325
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEMBE - FERIEE S
— Non-current portion 853 374
1,071 699
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #EZ—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

32. LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable
operating lease of the Group in respect of land and

32. FHEAIE »)
(b) BEHERE

AEERBETAEHLEHER
THREFREMNZARZERS

buildings are as follows: W -
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHT
Within one year —FR 4,934 8,332
In the second to fifth years F_ENF 4,464 4,025
9,398 12,357

The Group leases certain properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of 1 year to
5 years (2017: 1 year to 5 years). None of these leases
include any contingent rentals.

—@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited &5 ZE (= & gt & B R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 33.

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following significant

BB RS

BREABSHmREMEB AR 2 X BN - AN
SERAFEETHEIRMEB TR ZW

related party transactions during the year. N

(@) Transaction with related party (a) EEEEEE S ETHRS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAT

Rental expense charged by a fellow  New Seres B —f&E R &

subsidiary of New Seres ME AR ER TS B A 6,717 343

The directors of the Company are of the view that the
transaction was entered in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Company and on normal commercial
terms.

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

The Group defines directors as key management
personnel and their remuneration are set out in note 10(a).

ARAEZRRELERHINA
RAE—R M A BEBBIEPIRIE
FERREIIL -

(b) EEEEANEHM

AEBBEEEARATATEEEA
B MEEEEABNFMEIRN
MizE10() °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

=) ~\ 3
34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. ST AR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RREHREESH T EERN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BREEWT -
2018 2017
—E-)\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAETT
Financial assets BKEE
Financial assets at amortised cost B EK AT 2N EE
(2017: loans and receivables) (ZZE—+%F : BERNEWFIE)
— Trade and bills receivables - B S EWFE K EWEE 18,548 52,789
— Loans and interest receivables - R E SR R FE A B 105,339 148,881
— Deposits and other receivables - 1%&e R HAMEWFIE 17,518 14,559
— Pledged bank deposits - BIRRIEITER 3,314 6,596
— Cash and bank balances - R& MIRITHETE 152,597 164,736
297,316 387,561
Financial liabilities g =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEK AT 2N EE
— Trade and bills payables - B SRR NENEE 20,273 37,395
— Accruals and other payables - TRIREBRA R EMERNKRIE 18,867 30,571
— Interest-bearing borrowings - EEE 1,071 699
40,211 68,665
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets.

(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group’s exposures to currency risk arise mainly from its
overseas sale transactions and settlement of its overseas
purchases, both of which are primarily denominated in
United States Dollars (“US$”) and RMB. These are not the
functional currencies of the Group entities to which these
transactions relate.

All the Group’s foreign exchange structured forward
contracts are approved by the executive directors. In
addition, the Group will not enter into any additional foreign
exchange structured forward contracts unless advance
approval by the shareholders has been obtained while the
executive directors and their related parties shall abstain
from voting. The Group performs analysis for monitoring of
the foreign exchange structured forward contracts.

35. ,ﬁéﬁ%ﬁwﬁﬁéi@&ﬁ$ﬁﬁ

==}

AEBRERBERBBEDRREEY
hiEAES R T AMAIMBEER - M5
R BEm SRR (B1E5NE Rk KA
XER)  EERRERBESRR

AEENNBRREREEZTSETS
E TR ASKEEE T - PFERE R
REREEEINRESRTIZRAR
NERAEBNEMEFIRSRE

(a) FhEEREB

SNERBRIE SR T AM R TFEDK
RER R EFINEE R B EHT
KB Z R o AN E RSN EL
T2REEBFINIER S MEN
BINEE HXBEUERT (X
) RARKGE - ZFEHYL
ERZFHRNAEEERNTLR
AL HE o

AEERAGERIEINERRA L
REAITESZE © S - BRIE
EREBRRIE  BRIAEE
PR MAEFBRINEBIEINES
% FSRTESEREBE LA
AU B E - XEBHRFT L
BREINERMEOETHNL

LR S s A
EEZEAN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continueq)

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Summary of exposure

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, i.e. currency other than the functional

Notes to the Financial Statements

35. B E ke EE R N FEE

E

(a) e B ()
LIRS
R-Z—\F+=A=+—8"

AEBEAINE (ISEEEREN
DEEERUINNER) SHENH

currency of the respective group entities, are as follows: BEEMBGEMNREENAT ¢
Financial Financial
assets liabilities Total
MBEE g =R et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FERT
As at 31 December 2018 R=Z2—-N\&F
+t=A=+-8
RMB AR 11 (2,417) (2,406)
uss$ ETT 56,394 (25,450) 30,944
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF
+=A=+-—H
RVMB AR 25 (4,247) (4,222)
Us$ SSUE 102,012 (23,627) 78,385
Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis ERHRBEDN

Since HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in HK$/US$ exchange rate. The
following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s loss
after tax for the year and equity in regard to a 3% change
in RMB exchange rate. The rate is used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s best assessment
of the possible change in foreign exchange rates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continueq)

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
currency exchange rates taking place at the beginning
of the financial year with all other variables held constant
throughout the year. A positive number in the sensitivity
analysis below indicates a decrease in loss after tax where
HK$ strengthens against RMB. For a weakening of the
HK$ against RMB, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on loss after tax, and the balances below would be
negative.

35. B Ebe EE R D FEE

= ==
= (&)

(a) e B ()

ERGREDIN (&)

& B e B AT SN
B 2 BRRE AT TH R AR SN B R

ERMBHMEENEEFERA
HBTEMETE - TXEHEED
Frep Y IERHE R BT AR
E5R - RIRRRRERRD - L8
TRARBESME - HEHEHIEK
BESELAERAMERNTZE -
m NS RRE o

Effect on loss after tax

RBREE2FE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHT
If HK$ strengthens against RMB #0705 A REEFE 60 106
If HK$ weakens against RMB WMAETHARKEEE (60) (108)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. K ERERE R AR E
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) —4C )

(b) Interest rate risk (b) = px

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of the changes in market interest rates. The Group’s
interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing
borrowings which are at variable rates (note 27) and the
Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank balances which
were bearing floating interest rate (notes 22 and 23). The
Group has not used any derivative to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. The policies to manage interest rate
risk which have been followed by the Group since prior
years are considered to be effective.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s loss after tax for the year
and equity, with effect from the beginning of the years.
These changes are considered to be reasonably possible
based on observation of current market conditions. The
calculations are based on the Group’s floating rate financial
instruments held at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis has been prepared assuming these financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. There is no impact
on other components of combined equity in response to
the possible change in interest rates.

NMERERSEEBITANQFE
FReRERT SN KK E M H
BRE) 2 B o AN BE)F R R
REBERBEFEFEEER (T
27) RASEHEERRITEK
K ARTT /17 IR 5 B R R (B
22 % 23) - NEBE W KEME
PTAE T ESMEM KRR - K
SEEREFEE A —EEERN
REBROBER - ARABRERS
B

FRGBE DT

TRINREMEEMEERT T
BZBERT  NEBEZFEBRM
BRERBELESENZEFY
ERZ BRI RER R BB 2 B
B - ZFEEHEBERITHN
BRAEEARLE - SETIR
BAKRERRERRARHE 2T
BT EET - 2T HREN
BEMRAARTEZZZFESRT
AEREFHEITEMBRE - FIR
Z I RE B A i ket < E AL

IN X B/ 488
DAL o

Decrease/(increase)
in loss after tax

BB EEERD (1)

2018 2017

—2—ng| —=—+%

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

Increase by 50 basis points H#EH0 50 1= 2h 32 26
Decrease by 50 basis points A B0 B2, (32) (26)
o)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

35. M EREER A FER

= (&)

(c) EERRKBER

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continueq)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk mainly arises from trade and bills receivables,
loans and interest receivables, other receivables, pledged
bank deposits and cash and bank balances. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets except that the credit risks associated with loan
receivables is mitigated because they are secured over
collaterals. There is no significant changes in the quality
of collaterals as a result of deterioration or changes in
the collateral policies of the entity during both reporting
periods.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has developed
and maintains the Group’s credit risk gradings to
categorise exposures according to their degree of risk
of default. The credit rating information is based on the
Group’s own trading records to rate its major customers
and other debtors. The Group’s exposure and the credit
ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored
and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is
spread amongst approved counterparties.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the exposures
to credit risk are monitored such that any outstanding
debtors are reviewed and followed up on an ongoing
basis. The Group continuously monitors defaults of
customers and other counterparties, identified either
individually or by group, and incorporate this information
into its credit risk controls. The Group’s policy is to deal
only with creditworthy counterparties.

EERRESRTIAZHFIR
EEERTAZGRETER
T TEBAKEFEHEEE
Z Rk - REBEAZHEERR
TEXRBEHRWFARERE
B BRESREAE - HMER
R - BEMRITERMEES A
KARITHEF » AR B EpL B
MBEEABNERERRIFEE
530 m S RN EL A (S R AR T
i HEEREREBNEER
BIER - ThHREAER R EE
e XNMERSHE SERE
BEFRBRBCREHEHR
HmNERBEEERES -

REAREREEERR A&
EotlEREREERRER -
MR EEE QR RS R E R
AARET O - ERARERTD
REASEEENR HiRHE
T2EPREMER AETH
o REBREE AR R R
RERZHFHNERTE - L
FTER R 5 BEERZER S
HFEETHEY

IRBHER A ENMBEEM
5 AEEEHAAZHEERR
ETER X TE R MREE
MAREEER AKEREER
ERkABEE, REMEF T2
HEREER  XREERBRERES
FPARER AEEZHRSE
BEBRUFZHFHETRS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35.
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continueq)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit rating

R BB S E PR

Description
3398

s mEEEER A FER

= ==
= (&)

(c) EERR »)

AEE B AN EERRFFRIER
BIEATER :

Basis for recognising ECL

BRAMCEBRRNEE

Low risk

KR

Doubtful

it

Loss

BB

Write-off

s

4® CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)

The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due amounts
RZEFHHENRRERIE
B e EAskIa

There have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or
external resources

BRATHIMBERBENER
EE R B VR HER AR ZIE N

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BRBRTABEECBREGERE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

BERBETERABARENIHREE
REETRRBEAIWEABHKIE

12-month ECL

128 AFEHEEER

Lifetime ECL
— not credit-impaired

FRERBHEREEER
- WAREAEERE
Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired
FEMBEEER
-BEB4EEERE

Amount is written off

MBS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continueq)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets which are subject to ECL

35. B Ebe EE R D FEE

= ==
= (&)

(c) EERR »)

TRALAEREHHEEENIE
ERk CRETHEBEEBRE

assessment: &) :
Internal 12-month Gross carrying
2018 Notes credit rating or lifetime ECL amounts
1218 A K FEH
—E-N\F B AT EE TR EHEEEE AR {E
HK$’000
FHT
Trade receivables and 19 N/A (Note) Lifetime ECL 18,955
bills receivables (provision matrix)
Z 5 IR R IR 19 TEA (MEE) GFEEREEERE 18,955
(BB 5BRE)
Loans and interest 20 Low risk 12-month ECL 105,338
receivables Loss Lifetime ECL 1,800
e E SR & FIL8, 20 {iWE 12 @ ATBHAEEEE 105,338
E1E GFEEREEERE 1,800
Deposits and other 21 Low risk 12-month ECL 17,518
receivables Loss Lifetime ECL 1,918
e REAMEKFRIE 21 livEcA 12 @ AFBHAE &8 17,518
BB GEMEEERR 1,918
Pledged bank 22 Low risk 12-month ECL 3,314
deposits
EEIPRITFRK 22 KR B 12 AFEHEEEE 3,314
Cash and bank 23 Low risk 12-month ECL 152,597
balances
R RIRITHET 23 livEcA 12 @ AFBHAEEESIE 152,597

Note: For trade and bills receivables from sales of apparels, the Group
has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL

T - BARSSHE 2 B 5 M YRR ME
REmME  AEBEEREEUHR
SERFEIRNBEFEFES
BREEBERZEERE
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. K ERERE R AR E
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) —4C )

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) EERE @)

(Continued)

Trade and bills receivables

As set out in note 4.9A, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the
Group determines the ECLs on these items by using
a provision matrix, grouped by past due status. The
estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment for its
customers in relation to its sales of apparels because
these customers consist of a large number of customers
with common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. Trade and bills
receivables from sales of apparels of HK$15,261,000
and HK$3,694,000 respectively are assessed based on
provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired).
The Group has no debtor credit-impaired as at 31
December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment
allowance on trade receivables from sales of apparels
for approximately HK$407,000 is provided based on the
provision matrix.

4@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)

EZRURARERRE

KT 4.0AFTE - AEBEER
BRI EREEAFEIRAMEL
R ETENEREEEBENE
BEE BRAEAREELEHN
BEEAEERMENERERIN
AEBFERABEEEETZSEE
B FEHEEEE (GRafkn
D) o EETEIER D EREKER
RIEFT FHNELAIBRMEL
KhET TEBBETDERKA
KB NI ER 2 ATE B RHE
AR o

ERASEEERBERE 2 —
R ANEEFAEKERERERAR
R ZEAEEFPREEESEEN
WE - DTHRZEREFPBEEZ S
BHARARRFENES - FEUE
EFPERBENGHRIZNE R
HIERIRE T - IREHENE S IE
WK IE & e R 5 15,261,000 74
7 % 3,694,000 7T T 7 Bl F WA
GFEIBBHEERE (LERLE
BEERE) NHNBEEREETT
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35. M EREER A FER
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(c) EERE )

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continueq)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Loans and interest receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred
loss model) on loan and interest receivables based on
12-month ECL, excepted for one loan receivables which
was over-due for one year, lifetime ECL was based on for
ECL assessment.

The credit risk on loan and interest receivables and
loan interest receivables are limited because certain
loan receivables are pledged with the properties units in
Hong Kong, personal properties of the borrowers and
guaranteed by certain independent third parties. Besides,
majority of the borrowers of the Group have no historical
default record and the directors expect that the general
economic conditions will not significantly change for the
12 months after the reporting date.

Deposits and other receivables

The Group measures the impairment loss equal to
12-month ECL of deposits and other receivables. For
those balances expected to have significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group apply lifetime
ECL based on aging for classes with different credit risk
characteristics and exposures.

EHRERRFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =T — \F+-_A=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. K ERERE R AR E

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continueq) = (&)
(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) EERME @
(Continued)

Pledged bank deposits and cash and bank balances

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks
with sound credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and the Group considers the credit risk to
be insignificant.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk on:

° Trade receivables
° Loans and interest receivables

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty and by geographical region. The Group
had certain concentrations of credit risks as 48% (2017:
52%) of the total trade receivables and loans and interest
receivables are due from five of its largest external
customers as at 31 December 2018 (2017: five). The
directors carry a periodic review on the creditworthiness
on these customers and consider the exposure to such
credit risk is minimal. Further quantitative data in respect
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and bills receivables and loans and interest receivables are
disclosed in notes 19 and 20 to the financial statements
respectively.

Other than above, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Prior to adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group’s management
considers that all the financial assets that were not
impaired as at the reporting date were of good credit
quality, including those that were past due.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.

4@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)

EEARTERRRTET

ERMBITERRRITEFNE
ERBRIFFTER  RERX Y
FHARBBRERFEERER
TERERFRNRBITALEHE
RREERREN -

AEBRATREAREERT
Bz

o  HEZREWFUR
o RUWERNFE

SR EERBERR HFAI K
WEEE RZT—NF+=A
=t+—H8 AEBBEETEFE
BERE - 58 5 EUGRIENU R E
WE R KRBT BARTE 2 48% (=
T—LF :52%) EEAR (=
T—+tF: A RAIRERE
Figx - EERRERFP2EH
FETEHRT  YRAEZEER
ETK - REEKRBEE FHEIK
HBERERZEARERER R
BRFIEZEERRcE—FE
LEED RN SRR 19 R
20 EE ©

R &SN - AEEL EAE
EXEEETER -

KRR E BB 35 R E 95
Al - ARBEEEBRR  RN&RE
BY#ERENMBENHEERRE
REWMEEER  SRBHNH
BEE °

rEBEBIFE—ErAZSE
EERER  EBBRERAEEX
H 5 A £ B A2 M {2 B R BRIR
BRI o




Notes to the Financial Statements

Br 75 3 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

35. B Ebe EE R D FEE

= ==
= (&)

d) RBESE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continueq)

(d) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
bank facilities.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial instruments, based on
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

REBRBESER  NEEE
RREBEEERREANRS
EBREFEBRBKF  UABAE
B ERTEES  MRERS
HESRENTE EEEER

RITREERIER

TRIMAEENETESRT
AR mE RGBT A2 HIH
R W TREARRBRRESR (B
EEREOMERGFTENFE R
B HWETREE  AIRE®R
TEHEBRMNR) RARE R
WERNHERF B IR

Total Less than
contractual one year or
Carrying undiscounted repayable on One year or
amount  cash flow demand above
REREH —ERg
BEE REREAE AREREE —-Fihlt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TR TR THET
As at 31 December 2018 R-E-NF+ZA=+—H
Non-derivative financial FTESRMTA
instruments
- Trade and bills payables -BSRNTERENZE 20,273 20,273 20,273 =
- Accruals and other payables - BREBRAMENTUR 18,867 18,867 18,867 =
— Interest-bearing borrowings -EEE 1,071 1,229 266 963
40,211 40,369 39,406 963
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continueq)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (continued)

35. B E ke EE R N FEE

= ==
= (&)

(d)

REE S Rk

Total Less than
contractual ~ one year or
Carrying undiscounted repayable on  One year or
amount cash flow demand above
AEREH —ER
REE Ren2LE EREXER —F3ML
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T TET TET
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+t&+=A=1+—H
Non-derivative financial FTESRMTA
instruments
- Trade and bills payables - BN FERENER 37,395 37,395 37,395 =
- Accruals and other payables -BREAKEMENTIE 30,571 30,571 30,571 =
- Interest-bearing borrowings -EEE 699 751 351 400
68,665 68,717 68,317 400

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The fair values of trade and bills receivables, loans and
interest receivables, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, cash and bank balances, trade
and bills payables, accruals and other payables, current
portion of interest-bearing borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using the rates currently
available for instruments on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities.

—@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited &5 ZE (= & gt & B R A 7
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> ==
36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 36. EAEE
The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the AEENEREE B EARRAEER
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an BreEmee ) - WIKEENEREEE
adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods and services IR RIGHER - BIREARIEEM
commensurately with the level of risk. ¥ o
The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure and AEBEREGRNE e R EAREERE - I
makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. BEAS BRI EEELTE - AEEER
The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio calculated R R R ERUERESETENEER
on the basis of interest-bearing borrowings over total equity. B RERER - REENEAREER
The Group’s goal in capital management is to maintain the IR EEARLERERESIEKT -
gearing ratio at a reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust BTSRRI E - AEE R R
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to MRRZIHRESRE - BITHRND
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, MRFREIEAR - EEFFEFRE KD
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt. BEEELUREER o
The gearing ratio is regularly reviewed by senior management. BEBBLEASRERETE PR -
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are as RERERRNEEBFLENT
follows:
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE 1,071 699
Total equity AT 382,418 446,331
Gearing ratio BERBELE 0.3% 0.2%
VA
37. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 37. HEHERSIHE
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial RZEVBREREMESAMKEES
statements, the Group does not have any material events after Hh  REBRZZE—N\F+ZA=+—
31 December 2018. A2 %W EAMEKRNEIE -
o
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  38. A B B #& AR R 3=

COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries (note (a)) RHTB A AR ER (M () 63,612 63,612
Deposits Ze - 5,000
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB NEAE 7,927 9,689
71,539 78,301
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments TETRIE 2,433 2,026
Amounts due from subsidiaries U B A R F0R 220,336 266,742
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEEE 88,941 86,072
311,710 354,840
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H Ath FE IR 1,874 5,944
Amounts due to subsidiaries R VNCIb/ | 189 189
Interest-bearing borrowing FFEEE 63 58
2,126 6,191
Net current assets REEEFE 309,584 348,649
Non-current liabilities FkREBEE
Interest-bearing borrowing TEEE 211 259
Net assets EERE 380,912 426,691
EQUITY s
Share capital &N 16,900 16,900
Reserves (note (b)) @ (M (o) 364,012 409,791
Total equity BT 380,912 426,691

On behalf of the Board
REEFE

Guo Lin Hubert Tien
E1d ) 221 2%)

Director Director
FE FE
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—ZT— \F+-_A=+—HLFE

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at the reporting date are set out as

f

R

(@ HEBARA

38. AR TR B AR T )

RIRE HEME AR BRI T -

follows:
Place/
country of Particulars of Effective interest Place of
incorporation/ issued/paid-in held by the operation and
Name establishment capital Company principal activities
e,
RLHIHEE, BT
=z B= SRHRAFE ARBRFENERER EEMBREIEXR
Direct Indirect
HiE k3
Great Entrepreneur BVI 4 ordinary shares 100% = Investment holding
Investments Limited EEBHERAES of US$ 1 each in Hong Kong
AREREEET REBREER
okl
Transformed Holdings BVI 4 ordinary shares 100% = Investment holding
Limited REERAES of US$1 each in Hong Kong
AREREMEET REBRETR
CORES L
Going Success Holdings BVI 1,000 ordinary shares 100% = Investment holding
Limited EEBHERAES of US$1 each in Hong Kong
1,000 B & EI(E 1 €T REBREER
Y AR
Holly Global Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
REERRES of US$ 1 each in Hong Kong
100 AR EE 1 =T REBREITR
Y AR
Best Supreme Investment BVI 100 ordinary shares 100% = Investment holding
Limited EEBHERAES of US$1 each in Hong Kong
100 AR E{E 1 37T REBREER
okl
Victory Leader Holdings BVI 1 ordinary shares 100% = Investment holding
Limited REERTRES of US$1 each in Hong Kong
1RBAREE15R7T REBRETR
Y AR
Power Visions Holdings Hong Kong HK$1 100% = Investment holding
Limited BE 17T in Hong Kong
REBREER
Runway Global Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 = 100% Investment holding
W RIRIRA PR A A &% 3,000,000 7T and trading of
apparels in
Hong Kong
REBREER
KREE S
Jiaxing Runway Global PRC US$2,000,000 - 100% Manufacturing and
Garment Limited* s 2,000,000 7T trading of apparels

5 BRER AR A (3R 8R)
BRRAR"

in the PRC
A B RECRE
&5
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at the reporting date are set out as

BRE - (8

(@ MEARE)

38. AR BB AT )

RBEEHRHBARNFEBHRIIOT

follows: (Continued) (%)
Place/
country of Particulars of Effective interest Place of
incorporation/ issued/paid-in held by the operation and
Name establishment capital Company principal activities
A,
RALHIHEE BT
=z B= SRHRAFE ARBRFENERER EEMBREIEXY
Direct Indirect
HiE k3
Runway Fashions, Inc. USA 1,000 ordinary shares = 100% Provision of designing,
Eed of US$1 each marketing and
1,000 RFAREE 1 =T advertising services
RPN in the USA
REBIRHRET
mi5EH
Ko BE 5 PR
Delta Wealth Finance Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary shares = 100% Provision of money
RE BE of HK$1 each lending services
1,000 B & EI(E 1 BT REERRE RS
Y AR
Harvest Celebration Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100% Investment holding
YIRIRIAR AT FS of HK$1 each in Hong Kong
1,000 IR FAREE 1 T REBRETR
CORES L
Smart Dream Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares = 100% Investment holding
EEBHERAES of US$1 each in Hong Kong
100 AR E{E 17T REBREER
okl
Glory Kind Corporation Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100% Investment holding
BB of HK$1 each in Hong Kong
1,000 IR FAXEE 1 BT REBRETR
AR
Crystal Idea Investments Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100% Investment holding
BE of HK$1 each in Hong Kong
1RBREE1ET REBREER
okl
Luxembourg Investment Luxembourg 12,000 ordinary shares - 100% Investment holding
Company 177 S.ar.l. EHRE of Euro 1 each in Luxembourg

—@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited HEZEE & gk EHR A7)
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at the reporting date are set out as

BRE - (&

(@ MEAR(E)

38. AR TR B AR T )

RBEEHRHBARNFEBRIIOT

follows: (Continued) (%)
Place/
country of Particulars of Effective interest Place of
incorporation/ issued/paid-in held by the operation and
Name establishment capital Company principal activities
e,
RLHIHEE, BT
=z B= SRHRAFE ARBRFENERER EEMBREIEXR
Direct Indirect
HiE k3
CECFI (Cayman) Management Cayman 1 share of US$1 each 100% = Investment holding
Limited* HEHS 1 RSIREE1ET in Cayman
CORESEli RASHSREER
CEFCFI Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% = Investment holding
Management Limited* BE 1 REAREE 18T in Hong Kong
CORES L REBREER
CEFCFI Hong Kong General Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% = Investment holding
Partner Limited* BE 1 REAREE 18T in Hong Kong
BBEESRITBERA CORESEli REBREER
BRATF"
CEFCFI Hong Kong Securities Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% = Investment holding
Limited* A 1 REAREE 18T in Hong Kong
okl REBRETR
CEFCFI Hong Kong Asset Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% = Investment holding
Management Limited* A 1 REAREE 18T in Hong Kong
BERECREEEBAERDA" Y AR REBRETR
CEFCFI Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% = Investment holding
Futures Limited* BE 1 REAREE 18T in Hong Kong
BEEESRATERAF" CORES L REBREER
CEFCFI Hong Kong Corporate Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% = Investment holding
Finance Limited* BE 1 R EAREE 18T in Hong Kong
BEEESRUBERBRAT" CORES L REBREER

*

These companies were newly incorporated or acquired during the

* ZERRARBE_T-N\F+_A=+—

year ended 31 December 2018. A - FE e ez sl -

C SEEELE

None of the subsidiaries issued any debt securities at the MEMNBRARRERERTEMNERE
end of the year. %o

7 wholly foreign owned enterprise
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

38. AR TR BIEAR R T )

Notes: (Continued) MizE - (&
(b) Reserves (b)
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ANATEEER R T
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
BRORE BB By 2 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET FET
At 1 January 2017 RZF—+F—H—H 188,404 63,583 (16,650) 235,337
Loss and total comprehensive rEEEBEREERERRE
income for the year - - (13,105) (13,105)
Issuance of shares ESardn) 187,559 - = 187,559
At 31 December 2017 and RZZE—+F+=ZA=+—H
1 January 2018 E=T—N\F—A—H 375,963 63,583 (29,755) 409,791
Loss and total comprehensive AEEHEREERSEE
income for the year - - (45,779) (45,779)
At 31 December 2018 R=Z2-NF+=A=+—H 375,963 63,583 (75,534) 364,012

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between
the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to certain
reorganisation of the Group and the nominal value of the share issued by
the Company in exchange thereof.

—@ CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited &5 ZE (= & gt & B R A 7
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